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ISSUES RELATING TO NATFONAL YOUTH
SERVICE

TUESDAY, JUNE. 30, 1987

House or REPRESENTATIVES,
SuBCOMMITTEE ON EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES,
CoMMITTEE ON EpucATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC. _

The subcommittee met, pursuant te notice, at 9:15 a.m., in room
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Matthew G. Martinez
(chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Martinez, Jontz, Gunderson,
and Grandy.

Staff present: Eric Jensen, staff director; Bruce Packard, legisla-
tive assistant; Tammy Harris, chief clerk; and Mary Gardner, mi-
nority legislative associate.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I would like to call this meeting to order and an-
nounce that we have joining with us, as members of the committee,
Mr. Fred Grandy and Mr. James Jontz.

This hearing of the Employment Cpportunities Subcommittee is
called to receive testimony on National Youth Services. Mational
Youth Services is a broad concept that will allow the youth of this
nation to serve their country and communities through public serv-
ice. Youth Service members may, after completing their service, re-
ceive education benefits in exchange for those services.

We have seen first-hand successful Youth Service programs in
New York City and San Francisco.

This focus on National Youth Service comes at a time when,
even though we face major budget deficits, we still need to cope
with the decay of our public infrastructures and the rapid deterio-
ration of our natural and cultural resources. We must also realize
our nation’s youth are facing alarming high rates of unemploy-
ment, and there can be a correlation between the two problems.

For the group of 15-to-19-year-olds, we have an 18 percent unem-
ployment rate, meaning 1% million teenagers do not have work.
With the larger group of 16-to-24-years-olds, 13 percent of the
group, or 3 million youth, are unemployed.

Thé picture is even more bleak for minorities and women. Ap-
proximately 40 percent of black teenagers, 24 percent of Hisp:.nic
teenagers, and 15 percent of teenage women are unemployed.

We are clearly at a time when we must look for solutiors to
these problems.
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The concept of the National Youth Service, which will provide
needed voluntary help for States and communities, is. a perfect so-
lution, in my mind, for the wide-ranging problems confrenting us.

In addition to providing needed employment, useful public serv-
ice can be a very important factor in the educational and personal
development of young people. The service concept focuses on cre-
ative energies of both the government and the youth worker on
finding solutions to cur nation’s problems.

Numerous National Service bills have been introduced in this
Congress, including H.R. 460, H.R. 1468, H.R. 1479, and H.R. 2225,
introduced by Congressmen Panetta, Torricelli, McCurdy, and Si-
korski. Mr. Sikorski has also introduced legislation to amend the
Higher Education Act to include the Youth Service concept.

We will be hearing frem the Members today on their ideas of
how we can apply Youth Services towards meeting the national
and lncal imperatives. We look forward to hearing their testimony.

Wich that, I will turn to the Members of the panel and ask if
they have an opening statement.

Mr. Grandy.

Mr. GranpY. I have none.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Jontz.

Mr. JonTz. I have none, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Then we will begin with you, Mr. McCurdy.

Mr. McCurpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

STATEMENT OF HON. DAVE McCURDY, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA

Mr. McCurpY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of thie sub-
committee. It is a pleasure to have the oppertunity to appear
before you this morning—and I see my good friend and colleague,
the ranking Member, Mr. Gunderson, Jjoining us—to appear before
you this morning.

I have a formal statement that I would like to summarize and
admit into the record, if I may, Mr. Chairman, I would like just
briefly to make some points, because I think it is important that
we be informal and discuss the importance of the issue that we are
covering today.

Almost 200 years ago, Mr. Chairman, Thomas Jefferson said that
a tour of duty was due from every citizen of this country in what-
ever service he might be most helpful to this country. Well, today I
think that imperative is even greater; that with the declining budg-
ets, with the scarce resources, and the crying need for more serv-
ices, the time has come for some type of national service program.

On March 9th of this year, I introduced H.R. 1479, the National
Service Act, to establish a voluntary program of national service.
Under this bill, participants age 17 to 26 would provide civilian or
military service in exchange for Federal aid to continue their edu-
cation.

The bill would phase out existing Federal student assistance pro-
grams over a 2-year period. After th.t time, with some excep-
tions—and there always have to be some exceptions, I think, in
these bills—only those who have participated in a National Service

)
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program would be eligible for Federal education assistance, includ-
ing scholarships, loans, and loan guarantees.

In effect, Federal student aid programs would be restructured so
that the sole criterion, with a few exceptions, would be participa-
tion in voluntary national service. Now, again I stress voluntary,
and I stress the fact that this is probably the most far-reaching of
the proposals that have been presented, and I think it is one that
deserves careful consideration.

I would like to briefly address the two types of national service
created under this bill. The first is military national service. We
are facing a declisting pool of youth available for military service
today. This shortage threatens to reduce the quality of our armed
forces and to increase the already high cost of these forces.

Currently, we depend on the system of high levels of incentives,
pay, bonuses, and frills to attract people into the military. The ef-
fective yearly compensation of a private first class is now approxi-
mately $15,000 a year. 'This exceeds the average starting salary of
American teachers. This is for a private first class.

The defense budget cannot withstand the inevitable increases in
the already high levels of compensation that would be necessary to
attract sufficient numbers of qualified youth intc military service.

I would also like to indicate, Mr. Chairman, as a member of the
Armed Services Committee, that the priorities within the Reagan
budgets over the past few years in defense hav. been in the invcst-
ment accounts, that is, in the weapons systems, the ships, planes,
SDI, whatever the system might be.

At the same time, we have tried to compete with the private
sector in the all-voluntary force by having the incentives.

A recent article in the Air Force Times Magazine indicated that
the Air Force is now $340 million short on its payroll. They are un-
i:lerfunded by that amount, and they see this as a continuing prob-
em.

This is going to be an ever-greater problem in the future, and I
think we are going to have to address it.

The second option under my bill is civilian national service.
There are mai:y unmet national, State, and community needs in
health care ana environmental conservation, in assistance to the
elderly, to name only a few.

Under existing programs these needs are unlikely to be met by
business or government. Voluntary civilian national service can
make a substantial contribution to meeting these needs.

The comprehensive National Service program would encompass a
substantial proportion of eligible youth, but would remain volun-
tary, with inducement for service being educational assistance. But
by placing the duties of citizenship at the forefront of the National
Service debate, our young people will get more than- just an aca-
demic exgerience. They will learn democratic values that are too
often taken for granted today by Americans of all ages.

Franklin Roosevelt initiated the depression-era Civilian Conser-
vation Corps. John Kennedy created the Peace Corps; Lyndon
Johnson, VISTA, which is a model for domestic youth service.

It is time to renew the idea of civic service in both the military
and civilian spheres. National Service represents an appeal to the
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broad values of citizenship rather than to the narrow needs of self-
interest.

I would like to share with you one of my favorite quetations from
a famous American, Walter Lippmann, in 1940—and my good
friend, Mr. Gunderson, is smiling, because he has heard me quote
this a number of times. Addressing his 30-year class reunion at
Harvard, Lippmann said:

You took the good things for granted; you must earn them again. It is written
that for every right you cherish, you have a duty that you must fulfill; for every
hope you entertain, you have a task that you must perform; for every good that you
wish could happen, you will have to sacrifice your comfort and case. There is noth-
ing for nothing any longer.

Voluntary national service is a way for young people to develop a
sense: of commitment te their country and, at the same time, re-
ceive assistance toward a good education. With the National Serv-
ice Act, they will be getting something for something.

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my statement, and I would be
happy to respond to any questions that you might have at this
time.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Dave McCurdy follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. Dave MCCURDY, A REPRESENTATIVE 'N CONGRESS FrROM
THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA

Mr. Chairman and members of the subcommittee:

I appreciate *~he opportunity to testify today on an issue I

think we all agree is of great importarce.

On March 9 of this year, I introduced H.R. 1479, The
National Service Act, to establish a voluntary program of
national service. Under the bill, participants aged 17 to 26
would provide civilian or military service in exchange for
Federal aid to continue their education. The bill would phase
out existing federal student assistance programs over a two-year
period. After that time, with some exceptions, cnly those who
have participated in the National Service program would be
eligible for federal educational assistance, including
scholarships, loans, and loan guarantees. In effect, federal
student aid programs would be restructured so that the sole
criterion, with a few exceptions, would be participation in

voluntary national service.

I would like briefly to address the two types of national
service created under this bill. The first is military national
service. We are now facing a declining »ool of youth available
for military service. This shortage threaters to reduce the
quality of our armed forces and to increase the already high
costs of these forces. Currently, we depend on a system of high
levels of incentives, pay, bonuses, and "£frills" to attract

people into the military.
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The effective yearly compensation of a private first class is
now approximately $15,000; this exceeds the average starting
salary of American teachers. The defense budget cannot
withstand the inevitable increases in already high levels of
compensation that would be necessary to attract sufficient

numbers of qualified youth into military service.

The second option under my bill is civilian national
service. There are many unmet national, state, and community
needs in healtn care, environmental conservation, and assistance
to the elderly, to name only a few. Under existing programs,
these needs are unlikely to be met by business or government.
Voluntary civilian national service could make a substantial

contribution to meeting these needs.

A comprehensive national service program would encompass a
substantial proportion of eligible youth, but would remain
voluntary, with the inducement for service being educational
assistance. ©®at by placing the duties of citizenship at the
forefront of the National Service debate, our young people will
get more than just an academic experience. They will learn
democratic values thet are too often taken for granted today by

Americans of all ages.

Franklin Roosevelt initiaied the depression-era Civilian

Conservation Corps. John Kennedy created the Peace Corps.
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Lyndon Johnson set up VISTA as a model for domestic youth

service. It is time to renew the idea of civic service in both
the military and civilian spheres. Natj~nal service represents
an appeal to the broad values of citizenship rather than to the

narrow needs of self interest.

I would like to share with you one of my favorite
quotations from a famous American, Walter Lippmann. In 1940,
addressing his 30-year class reunion at Harvard, Lippmann said,
"You took the good things for granted, you must ecarn them
again. It is written that for every right you cherish, you have
a duty that you must fulfill; for every hope you entertain, you
have a task that you must perform; for every good that you wish
could happen, you will have to sacrifice your comfort and ease.

There is nothing for nothing any longer."

Voluntary national service is a way for young people to

time, receive assistance toward a good education. wWith the
National Service Act, they will be getting something for

develop a sense of commitment to their country and, at the same
something.
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Mr. Marminez. Mr. McCurdy, we are going to hold the questions
until after we hear from Mr. Panetta.

I would say, though, in a short statement, Mr. Lippmann summa-
rized the bill in that one paragraph.

Mr. Panetta.

Mr. PanetTA. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I apologize
for being late. I was in a meeting with the Speaker.

First of all, I would like my statement to be made a part of the
record, and I will just try to summarize its key points, if I might.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I should say that all the written testimony sub-
mitted will be entered in the record in their entirety, without any
objections, and you can summarize.

Mr. PanerTA. Thank you very much.

STATEMENT OF KON. LEON PANE1 |, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STA' . OF CALIFOPRNIA

Mr. PANETTA. Mr. Chairman, first ot all, my particular thanks to
you and the members of this subcommittee for holding this hearing
on National Youth Service.

I am also pleased that my colleagues, is Dave McCurdy, Bob Tor-
ricelli and Gerry Sikorski, who have all been very intzrested in
this issue, have this op; "~tunity to present our concerns to you at
this hearing.

And also my thanks fo the numerous individuals and organiza-
tions who have entr.usiasticelly supported the effort to develop a
ggtional Youth Service. You will be hearing from some of them

ay.

! think, very briefly, youth service in this country is a concept
whose time has come.

We all know that our youth represent our most precious national
resource for the future, and I think all of us share some concerns
about what is happening with regard to our youth at the present
time in our society.

I thick there are some disturbing trends that all of us are aware
of. We know, for example, that we are looking at a large number of
Jobless youth in our society. They represent about 89 percent of all
unemployed, about 3.1 million jobless youth in our society today.

The total national unemployment is about 7 percent. Teen unems-
ployment, as many of you know, is at 14 percent fo= whites, a 1
then when you look at the black population, it is 38 percent, and
for Hisganics, as high as 26 percent.

So, there is no question that the whole area of unemployment,
pfqrticularly among teens in our society, is of growing concern to all
of us.

Secondly, as a result of tightening on pursestrings at the nation-
al level over the last few years, we also are aware of the fact that a
lot of these responsibilities have been shifted to the State and local
level so they are assuming a lot more responsibility for services
that are needed in serving the populations of this country.

Vital community services need to be delivered, and yet are suf-
fering as a conseq ience, obviously, of the constrictions that we face
at the Federal level. This is a reality. I think it is something that
we all recognize, and yet those services need to be met.

12
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And lastly, I.think there is just a kind of general concern about
the lack of creativity and civic responsibility, particularly among
students and those in college, that I think should concern us all.
Rather than turning those energies toward helping in the public
sector, there seems to be an inward nature developing in our socie-
ty with regard to how these students, values and the careers they
ursue.
; P And go for all of those reasons, I think we rceognize the need to
move toward some kind of national service system.

I think the opportunity is there. It is estimated by those that
have looked at this issue—particularly Richard Danzig and Peter
Szanton in their book on National Service—that some 3.5 million
positions could be filled by youth service workers and help fill the
gaps.

These jobs include about a million in education, 700,000 in the
health field, neerly 1.5 million in child care, about 165,000 in con-
servation and environment, 250,000 opportunities in criminal jus-
tice and public safety, not to mention teachers’ aides, individual
tutors, home health care, hospital aides, fish and wildlife conserva-
tion workers, and a whole host of other areas that provide these
opportunities.

Let me also mention, Mr. Chairman, without denigrating job
training programs that we now support in this country—they
range somewhere, I think, in the vicinity of $5-36 billion that we
now spend on job training—but to put a young person into a job
such as we envision here, in my book, means a great deal more
than just providing training and then putting them out there
where there is no job.

And I speak from personal experience. My son—cne of my sons—
who is very interested in the medical area went to school, and yet
what impressed hiin most about getting into the medical area was
the fact that he worked in an emergency ward in a community hos-
pital as part of this kind of service. And that inspired him more
than anything else to move toward the medical field.

And I have seen that happen in my other son—who is in the
Peace Corps right now in Africa, working in water conservation—
inspired by the kind of service that we provided him, fortunately,
in the Peace Corps to get involved in that area.

So, on a personal basis, I have seen this, and I think that this
kind of effort, for all we spend on the job training efforts, can
prove much more worthwhile in terms of inspiring young people to
go into useful professions in our society.

There are literally millions of young volunteers that I think are
searching for a greater sense of purpose and spirit in terms of this
kind of service system.

The purpose of the bill that you are focusing on here today tries
to acknowledge that even within our society today, there are a
number of these programs going on. We have some 27 year-round
State and local service and conservation corps programs that are in
existence, a total of 41 that are now in operation involving some
10,000 young people across the country.

It is happening right now in different States—California, Wiscon-
sin, Washington. Other States across this country are now involved

fo
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in this kind of {outh service effort, they are successful, and they
are working well.

At a conference held on National Youth Service, the publisher of
the National Journal made what I think is a very good point:

Our national security is also defined by the skill, the grit, and the vision of our
you:g people. I call them the real reservoir of national security. If they can be en-
gaged across this land in attacking our core problems, from the environment to edu-
cation to social services, then I am convinced that we can have a materially
strengthened, commonly held United States of America—that is, if as a nation and
if as a people we care enough to do it.

Because there are these kinds of operations going on, the purpose
of H.R. 460, the bill that you are focusing on, is 0 try to give that
kind of incentive by providing matching grants to State and local
governments for the operation of these youth service programs.

The purpose of the bill is to target programs that look at uznmet
human, social and environmental needs. The youth would be be-
tween the ages of 17 and 24, and the period of service could range
between six months and two years.

But let me also stress that these are programs that would ke de-
veloped at the State and local level, by States, by communities, to
meet the particular needs within their societies, not mandated by
the Federal Government.

What we basically do is to provide a match to those communities
that want to develop this kind of program, because these programs
do vary based on the communities and States that have enacted
them. They would receive a living stipend, somewhere between 50
to 110 percent of the Federal minimum wage.

There are also additional post-service benefits that we have seen
in many programs, such as future educational assistance, employ-
ment vouchers, that have all worked very well, and that I think
ought to be again encouraged within our society.

o that is the purpose of this hill. It is basically aimed at the
Federal Government, encouraging what is alread happening out
there at the State and local level, to say this is the kind of direc-
tion we want you to move in.

Admittedly, it is incremental. I know that there are some who
would like to move all the way toward an immediate national serv-
ice system, and yet ray feeling is that H.R. 460 gives us the oppor-
tunity to move in an incremental way in that direction.

I think the call to service is obviously something that cannot be
taken lightly within our society. We need to try to resurrect that
sense of duty, that sense of responsibility, among young people in
this country. This is the way to do it.

Another comment from the National Youth Service Conference
that was held in San Francisco:

This conference is just the b%ginning, a recggnition of the ?irjt'that youth service
can generate, but it doesn’t end here. We need the help of administrators and legis-
lators to channel this spirit and turn our ideas into functioning programs. We chsl-
lenge you to act on our proposals and use the strength and integrity of young

{)ﬁpple, use this spirit of youth service to draw our nation together and do ‘some-
ing.

To conclude, what I am here to do today is to ask you to look
very seriously at H.R. 460 and to do something about beginning a
National Youth Service Program.

[Prepared statement of Hon. Leon Panetta follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT oF HON. LEON E. PANETTA, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FroMm THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Mr. chairman, I would like to thank you and the Menbers of the Subcon
nittee on Human Resources for agreeing to hold :i.is hearing on nation-
al youth service. I am pleased that my colleagues who have expressed
a strong interest in youth service, and with whon I have had the
picasure to testify in the past, are present today. In addaitiocn, I
would also like to express my appreciation to the numerous indivi=-
duals and organizations which are so enthusiastically offering their
support of a voluntary national youth service initiative through theair
testinonies and written statements. In particular, I am pleased that
Dr. Frank Newman, president of the Education Association of the States
and a national expert on education, is able to present testirony
tcday.

Youth Zervice is certainly a concept whose time has come. All across
the naticn, service and conservation corps, some newly initiated and
some already fairly well-established, are meeting with unprecedented
success. Tre exciterent these programs have generated is fast-
spreading, as more and more localities join in these efforts each
year. The spirit and idealism that characterizes these corps is
equally contagious. I believe it is high time that we at the federal
level catch the fever as well.

I firmly believe that America's youth are the nmost precious natural
resource we rossess. Yet all around us the strong bodies and able
ninds of millions of young people are dulled by an economy that often
desies thenm the right to take a productive and respectable place in
society. Consequently, scores of young people have turned to drugs,
alcohol, crime and countless other vices to occupy long hours

of idleness. Moreover, even those young people who are gainfully
enployed are turning increasingly inward, nore concerned with making
and spending money for personal gain than with the condition of their
fellow person. A recent article in the New York Times reported that
this is true among a wide range of high school graduates, who are very
opnly zaterialistic and more concerned with getting rich than with
any*hing else. We as a society are partly to blame for this shameful
lack 2f .ocial responsibility and distorted sense of values; and we as
a society can do something about it.

. I have noted three disturbing trends which, in my mind, are relevant

to the concerns mentioned above. First, the more than 3.1 million
jobless youth comprise almost 39% of all unemployed. While total
national unemployment hovers at approximately 7%, teen joblessne. .
stands at 14% for whites, and the situation is even bleaker for

for minority youth. The unemployment rate among black teenage.s is
38% percent, and among Hispanics it is almost as high, at 26%. While
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there are some indications that the employment picture for youth is
inproving, there is still a long way to go, and many of the newly-
created jobs are low-payind, low-potential service sector tasks. .

Secondly, the recent tightening of federal purse strings has shifted
the burden for social programs to states and localities, which sinmply
do not have the resources to compensate for lost funding. The private
sector, which was to step in and fill the gap, has been unable to
cover all the bases. Consequently, vital community services hava been
drastically cut back. The unpet human needs that youth service
programs are a major focus of this hoaring and ny youtk service bill, -
and I will expand on this topic shortly.

Finally, the Carnegie Foundaztion for the Advancement of Teaching
released a report a few years ago on the state of higher education.
Their findings indicated a disturbing lack of creativity and civic
responsibility among college students that is consistent with what the
New York Times found among high school graduates. The pressure of
repaylng massive student loans is forcing graduates to pursue careers
in which they will be guaranteed high salaries. Jobs in public
service are routinely bypassed for more lucrative private gector
positions. 1In response, the repnrt recommended that we promote the
ideals of citizenship by linking financial aid to the performance of
community service. "The most critical demand is to restore to higher
education its original purpose of preparing graduates for a life of
involved and committed citizenship. ... A critical task of national
policy is to provide the incentives, the encourageient, and tha appro-
priate social pressure to bring about the needed change,” asserted the
Founcdation.

I raise these concerns today because I believe that a nationa)l youth
service progran would have a direct impact on all these issues. Such
a program would not only be an innovative means of restoring lost
social services to our communitilis, but would provide youth with a
constructive alternative to unemployment that would also serve as a
powerful lesson in citizenship. It is my firm belief that if we can
dezonstrate to our young people that society desperately needs and
values their services, we can go 2 long way towards relieving the
problems outlined above.

There is very clearly a large number of pressing unmet human and
societal nesds that could be met by a national youth service p-ogranm.
Richard banzig and Peter Szanton, in their recent book, National
Service: What Wouid 1t Mean?, did a fairly careful estimate and cape
up with 3.5 million poritions that could be filled by youth service
workers each year and help fill the gaps. These jobs included over 1
million in education, over 700,000 in the health field, nearly 1.5
million in child care, 165,000 in conservation and the environment,
and 250,000 in criminal justice and public safety. Among the many
specific tasks to be performed in all these areas include work as
teacher's aides, individual tutors, home health and hospital aides,
fish and wiidlife conservation workers, police support staff, an.
victim assistance workers.

1o
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In addition to meeting many pressing needs, we will, by offering an
opportunity to perform public sexrvice, meet the needs of many youth
for a useful role in society and meaningful transition to adulthood.
Millions of young volunteers have already discovered a greater sense
of purpose and a renewed spirit of brotherhood through participation
in community service projects. The value of such pProjects is evident
to many young people. In addition, while I previously pointed out

v that many youth seem overly materialistic, there is also a strong
current of support among youth for service Programs. Diane Hedin of
the Center for Youth Development ana Rosaarch, wiiom we shail have the

- privilege of hearing later, found recently that approxiuately 75% of
Minnesota high school students would support a statewide voluntary

- youth service program, and that about 50% would actually participate.

Unlike other proposed remedies to the youth unemplovment problem, and
the challenge of channeling youthful energies in constructive direc~
tions, youth service prograes put young adults to work, but on tarms
that are a source of great pride, nmeaning, and respect. Clearly,
these volunteer employees are in it for much more than the money.

As is the case with most volunteer programs, participants will gain
just as much if not more than the recipients of the services. fThe
youth will have the opportunity to gain practical wor: experience that
may be the deciding factor in obtaining future employzent. In many
instances they will be provided with post-service financial aid that
will allow them to pursue their education freely, uninhibited by the
3pecter of anormous debts to be repaid upon graduation. Yet even nore
importantly, they will gain the personal sarisfaction derived from the
dedication of one's time and energy for the benefit of others. Tough
personal demands will be placed upon the volunteers to dedicate
thenmselves to hard work and selfless giving. Those who meet this
challenge can not help but profit from this success in all other
facets of their personal, acadenic, and professional lives.

As I stated at the outset, locally initiated youth gervice prograns
have sprung up all over the country. At last count, there were 27
year-round state and local service and conservation corpe and, inclu-
ding summer programs, a total of 41 in operation involving over 10,001
young people across the nation. This nupber is rz.pidly growing.
Although the scope and form varies considerahly from one progranm to
another, they share a common dedication to the ideals of renewed
activism, social responsibility and youth potential. Neal Pierce,
publisher of the National Journal, eloquently expressed the potencial
of youth gervice programs when he said at the 3rd National Youth and
Service Corps Conference this spring:

"our national security is a.so defined by the skill, the grit, and the
vision of our young people ... I call thex the real reservoir of
national gecurity. If they can be engaged across this land in
attacking our core problems, from the enviromnment to education to
social services, then I am co.vinced that we can have a materially
strengthened, commonly held United States of America - that is, if as
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a nation and if as a people we care enough to do it.”

As you know, we shall later have the oppourtunity to hear the first-
hand account of one such volunteer, from Washington State, Lesli Boyd.
She will no doubt expand on activities there whea she speaks, bu: I
wish to point out here that since 1983, 1400 volunteers have worked 1
million hours in community service projects of the Washington Sexvice
Coxrps. I have long had an interest in home and community-based care
for the elderly, and among the many important tasks periformed by the
workers have been chore services for the elderly homebound. This has
helped save Washington millions of dollars per year by helping keep
pany elderly stay in their communitics and out of nursing homes.

I have sponsored H.R. 460, the Voluntary National Youth Service Act,
because I believe that the federal government should encourage the
growth of such state and local initiatives, and the many good works
they perform. This bill would begin such an incremental process by
providing matching grants to state and local governments for the
operation of youth service programs. The formulation of the specifics
of the programs would be left up to the localities, as they can best
determine copuunity needs of the type discussed above. The only
guideline stipulated in the legislation is that the services fulfill
such unmet human, social or environmental needs in the community, that
the youth be between the ages of 17 and 24 years of age, and that the
period of service be between six months and two years.

Participants would receive a living stipend (including housing, food
and other in-kind assistance) of between 50 and 110 percent of federal
nminimum wage. On top ot this basic assistance, some localities may
want to offer additional post-service benefits such as future
educational acsistance, or employment vouchers which can be redeemed
with futurz employers to share the cost of an initial salary period.
The total compensation from all these factors would be no less than 80
and no more than 160 percent of nminimum wage.

Special efforts would be made to encourage enrollment by economically
disadvantaged youth. Furthermore, the families of such youth would
not be required to declare the earnings and benefits from youth
service programs when determining their eligibility for any federal
assistance programs. Precautions have been taken to encure that the
newiound employment would not be at the cxpense of existing workers.
Therefore, the bill specifically stipulates that any permanent emplo-
yee shall not be displaced from his or her job by any youth volunteer.
Any participant who has not completed high school and who has been out
of school for more than three months would be required to enroll in an
educational component working towards a degree. Thereforz, H.R. 460,
while making this provision for the need to complete one's basic
education, would not exclude those who have not yet done so.

Volunteer opportunmities could include service in non~profit social
service organizations, day care centers, nursing homes, libraries,
recreational facilities, law enforcement agencies, literacy training
centers, public works organizations, energy conservation programs or
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any other organization meeting human, social or environmental needs.
The only restrictions placed on the type of work performed are that it
not be in a for-profit business, a labor union, a partisan political
organization, a domestic or personal service company or a religious
drganization involving explicitly religious functions.

-
This bill would lend needed support to existing programs to"expand
their scope, while encouraging other localities to jaunch new
programs. The focus would be at the local level, yet a national
prograrn would supply the coherence. This type of incremental
approach, preserving and encouraging local antonomy zn? diversity, is
the type favored by many youth service organizations as the beginning
of a national progran.

The call to service is not issued lightly. 1In the long run, it is the
entire nation which stands to gain the most from a more outward-
looking citizernry. a voluntary national youth service progranm would
offer young adults a renewed oppoxtunity to earn a sense of pride and
self-respect, and fulfill many pressing national needs. Two youth
service workers, speaking at the 2nd National Youth Conservation and
Service Corps Conference in San Francisco in March, 1986, laid out the
opportunity and challenge very well when they said:

"This conference is just the beginning, a recognition of the spirit
that youth service can generate, but it doesn't end here. We need the
help of administrators and legislators to channel this spirit and turn
our ideas into functioning programs. We challenge you to act on our
proposals and use the strength and integrity of young people, use this
spirit of youth service to draw our nation together and do something."

The stakes are high and the challenge, tough. Yet the efforts will
pay off long after the bridges are repaired or the child is conforted.
A citizenry confident in its abilities, aware of its responsibilities,
and compassionate towards its fellow man is the cornerstone of a
healthy and prosperous society.
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& Mr. MArTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Panetta.

) We have two other Members joining us. I see Congressman Sikor-
ski in the back there. But what I am going to do is to break this
into two panels, since you were both here so much earlier, and let
Mr. Sikorski then testify afterward. Then we can get on to ques-
tioning and allow you to go on your way.

Let me first say that all of the bills, as we have looked at them,
have some tremendous ideas. I think that they are ideas that——

Mr. Sikorski [from the audience]. Why don’t I join the panel and
put my statement in the record? ° oot T

Mr. MARTINEZ. All right.

STATEMENT OF HON. GERRY SIKORSKI, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

Mr. Sikorskl. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate your letting me join
the panel and placing my statement in the record. It’s wonderful
rhetoric. [Laughter.]

[Prepared statement of Hon. Gerry Sikorski follows:]




17

PREPARED STATEMENT oF HON. GERRY SIKORSKI, & REPRESENTATIVE 1N CONGRESS FrROM
THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

America is a country built on the hard work, the sweat and
the tears of thtse who lived and fled here. Pioneers of another
time. Refugees and outcasts, royalty and rogues. They saw
America for the community it was, where hard work and caring were
essential values. They understood service to nation.

"Natlonai Service™ is a phrase that has many definitions,
but one common goal. National character, youth citizenship.

In 1947, the Pressident's Advisory Conmission on Universal
Training stated that the task in leading a new generation is to
find "the best way for a modern democratic society to produce
certain very concrete things which are necessary to its own
preservation." Questions about the scope, the format and the
cost of national service still remain, but there is little doubt
that national service is part of America's chance to produce a
secure, productive, and ethical future.

National service can turn America's youth away from the
corruption seen in the White House basement, in a Washington town
house, on Wall Street, and on a T.V. pulpit. 1t can give them
the opportunity to become involved in their communities, soar to
new heights, and develtp a collective spirit of patriotism that
comes from working for the common good. Putting back.

National Service can mean thousands of iiliterate peopls
learning to read. It can mean better care for the eldarly and
the disabled. 1t can mean child care for the working poor,
safety for latch-key kids and a head start for the next
generation of Americans.

It can mean improvements to our inner cities, our parks and
forests, lakes and farmland. National service can mean a chance
for career exploration, an important avenue for skills training,
and jobs for our nation's unemployed youth.

National service is one way that our ~ation can harness the
skills, the dedication, and the energy of America's youth.
National service can meet the huge and growing unmet needs of our
people.

In a time of severe budget constraints, national! service can
be a cost-effective method of getting America's work done --and
done well.

What it comes down to s taking down the blockades, so that
our young people can take these responsibilities upon themselves
=- with a little encouragement from us.

I have introduced two bills to remove a couple blockades and

O

ERIC




18

celebrate the spirit of American youth. H.R. 2i57 and H.R. 2156

represent a concrete Step in promoting volunteerism by America's

college graduates. | have worked closely with Senator Dale

Bumpers, the sponsor of this legislation in the Senate. Sen.

Bumperz and 1 share tha desire to promote charitable and

community service on the part of young people. We know that

public serv+ce, whether in the Govermmnent or the community, is of v
rea’ interest .0 our young people today -- but society has built
major economic impediments :gainst youth service. Today more

than 50 percent of our college and university students have taken

out loans, te finance their education. The average loan | .. B
accumulation it berween $4,900 and $6,100 for a studer:

graduating from & fouc year institution. More Anerican students
taking a jceates and greater loan burden on themselves to

complete college. Young people haven't changed as much as

economic conditions. These bills alleviate some of the e~rnomic
pressuves and fo~ter a new patriotism.

The first bili simply presses the Department of Education to
promote utilization of an existing provision of the Higher
Education Act. This Act permits graduates to defer repayment of
any loan obiigations while they are serving as a full-vime
employee at a minimun pay level with a non-orofit charitable
organization. Service with a non-profit organization already is
included among the grounds for deferring repayment of student
loans, but very few graduates utilize the provision and few
nonprofit organizatians utilize this provision for recruiting
employees.

In fact, although there is $475,331 out in college loans in
my state of Minnesota, $352,231 out in the State o{ Wisconsin,
and $526,849 out in loans each year in the State of lowa, the
U.S. Department of Education reports that of those states
Minnesota ranks first i.. the number of students who are currently
taking advantage of these specific loan deferment programs. And
that "great" amount is a mere 176 recent graduates. Because this
biJ! would simply promote 2n existing program, no new
authorization or appropriaticn is necessary.

According to U.S. Departnent of Education statistics, more
than 125,000 of Minnesota's coliege students are eligible to
receive college loar deferments under this law. Multiply that by
50 states and the magnitude of such an equation is tremendous.
1t could m~an kousing for thousands of our nation's homeless. 1t
could mean alcohoi and drug rehabilitation for a multitude of
Americans whose habits make them unemployable. It could meam a
head start for the working poor, a cleaner nation and a more
productive generation of Americans.

The role of Congress must be to offer incentives. My second
bill wil! increase the incentives. This bill will partially
forgive repayment of the loan obligations of a recent graduate
who serves fuli time, is paid at a level comparable to that of
the Peace Corps or VISTA -- minimum wage -- and works at a
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nonprofit organization involved in service comparable to that
performed by the Peace Corps and VISTA. The Higher Education Act
of 1986 provides for partial loan forgiveness for Peace Corps and
VISTA volunteers and H.R. 2156 would extend thls same princlple
to volunteers with nonprofitable charitable organizations., This
would require additional appropriations, but the new program only

v applies to students now entering college and, therefore, could
have no budget impact until they graduate.

The cost of the Current Lian Deferment program is

. astonishingiy iow. The Departmént of Education estimates that it
costs 580 per year per $1,000 in loans in deferment status,

Thus, to permit graduates to deter repayment of these loans for
one year while they serve with a nonprofit charltable
organizatlon costs the government between $392 and $488 per
person per year.

Medical students, law students, Ph.D. students tend to
accumulate more loans during school and, uslng the same rule of
thumb, it costs the Government between $792 and §1960 to defer
repayment of their loans during one year of public service.

| cannot imagine a better investment on the part of our
CGovernment than to encourage a medical school graduate to spend a
year providing health service to the poor, especlally when the
Government's investment |s only $1,960 for that year of
service. At a time of severe budget pressures, thls Is an
unbellevable bargain,

Supplcmenting deferment with partial loan forgiveness
provides some finanzial assistance to America's graduates. The
loan forgiveness pfovision adopted last year for the Peace Corps
and VISTA volunteers cancels 15 % of their loan obligation for
each of flcst and second year of servlce and 20% for each of the
third and fourth year of service and my bill would apply thls
formula to service with nenproflt charitable organizations,

According to the Department of Educatlon, approximately 1000
people are taklng advantage of the loan-deferment program that
was deslgned for specifled work in on-proflt organizatlons.
Thus, taking into account the average dept accumulation of recen:
college Eraduates, Department of Educatlon estlmates show that if
H.R. 2156 (partial loan cancelation) were in effect thls year, it
would cost the government between $735,000 and $915,000.

With respect to both proposals, the student now qualifies
for the deferred repayment and would qualify under my bill for
the partlal loan forglveness if 1) he or she worked full time,

was paid at a level comparable to that of the Peace Corps or
Vista volunteer -- minimum wage -- and 3) the nonprufit
organization was Involved In service comparable to thai performed

It's in the Gevernment's financial as well as ollcy
P

O ‘ "/‘?3
\




ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

20

interest to encourage those willing to serve their community.

Huge budget deficlts have put chalns around our ability to expand

programs to meet the needs of our soclety. Yet these valld needs

are growing at an even faster pace than our deficit. The

goveryment cannot ignore the Implications of these unmet needs,

We need more people willing to devote a portlon of their lives to

public service. v

But today's college students are forced to respond not to
national economlic and societal needs, but to growing pressures on
ths middls glaz2 and the pew "Drease =nd Do Anything For Success”
mentallty of the last few years.

A recent poll of college freshmen conducted by the American
Council on Higher Education at 3%5 schools found that "getting a
better job™ was the single most Important reason for the students
In deciding to go to college. With income, productivity and
savings stagnating, and the Amerlcan dream becoming harder and
harder to achleve, thls Is both understandable and deplorable.

Great fault can be found wlth those who encourage this "get
yours” attitude. For the 1980s, cheap Individualism has been the
full throated cry of our soclety: "Grab all the gusto you
can." "You can have it all."

In the America of the '80's, the bottom !ine has been wealth
and personal galn. The question of whether you are better off
today is legitimate and Important, but It 1s not the only
question that people should ask. It Is also Important to know
whether America and our community are better off -~ both
economlcally and spiritually.

The purpose of pubiic service Is not to exhance your
prospects for reaping financia) rewards when you z=turn 10 the
private sector., But, rather, it's Important for every American
to give back a little to the country that nurtured us.

My two bills may be modest but they are directed 2t a real
barrier to quallfled students engaging In public and community
service upon graJisation, If we really want our youth to provi¢
some service to the community, “%) least the government can do Is
g.t out of the way and permit the student to defer repayment of
his or her college loans.

Let me emphasize that H.R. 2157 and H.R. 2156 have nothing
to do with the debate over the military draft or any mandatory
national service requirement, These bills will not penalize
anyone for not serving his or her community upon graduation.
Rather, they recognize that one of the great virtues of this
country Is the volunteer spirit of the private cltizen and the
huge reservoir of talent among America's youth.

H.R. 2157 and H.R.2156 are mere components of what Is
needed for a complete natlonal service program. As much as
national service Is needed today, It ls Impossible to thrust
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ourselves Into a full-scale program until we have seen tried many
models, and studied our options fully. Yet neither can we sit on
our hands and watch ldly whlle vital needs continue to go unme:,
and the patriotlsm of an entire generatlon of Americans is lost.

We are Amcrican ploneers voyaglrg Into the next century,
v venturlng forth to reclalm the Amerlcan dream. Service to
country and comnunlty ls part of that dream.
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Well, we really enjoyed the American Conserva-
tion Corps hearing, so we are sure it 1s not just rhetoric. It comes
from your heart, I know.

But that would be fine, then. Then we could question all three.

Let me start out by saying that the bills that we have looked at
are interesting, and are, in terms of what Congress is doing cur-
rently, ancmalous bills. Somehow there is a way to put all of these
bills together and then work to pass them.

You know, we haye to convince a majority of 435 pople that
these ideas are wortnhwhile, their time hds come, and that we can
afford them. And in that regucd, let me ask you, Dave, in your bill
it seems that some of the monies you would bring to this bill come
from money that is now funding programs in education.

In that regard, what one community that supports the funding
as it is now? How do we overcume their objections and fears?

Mr. McCurpy. Well, Mr. Chairman, you have raised a point.
There is always going to be a natural resistance there. I believe
Senator Pell probably would have some reservation about the
elimination of the Pelfgrants, but I think the fact of the matter is
that, if we are truly interested in providing educational assistance,
especially in the realm of declining resources, we are going to have
to rethink this whole issue.

And what I think we have done—and I think Gerry, Leon, and I,
and I know Bob has, too, because he has cosponsored my bill—I
think we could package all this together, because I go a little bit
further, because I try to address some military needs, which are
very real and out there.

At the same time, I embrace the concept that Mr. Panetta has
offered. I would love *o see a high school youth service program,
and I would like to see it developed at the State and local level.

The question is: Where are you going to get the money to do it?
How much money is it Joing to take?

What I have proposed is, to pool the money. We spend $10 billion
a year on student assistance, Federal assistance, end we spend a
huge sum on the military. Now, why not combine those and work—
and mine actually has a cost limitation; we say, you cannot exceed
a certain ceiling. But, at the same time, we changed the basic crite-
ria for how a person will qualify, ratner than just based on need,
which is still a criteria, or Lbased on sheer ability. We say service is
the criteria. That is something that is uniform. Everyone should
provide some tyyse of service.

We believe—und my bill, again, ir broad enough, because the ad-
ministration has to come up with regulations and proper formu-
las—biu I think it is time that we take the bold approach and re-
thirk the whole issue of how we provide assistance for our young
people for education.

I went to college on student loans. My wife went to medical
school on student loans. Most of us have gotten here because of
public education and are huge supporters of it.

At the same time, I think we ought to rethink how we repay that
obligation.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I cannot argue with you on that. When you look
around the Floor, and you look at the number of people that are
here in Congress because of the education they got basically from
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student loans and grants, you realize that those are worthwhile
programs, and we need to make sure that we do not hurt them.

Mr. McCurpy. Yes; a mighty fine line. I went to college on an
ROTC scholarship. I think a number of people have done it. The
problem is that in our society—and when you look at the Congress,
too—in all honesty, there are fewer and fewer Members who have
any military service whatsoever, or any type of national service
whatsoever, and, thank God, we are able to do that because we are
at peace and we are not in a time of war, and I would like to see
that continue, but, at the same time, I think it is important that
people have that exposure.

We are the only major industrialized nation—and certainly the
only one in NATO—that does not have some type of mandatory
program, either military or civilian, and most of those require
that—even in the civilian—they do like four weeks of a kind of
boot camp; basic training in some type of military orientation, and
then they go off and do their different kinds of service.

But I think it is folly for us to think that we can continue to
compete with the private sector, paying private first class enlistees
$15,000-plus a year—plus oducational benefits after that. We
cannot even pay our teachers that.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I hate to tell you how long ago I was in the serv-
ice, but if I tell you that my monthly pay when I first went in as a
private in boot camp—was $76 a month.

Mr. McCurpy. Times have changed, Mr. Chairman. [Laughter.]

Mr. MarTINEzZ. If I thought about it—$15,000—maybe I ought to
try to re-enlist. [Laughter.]

Leon, the big question following that is the cost of these pro-
grams. We have seen the success of yours when we visited New
York and listened to the testimony of the people administering the
program, and I listened to the young people who are corps mem-
bers, I mean, you could tel] that they were deriving great benefits
from it. And one of the factors in the development of any young
person in this country is education and service to fellow human
beings. They are an important factor in their development, but
what about the cost? How do you answer? Because there will be
those people who say, hey, this is strictly a cost outlay—sometimes
they will even say for make-work jobs.

Mr. PANETTA. Two things on that, Mr. Chairman.

First of all, again, this is in the form of matching grants, so that
we are requiring both State and local governments to come up with
their share, because obviously we are hoping the programs will be
designed by the State and local governments to meet their particu-
lar needs.

So, first of all, it is on a matching basis, and it is not just some-
thing we, ourselves, are going to assume.

Second, on the specific cost of the program, it varies because ob-
viously the compensation and benefits would range from 80 to 160
percent of minimum wage. But, according to CBO, I can give you
the low range and the upper range. The low range, if you assume

0 percent of minimum wage, would be $10 million in the first
year. That would be 1988. And then going up to 1991, somewhere
in the vicinity of $71 million.
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In the mid-range, which would be 120 percent of minimum wage,
the cost would be about $19 million in 1988, and then go up to
about $159 million.

In the upper range, if you went to a full 160 percent of the mini-
mum wage, that would be about $23 million in the first year.

Again, I think if you look at the overall programs in the job
training ares in other sectors, I think this represents, in terms of
an investment, a very small investmeni that I think would be
aimed at programs that are working, just as we experienced in
New York City.

These kids are out there working for senior citizens, working in
hospitals, working i schools, and these kids were turned on by the
experience of doing it, and I have got to tell you that, as someone
who is responsible for the food stamp program in the Committee on
Agriculture, we have been locking at job training programs.

As a matter of fact, we are looking at welfare reform now in the
whole area of job training, and I wonder why we are breaking our
neck trying to deal with that, when. we ought to be trying to target
at kids and try to prevent them from even getting on the welfare
system at all.

I think this is a way to help do that, because I think our grab-
bing kids at a time when they could either be locked into a genera-
tion of being on some form of welfare, or breaking them out and
giving them some opportunity within our society, I think that this
represents, as far as my experience in dealing with both welfare
programs, food stamp programs, as well as job training programs,
this represents a better investment for a very small price tag.

Mr. MarTINEzZ. Thank you, Mr. Panetta.

Mr. Sikorski, the legislation you have introduced would amend
the Higher Education Act to provide for youth service. How would
cost work in yours?

Mr. Sikorsk1. We do just two things: One is, in H.R. 2157, with
Senator Bumpers in the Senate encouraging: the Department of
Education just to publicize the existing, ongoing program that is in
the Higher Education Act of 1986 that allows students to defer
their—guariintee their—direct student loan while they are doing
full-time work for minimum wage in nonprofit, charitable organiza-
tions: Peace Corps, VISTA, or these other organizations.

That program is online now, but very few are taking advantage
of it because, due in large part, they do not know about it, and we
want them to.publicize it.

The other program: the cost there to defer a student loan is
about $80 per $1,000 of loan, and I think the numbers in the state-
ment are that something less than a million dollars for this year, if
everyone that was doing that work would qualify.

The second, and more extensive, and more expensive, provision is
one that would allow the same kind of treatment for students in
nonprofit charitable organizations working full-time, doing the
ejuivalent work of VISTA or Peace Corps, with the equivalent of
i m wage Peace Corps and VISTA, they would get the same
kind of treatment of cancellation of their loans: 15 percent the first
year and the sscond year, each; and 20 percent the third and
fourth year, each. That cost would differ, depending on how exten-
sive the program is utilized. There is no cost the first year or the
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second year, because you are talking about kids signing up as they
in their college years.

These bills are not incompatible with what other things that
have been talked about. They are one component. The idea here is
not* so much teaching young people who are unskilled and need em-
ployment and training. It is getting people with college graduation
behind them—with some skills—before they get into the career
ladder to employ those resources for their country, for their com-
munity, for a few years.

1 we are trying to do is to remove some of the economic road-
blocks there. First, we defer. That program is on line. We just need
to publicize it, to defer payment on their loans while they are doing
their service, and, second, g0 beyond that, and treat them like we
treat Peace Corps and VISTA people.

The numbers in Wisconsin and Iowa are in my statement of
young people. We tend in Minnesota to produce a lot of young
people who need their student loans and also go on to Peace Corps
and VISTA later on. So, we have some attractive numbers there.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Sikorski.

Mr. Gunderson.

Mr. GUNDERSON. Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

It is a privilege to have all three of you before our committee,

hAS’I read your legislation, none of them are mandatory, are
they?

Mr. McCurby. No.

Mr. GUNDERSON. They are all voluntary?

Mr. McCurby. All voluntsrv, Mr. Torricelli is the only one who,
I think, has embraced a mandatory——

Mr. GUNDERsON. Do you think we run the risk of being a bit dis-
criminatory by requiring that in order to be eligible for student fi-
nancial aid or other services, in a bill like yours Dave, those in
need of such assistance would have to pursue either the military or
public service before you can go to school, whereas the student who
has the financial resources can just go on to school and begin their
career, you know, one to two years earlier?

Do you see that as a potential problem?

Mr. McCurby. Well, it is one that is raised. A number of people
have raised that critique, and I think there is some merit out
there. Quite frankly, though, Mr. Gunderson, even when we had a
draft, we had those that, in some way or another, got around it,
and even during the war.

I think that what you have to do—and therefore I think we
ought to have a broad system and start incorporating it even at the
high school level—is instill a sense of service and duty.

At the same time, I have had a number of Members who, quite
frankly, have surprised me by their co-signing and endorsing my
bill, some who can quite easily afford to send their children to the
best colleges in this country, who have come to me and said, quite
frankly, Dave, your bill is great because I want to get them out of
the house. They have no earthly idea what they want to do, where
they want to go; they have no sense of direction.

And what this does, it provides a kind of a break in there from
Igh school to college, and there might be a way you could defer if
someone is totally gung-ho and has a sense of commitment, knows
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exactly where he wants to go, to have duty afterwards, like we do
for medical school students.

So, I think the way to do that is to instill a sense of duty. A
number of major universities, those that are considered rather ex-
clusive, I think, eventually, when they see this program work, will
perhagghrequire a year or two of some type of service before admis-
sion. ether it is’éafku know, Stanford or some university like
that, there is some . A number of presidents of major exclusive
universities are now talking about programs.

I think that is something that has to be approached.

I probably could go fa.ther than some and have a mandatory
program, but when you start talking about mandatory, you start
talking about draft, and people stop thinking.

I mean, they close their ears, and they block it out. totally, and
they will never hear another word you say.

So, that is why I think it is important that we look at a volun-
tary program, and I think it could be inclusive. I think you can in-
clude a program such as Leon’s, or Gerry’s, and mine, at the same
time and cover the whole spectrum.

Mr. GunbpersoN. I have heard more than one Chairman of the
Joint Chiefs of Staff plead: with this Congress not to return to the
military draft because they have said it is the most inefficient use
of our military resources to train young people for one or two years
and then lose them; that what we need are people coming into the
military today who are committed for a longer term because we
have a high-tech military.

How do you respond to that?

Mr. Mc Y. I think it is a bunch of bunk.

Mr. GunpersoN. Will you repeat that?

Mr. McCurbpy. I said bunk.

Mr. PANETTA. He said something stronger.

Mr. GUNDERSON. I want to see how she spells that. [Laughter.]

Mr. McCurpy. As I indicated earlier, the Air Force is underfund-
ed—their personnel—by $340 million. The Navy bought two new
cﬁrriers, but they have no earthly idea how they are going to staff
them.

We see it time and time again. The argument goes that g'ou Dro-
vide the incentives. We are losing pilots faster than any other erea
or service, and we spend, half a million dollars apiece to train
those people, and we have them four years, and Pan Am and every-
body else is jerking them out so fast because of economic competi-
tion.

You cannot do that. Let me state this, also. I don’t think we are
going to save a lot of money in the military by doing this, but I
think that what you will find is that over time, you will have a
much broader range of people coming into the military.

We also provide a second track. If a person comes in 2nd he
wants to be, a high-tech sergeant, or whatever, he can go into a
career-oriented path, he can get all the gkills, and he will get all of
the incentives. That is a separate track.

Thisis a rerson that, is going to go do his two years and find out
what it is all about; then he gets basic training, and we don’t make
the investment in him that we do. He will learn five or six differ-
ent skills; he can fire his M-16 probably, and he can do some close-
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order drill. Listen, I even fired the M-1 tank. It does not take a
helluva lot of skill to hit the target these days, and I can even hit
it, so there are a lot of things that could be provided.

They do not want to change a good thing. But they are also get-
ting a third of the Federal budget, and at some point there is a tre-
mendous mismatch between investment accounts and personnel.
And I can assure you, when it comes down to the crunch, they are
going to continue to opt for the investment account, and, when
they do that, we are going to have to find another way to provide
the personnel.

Mr. PaNETTA. If I could just comment on that, Steve.

Mr. GuNpzRsoN. Yes, but I would like for you to expand when
you do comment above and beyond that, because the old gavel is off
1n five minutes, I want to get my next question in before the gavel.
He will not cut you guys off.

I would like you, In particular, to also expand on the question of
how is your legislation different than an expanded summer youth
or disadvantaged youth program under our existing job training
programs. I do not really see the difference between what we have
there and what you are asking for in your legislation, so I would
like you to answer both of those comments.

Mr. PanerTA. Okay. Just on the first issue, you know, you never
want to get into a discussion of mandatory graft, because every-
body has got some built-in philosophical reactions to that, but I
came from that era and served in the military for two years, and
saw others, both at the college level as well as high school, that
served as well.

And I think that the aspect that we just have to, we have got to,
understand is that having young people commit themselves to serv-
ice in this country in some way is essential to our society. That is
what I am after.

Sure, you can probably have a professional military corps that
are people that are in there for the duration, but we are missing
something. And what we are missing is that cross-section of society
that says, I am committed to doing some service to my country. I
mean, that is something you cannot buy: the ability of young
people to have that experience to give in some way, to then go on
and raise their families, because they know they have made an in-
vestment in some small way in the society that they are a part of.

That is what is behind these bills. I mean, that is really what is
at the heart and soul of what we are trying to do here, is to create
that kind of inspiration. And it has to.be done. We are losing some-
thing by not having young people in some way perform that kind
of duty in our society.

That is what we have stayed away from the draft angle and the
mandatory angle, because of reactions to that, but that is what we
are trying to do is to inspire that kind of service on a voluntary
basis with some incentives.

As to the question of how it differs from the programs that are
now in place of ~ummer programs, what we are finding is that
there is a mix of programs that are out there. New York City has a
voluntary youth program that extends throughout the year. It is
an outstanding program, and they have volunteers. We cfi'd a hear-
ing up there, and these kids were really turned on—turned on not
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only by working in senior citizens’ homes, in nutritic « centers, but
just turned on by the fact that they knew after they got out, they
had some assistance to go on to higher education.

It was a real inspiration to listen to these kids say that.

We also have' conservation corps. In your State you have got a
conservation corps operation.

The:se programs are all very different, and my point was: I do not
care vwhat.they look like. I do not care how they have been devel-
oped at the State and local level. What.I care about is the Federal
Government saying to the State and local governments, if you de-
vezop some kind of program along these lines, we are going to help
you and provide some match.

So, it 18 obviously a broader concept than what is contained in
the summer youth program. I think it is an expansion of that.
What I am looking for is some kind of expansion so that we can
provide an incentive, whether it is conservation, whether it is
health care, whether it is education—whatever the area is—to try
to provide that kind of-an incentive. So, it is a little broader.

Mr. GunbpersoN. Thank you.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Grandy?

Mr. Granpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

There are a lot of different proposals here, and I guess I will
start this way: what you are asking for is for the Federal Govern-
ment to provide incentives to States to create these programs. You
are not talking about a national corps quite yet; you are talking
about a confederacy of State corps. Is that. pretty much what we
are talking about?

Mr. PaNETTA. That is it exactly.

Mr. GRANDY. But basically—and he is not here, so I do not know
if you can answer for him—but what Dave McCurdy is talking
about is some kind of a national service corps——

Mzy. PaNETTA. Right.

Mr. GrANDY [continuing). Which you would go into prior to at-
tending college.

Mr. PanET?rA. That is correct; right.

Mr. Stxorsk1. You would not get any national student assistance
unless you did.

Mr. Granpy. Now, Gerry, when you were up in front of the com-
mittee a couple of weeks ago, talking about the American Conser-
vation Corps, do you see what you are talking about now as some-
thing that would be part and parcel of that?

Mr. Sikorskl. Yes.

Mr. Granpy. It would be?

Mr. Sixorskl. I think in 2157 and 2156, with just publicizing the
loan deferment for graduates and the loan cancellation for gradu-
ates in these programs, you are focusing on one unique pool of
youth resources in the country.

In Leon’s, you are stimulating—I think there are 40-some differ-
ent programs now at the State and local level. There are three new
State 'aws passed, and there are six new State programs. These
tl;éngs are coming along. You just stimulate them on a greenhouse
effect.

In the American Conservation Corps you are taking young
people and doing things that are incredible for our national needs

32




Q
EMC 79-017 0 - 87 - 2 33

IToxt Provided by ERI

29

in terms of our timber stands, our parks, our soil conservation, and
various programs on a local and very much on the idea that we are
going to have a locally-generated program, locally-administered
program, kind of a hybrid of Leon’s.

Those, I think, are all consistent, and doing something in the
high schesis that too can be called consistent. I think the point is
that with these we are not at the point in our country where we
can thrust ahead into some major national youth service. On the
other hand, we are convinced that citizenship and patriotism are so
important that we should not lose a generation of Americans, espe-
cially ones that have all kinds of economic and also ethical pres-
sures on them.

We should not lose them, and with these pregrams we can catch
a Jot of them.

Mr. PANETTA. Let me just add to that. For example, in Towa, 1
think you have a summer conservation corps program that is now
in effect and also an adult conservation corps, if I am not mistak-
en, that is also in effect.

What my approach would do is basically provide matching funds
for the programs that are already in existence there.

The other programs would actually transfer them to a national
model of some kind.

Mr. Granpy. All of this is noble and worthwhile, and I must say
that the expansion of a youth service corps into areas like home
health care for the elderly and expanding into service fields beyond
conservation, I think, has a broader appeal. I would not rule out
the conservation corps, but I think it needs a broader base.

But it seems to me, that given the cost and the relative economic
disparity between States—and I am sure I do not have to tell you
there is a big one between Iowa and California right now—it seems
to me we are going to have to have some kind of private-sector par-
ticipaiion along the line to make this work.

Now, a case In point: you have got some statistics in here about
percentiles of the Federal minimum wage being applied to encour-
age private employers to perhaps participate, to perhaps get in-
volved in this. Would we need to maintain that minimum wage at
the present level if the current minimum wage goes up, so that the
cost of the entire program does not go up over a period of time? I
mean, could you see States perhaps having that option to maintain
the viability of these programs?

Mr. PANETTA. That is why I provided a range of between 50 to
110 percent of the Federal minimum wage. I think you would have
to provide those ranges, because a lot of this varies obviously from
community to community.

But I think you are right: obviously to get private-sector involve-
ment, you are going to have to provide that kind of range.

Mr. GRANDY. And when you are talking in your statement about
the types of entry-level positions, for example, 700,000 jobs in the
health care field, what kind of jobs are you talking about here for
kids to participate in?

Mr. PANETTA. Basically what we are talking about is, for exam-
ple, aides going out for Kome health care service and help deliver
meals, or go out to the homes to assist counselors and others to
make sure that the senior citizens are doing well. There would be
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those that would be assigned to hospitals to help in a hospital situ-
ation as well as nursing homes.

In the New Yor) ~xperience, they had kids that were assigned to
nursing homes thav were assisting on the ward and assisting both
the nurses’ aides and others on the floor in that kind of operation.
Obviously, it takes some training, but they found that that was
very important assistance in terms of their ability to serve the
senior citizens.

Mr. Granpy. Is there any kind of liability problem with that
when you put basically novices into the home health care field?

Mr. PANETTA. Well, there probably is some kind of liability issue,
but, on the other hand, I think the way they do it is to basically
assign them to areas where they are not directly in any way either
providing medication or what-have-you to the patients, but basical-
ly assisting in terms of cleanup and that kind of thing with regard
to those that have to serve the patients directly.

But most of these communities that have these kinds of pro-
grams seem to be willing to accept that liability in exchange for
what they are providing young people in terms of that opportunity.

Mr. GrRaNDY. So, you do not see a window of vulnerability here to
bring a lot of——

Mr. PANETTA. Well, that’s one of the reasons we really want the
States and local governments to develop this kind of program. I
mean, for us to mandate it is one thing, but to say, look, if you can
develop and meet whatever litigation or insurance requirements
that you have at the local level, we are here to try and help you in
th:lf; effort. And that is really a decision that they would have to
make.

Mr. GranDY. Mr. Torricelli, in your absence, a lot of your col-
leagues were talking about your mandatory program. Would you
like to expand upon that just briefly?

STATEMENT OF HON. ROBERT TORRICELLI, A REPRESENTATIVE
IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Mr. TorriCELLL Thank you.

First, if I could apologize to the Chairman. There is no day when
the skies are so clear, the weather is so good that you still cannot
have air traffic delays from New York. [Laughter.]

I am realistic about the prospects of a mandatory program, but I
have designed one and introduced one because I believe, while we
should begin with voluntary community-based programs, the con-
cept of some form of national service in America, I believe, is really
inevitable for a couple of reasons:

First, because the current level of military expenditures for per-
sonnel is unsustainable. No economy of our size, growing at our
rate, can keep over two million men and women under arms at
these levels of salaries forever. At some time, we are going to have
to be realistic about it and return to asking people to give service
to their country.

And, second, because it is now clear, I think, at this point in our
country’s history that we will also not accept the level of taxation
or financial sacrifice that is required to meet our various social
needs—be they home health care, medical needs, education assist-
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ance, or conservation corps. People are not prepared to pay that
level of taxation.

And so the choices are simple. Either we accept, then, the social
problems we have in the country, this variety of difficulties, or we
find ha different resource. In my judgment, that resource is our
youth.

I do not think—although I know the vast majority of my col-
leagues disagree with me—that it is politically not sustainable to
take a position for a mandatory program.in this country. Indeed, as
Senator Hart—who held a similar view—and I traveled around the
country and visited a number of colleges, and, interestingly, as you
went around the country, the place where you found the most sup-
port was among young people.

And the reason is, and the reason why I am apprehensive about
the voluntary program is, if you say to young people: “we are going
to add a stage of American life where everyone will take a year,
rather than the three years for your graduate education, or the
four years for your umiargraduate education, there is a year you
are going to provide a service to your country.”

d if people felt that everyone was giving that time, that
nobody was getting a jump on a job, or school, or a career, but ev-
erybody was giving that time, they would agree to it. I have found
in universities tremendous support for it. Not that there would not
be political problems, there would be—or organizational problems.
It is a vast undertaking, but there is real support for it.

And that is why, for purposes of keeping our eye, I think, on that
ultimate goal, I have introduced a mandatory program. I am realis-
tic about its prospects, but, nevertheless, I think it would be a con-
tribution.

Mr. GranDpy. Well, your program is not in front of us. Does it in-
clude a military and a civilian option?

Mr. TorrICELLL. It does. The concept basically is as we defined it:
that young Americans, upon approaching the age of 18, would
know that between the years of 18 and 25, they had to give a year
of service to the United States. They could select any year, so if
they wanted to complete their education first, or they wanted to
postpone it, but they would say what that year is going to be; they
would then have an option.

They could enter into military service or a variety of civilian al-
ternatives defined in the legislation: education assistance, home
health care, working with the local government, a conservation
corps in national parts. And they would have their choice, and they
could exercise their first choice. But that agency would still get
their own criteria. So, for example, the Peace Corps, if the person
vg:ar.e not qualified, could exercise a second choice and a third
choice.

And ultimately if they were not qualified for any one of a variety
of opportunities, they would be assigned to the military, where
they just go through basic training, so they would help constitute a
reserve force in the country, which I think is also necessary mili-
tarily, and then released back into the civilian population.

Mr. Granpy. Well, if I could ask one more question, Mr. Chair-
man——

Mr. MARTINEZ. Sure.
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Mr. Granpy [continuing]. I tend to think that is not an entirely
terrible idea, and it justifies.

M-:. TorricELLL. I take that as an endorsement of sorts. [Laugh-
ter.]

Mr. Granpy. I would, if I were you, because I think there is a lot
to be said for requiring service. I mean, a lot of what you gentle-
men have said about trying to instill, then perbaps the way to do it
is, in a sense, to pull them in kicking and screaming.

The one thing that I think is good about some kind of mandatory
service is that it is a great leveler. It brings people from a lot of
different economic environments together on a playing field, and
sometimes the incentive approach tends to isolate into different
chapters.

I was going to ask you, Leon, when you are talking about efforts
that are made to recruit economically diradvantaged youth, would
they have an advantage over somebody who was not economically
disadvantaged in going into this program? How does that mecha-
nism work?

Mz. PANETTA. Obviously aiiybody could volunteer for these pro-
grams. We have asked that the stress be on economically disadvan-
taged only because those are the people that are out there, obvious-
ly, that are not being served at all, rather than lose them to either
drugs, or crime, or the welfare system. It made sense to try tu
reach out to them to get them into these volunteer services.

And that is basically, if you use the New York City plan as an
example of that, that is where they are reaching, and it is remark-
able to see how successful it is with these kids.

Mr. GRaNbDY. I think my time has expired, Mr. Chairman.

Thank you.

Mr. MArRTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Grandy.

Mr. TorriCELLI. Mr. Chairman, could I just respond to that point,
if I could, because two of the things that I know that had motivat-
ed Senator Hart the most in really beginning this effort, I think, in
this decade—since he is no longer among us to represent himself, I
will make two of those pvints—one was the one you just raised in
that my concern about a voluntary program is that it will be open
to everybody, but it will not be joined by everybody.

And one of the things thet. we want to achieve i3 that we have a
problem in this country of t..e segmentation of our life, socially and
economically. If you are growing up poor in America, the chances
are greater than at any time in our history, that everybody you
know is going to be poor. You have limited ambitions, limited
knowledge of the geography, or of different pecple and cultures in
our country. Chances are you are not going to gain them.

That was not always true. For all the things that can be said
about the draft in the past that were bad and that hurt the coun-
try, one of the things that it did is: all Americans came to know
each other. For one moment in their lives they came together in a
common pursuit, with a goal.

I do not think that just because the i.....un is not at war, we still
cannot have that. We still have problems just as serious; that re-
quire just as much effort; and you can still call upon people to
come together from every segment.
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My concern is: we could create a program that is a problem for
the poor to address the problems of the poor. Well, poverty is not
just the problem of the poor; it is everybody’s problem.

That is why I would like the mandatory aspects of it as well.

Mr. Granpy. I would just say that in my experience, the only
two areas where there is a great kind of coming together, a melting
pot of all society, is, one, the military, and the other is the theatre,
and short of a massive Federal subsidy of theatre—which I wil] in.
troduce later in this session——

[Laughter.]

I think this idea has real merit, and I thank you for being here
today.

Mr. MARTINEZ. As long as it is oriented to youth service, we will
all support it. [Laughter.]

Mr. Sixorsk1. We have in our office three paintings of WPA art
that are remarkable in their strength, and that program was-—iii
fact, I think someone did a study not too long ago in terms of the
arts, and a high percentage of the people of a certain age were sus-
tained during the thirties by those programs.

There is a remarkable success rate with these programs, with
costs up front as well.

but just because we are not all the way there at that step political-
ly or socially, or whatever, does not mean that we cannot do some
things that will save some kids and do some things and show patri-
otism znd citizenship.

That is what Zeon is doing, and what Bumpers and I are doing,
and others.

I have some problems with the proposal that would—I went to
school on what is now a Pell grant; it was called the Economic Op-
portunity grant and work stu Y and guaranteed student loans, and
I worked, and I was an orderly in a nursing home during high
school 2% years to get my first little downpayment on my first
year at the University of Minnesota.

I see some proposals as a threat to that occurring. If I went now
under some proposals into the military, I would get a few years. If
I went into tke Peace Corps, I would get 1 year for 2 years in the

more.

So, if we are concerned about the economic playing field, we
have got to make sure that the programs that we are choosing sre
onelals that not only de some good, but also do not do some harm as
well.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Sikorski.

I have the same apprehensions, but I think that there are vari-
ations of what he has proposed that would probably fit the bill. A
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I think almost everybody needs some practical experience. One of
the things that Mr. Torricelli was saying-—and before I turn to Mr.
Jontz, allow me a few minutes of commentary—is that you bring
people together.

At 17 years of age, I went into the Marine Corps, and all of a
sudden, lo and behold, I was thrown into an environment with
people from Arkansas, Wisconsin, Minnesota; you name it, they
were all there.

It was a whole new experien.~, and I saw young men during that
short time in boot camp change their whole attitude and perspec-
tive of life. and some of them—in fact, most of them—gained new
ambition, new determination, even new initiative. That was taught
there in just that short period of time.

So, the idea of 3 or 4 years of service is not necessary, if you
think in terms of the concentrated training you get in boot camp,
and that has to do with a lot of changes in people’s whole lives.
They went on to—

Mr. TorriceLLl. To losing a lot of that.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Yes, and the national pride that you are talking
about. I think that anybody who was in the service, even like Leon
for 2 years, has the pride of doing service for their country, and
that goes a long way.

Mr, Jontz.

Mr. JoNTz. Mr. Chairman, I have no questions. I do want to -
thank you gentlemen for your statements, and I am very pleased to
see r:his legislation introduced. I hope I will have the chance to sup-
port it.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Mr. Torricelli, your statement will be entered in
the record in its entirety. I think you have pretty much covered
your legislation, but I would like to give you the opportunity to add
anything you want.

{Prepared statement of Hon. Robert Torricelli follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF HON. ROBERT G. TORRICELLY, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FroM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Twenty-five years ago, President John F. Kennedy founded the Peace
Corps. In the years following his assassination, VISTA was establ ished to
ful£ill domestic nceds. These programs and others are in place. Thousands
of young people participate. But the overall framework of npational youth
service 18 missing.

To address this need, I have introduced in the 100th Congress H.R.
1468, the Select Commission on National Service Opportunities Act of
1987. This lejislation would establish a high~level commiseion to report
to the President on possibilities for civilian and military npational
youth service. The commission would be directed to examine both voluntary
and mandatory alternatives. My bill is identical to the one I introduced
during the 99th Congress.

In 1988, Presidential candidates of both parties will need to face
the issue of national service. National service is about education. It is
about jobs. It is about the security of our country. I% is an issue that
must be dealt with soon.

The young people of America often speak of two.concepts: rights and
rewards. I suggest that we add another word to thiz vocabulary:
responsibility. This country gives it citizens many benefits: economic
and political oﬁportunlty, securlty from foreign enemies, free education
through high school and 3ubsidized education after that. I believe that
cach of us has an obligation to do something in return for soclety at
large.

Some of America's youth will want to serve in the armed forces. The
history of the Vietnam Var teaches us thut our fighting units are {11~
gerved vhen the privileged and well-connected can avoid duty. The armed
forces protect all citizens, 8o they must represent all citizens. An army
that has no stake in its soclety cannot defend it.
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Those young people who choose nct to serve in the military should
have other options open to them. Many progrexs already exist. The
Civilian Conservation Corps, founded by Pranklin D, Rocsevelt, has a
80118 record. The New York City Volunteer Corps, the San Prancisco
Conservation Corps, and dozent of other state and local programs give
opportunities to jobless youtl:. The Commission I propose to establish
will identify existing youth service programs and propose options for
alternative ones.

Critics of today's American society have said that our youth lacks
purpose. I do not agree: the purpose is thera, but has not been
adequately tapped. Perhaps young people feel that this country is alreacdy -
built and there {8 nothing further they can contribute. We need to show

that the work of our nation {8 not finished; much rema.ns to be

done. FPorests need to be maintained; the homeless nust b2 housed;

children need to be tutoreds the sick and {nfim need care. These are all

needs that that society does not yat adequately meet.

Another potential benefit of nation ‘5o~ "= youth employment.
At 2 time when 7.5 million Americans are ..uk.. * ¢ tork -~ and youth
unepployment {8 especilally high -=- national zervice r.ojects can help
develop skills useful for tho labor market. Por many soung people,
service projects might be their first e¢xperience of productive
exployrent.

Finally, I believe that the intengible benefits of national service
night be the most important of all. Our society is increasingly
polarized. There are growing gaps in wealth, income, education and
opportunity. National service projects have the potentisl of bringing
together youth from different walksu of life and instilling a common
purpose of rational growth.

Most importantly, perhaps, Anerica's youth will have the chance to
gain a sense of pride -- not the pride of parades and empty speeches, but
pride in vork, przide in our country's achlevements, and pride in
themselves. It is thig spirit that will enable our nation to face the
challenges of the next century with the fortitude that has brought us
through our first two hundred years. .

The vision of John P. Kennedy is ag real today as it was in 1960.
The needs are as great, if aot greater. The bicentennial of our
Constitution {8 & good time to take stock of what we want for America. If
we want a nation that thatl is stcfonger and more prosperous, we must
challenge our youth. For America to remain a just and free society, the
leaders of tomorrow nust knci” what justice and freedom mean.
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Mr. TorriceLLi. I would only like to add two points if I could,
and aappreciate the opportunity to put my statement into the
record.

First, I thought it might be helpful to the committee to know
that my own participation in this Eega.n with a simple questica: I
asked at a hearing of the Secretary of Defense about what the sav-
ings would be if there were a national mandatory service program,
and we greatly exFanded the pool of people going into our reserve
and t\;vere able to lower the cost of what we were paying basic re-
cruits.
anis answer surprised me, and it may you. He said, “I don't

ow.” ,

1 said, well, somebody must have studied this. Whai are the
costs? It would cost a lot of money to bring people into a national
service program; on the other hand, you are spending $100 billion
in salaries every year. Is my program more expensive, or is the cur-
rent system more expensive?

Idon’t know.

And so one of the pieces of legislation that I have introduced, in
addition to the mandatory program, is a study commission. Let the
Pentagon and our social service agencies and the executive branch
come together. With the programs we are talking about here today,
be they mandatory or voluntary, let’s find out if there is money to
be saved, or not. .

The final J)oint I wanted to make is that the skills we are talking
about providing to our country are not simply 13 year-olds coming
with no basic skills.

Part of the reason why I designed a program that is for 18-to-25-
yea~-olds is, some of the skills we need the most are of the highest

uality—legal at a time when it is hard to get support for Legal

ervices Corporation; medical, at a time when it is difficult. to get
new medical graduates into urban centers and into rural areas
where care is needed.

1 have a belief that if our government is providing a $40,000 or
$50,000 medical education to a student, or a $20,000 or $30,000
legal education to a student, it is not too much to ask that they
sgend a year or two in service somewhere where it is important to
the country.

That is why I think that, as you consider this concept, you look
beyond the 18-year-old and also those a real investment has been
made by the country for quality education to also ha-e an opportu-
nity to give something back.

I only wanted to make those two final points, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Let me ask you one last question, unless Mr.
dJontz has another question. Do you have any other questions?

Mr. JonTz. No.

Mr. MARrTINEZ. The cost of the study, did somebody project that?
Do you have the cost?

Mr. TorRICELLL. We believe that for a million dollars—J think
that was in the original proposal—that we thought on the social
and military side, you could do a study. I think my legislation,
which includes a tutal stuc?' of military manpower needs, was at $3
milhign if we incorporated looking at future military manpower
needs.
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Mr. GRanpY. Mr. Chairman, may I ask one more question?

Mr. MARrTINEZ. Certainly.

Mr. Granpy. This may seem obvious, but I assume that your
mandatory program is mandatory for females as well as males. Is
that correct?

Mz. Torriceril. Yes. I think that a critical component of this,
from all of our experience and early life with the draft, is there are
no exceptions.

The program must be designed on the assumption that there is
something that everybody can do in this country, regardless of sex,
or race, or social class, or education. No matter how simple or diffi-
cult the task, everyi..ady can do something for this country, because
we want to tie the concept of service to the concept of citizenship.
‘Everybody has got equal rights as a citizen; everybody has got
equal responsibilities as a citizen.

Mr. GraNDY. Is it one year or two?

Mr. TorricELL. My program is for one.

Mr. Granbpy. All right.

Mr. Torricerul. Though I will say this: as you try to design the
mix of who chooses education, who chooses conservation corps, who
chooses military, you might have to adjust how long you serve in
order to make some more attractive than others to meet the
demand and the need.

Mr. MArTINEZ. Mr. Torricelli, are you through?

Mr. TorriceLLl Yes, I am, Mr. Chairman, thank you.

Mr. MartiNEz. Mr. Torricelli, there are some other questions
that come to mind that I would like to ask you, and if my staff can
submit those to you later, and if you would respond, we will leave
the record open.

Mr. TorriceLLL Please do.

Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you very much for your testimony.

Mr. TorriceLLl. (2entlemen, I apologize again for the delay.

Mr. MarTiNEZ. We will next hear from Dr. Frank Newman,
president of the Commission of the States, Denver, Colorado; Mel
King, Director of Community Fellows Program, Cambridge, Massa-
chusetts; Diane Hedin, Director of the Center for Youth Develop-
ment and Research, St. Paul, Minnesota; David Smith, president of
National Job Corps Alumni Association, New Orleans, Louisiana;
and Lesli Boyd, Youth Service Volunteer, Washington State Serv-
ice Corps, Olympia, Washington.

Welcome, all of you, and we will start with Dr. Newman.

STATEMENT OF DR. FRANK NEWMAN, PRESIDENT OF
EDUCATION COMMISSION OF THE STATES, DENVER, CO

Mr. NEwmaN. Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to
come, and I am here on behalf of the Education Commission of the
States, an organization that the Commission has put together
called the Campus Compact.

The Commission, as - ou probably know, is a compact of the State
designed to help on ¢ ..catior policy, sc it is chaired by the gover-
nor, currently Bill Clinton, and is always vice chaired by a legisla-
tor.
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The Compact is an organization of several hundred colleges and
universities founded originally by the Education Commission of the
States and three university presidents— presidents of Brown, Stan-
ford, and Georgetown—and its purpose was to encourage college
students in the community service for all of the reasons that have
been in evidence here.

If I could, I would like to make four points, besides the testimony
that I have put in the record.

First, there are really two problems we have been talking about
here. They are connected, but they are somewhat different. Now,
one that we have been talking about is at-risk youth, young people
that are not going to make it effectively in society. That is of major
concern to the Commission. We have got a major program on this.

For those students, the problem is not lack of jobs, but lack of
confidence in the ability to get jobs, find jobs, hold jobs in the cur-
rent society.

One of the best avenues we have seen to that is the service corps
kind of approach that Congressman Panetta was talking about. I
have had a chance to visit many of these programs personally, and
the plain fact is, they work.

e second problem we have been talking about has been pri-
marily one focused on college and university students. There is no
question—and we have got a lot of evidence that shows this—there
has been a decline in the focus of such students on their civic re-
Sfionsibilities, their willingness to participate in the larger issues,
their willingness to be involved even in such things as voting. That
has been declining now for almost 20 years. Congressman Panetta
called it an inward focus. I would call it a self-interest focus, as op-
posed to a focus on civic responsibility.

All the measures of civic responsibility decline; all the measures
of self-interest—interest in money, prestige, and so on—rise. The
dangers of that are, I think, obvious, but Jjust to give you one small
example, we have been very concerned in recent years about the
difficulty of electing effective people to school boards. As fewer and
fewer people vote in those elections, the small self-interested
groups have inordinate power in those cases, making school boards
less and less effective.

At any rate, the at-risk youth are simply the exaggerated version
of the college student with lower skills as a citizen. I mean, if you
reach a certain point, you no longer are a citizen at all; you are
disco}gmected from society, and that is what is happening to at-risk
vouth.

So, these are two problems we are dealing with in the same dis-
cussion. They are connected, but I think that it is important to see
the difference between them.

The second point: the key issue, it seeras to me, is the question of
the characteristics that we bzlieve are essential in a current work-
ing democracy in today’s world.

What do you want? Well, you need some things: self-confidence.
One of the things that we discovered was that one reason students
are less and less involved in issues of society is they believe they
cannot have any influence on them. They are cynical about their
ability to influence those issues, so self-confidence, the belief you
can get something done, willingness to take risks, willingness to be
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involved, a willingness to see the larger issues, the habit of service,
those, it seems to me, are essential characteristics, whether you are
talking about the first category of student or the second.

Incidentally, it just turns out that these characteristics also
happen to be essential if our economy is going to be effective in the
very intense international competition we are involved in. So
while we are talking here about building a sense of community
service and the sense of civic responsibility, those same characteris-
tics turn out to be what we ought to be talking about if we want
the United States to remain a leader in an intensely economic,
competitive world.

Third point: mandatory versus voluntary. After a lot of discus-
sion, the executive committee of the Compact ended up favoring a
widespread voluntary system for reasons that are political, prag-
matic, and financial, all of which have been discussed here.

The point I want to make is, whether one believes in a mandato-
ry or a voluntary system, the logical place to start is with as wide-
spread a voluntary system as possible. We are seeing now, just in
the time that we have been involved in this in the last couple of
years, a growing appreciation of the urgency of this issue.

It seems to me, as we go on building a widespread voluntary
system, particularly through the use of educational benefits, you
are simply building the acceptance of a broader-based system, in-
cluding a mandatory system, if that should turn out to be possible.

Then finally there are some powerful reasons for addressing this
through the question of student aid that go beyond even what we
are talking about here, and that is that the student aid system as it
exists now in many ways is becoming counter-productive for the
very reasons we are talking about.

There is a tendency to think of student aid primarily as a means
of encouraging and helping students through college. In fact, stu-
dent aid has its own educational characteristics. Different forms of
sfudent aid teach students different things. In the discussion that
has come out here earlier, it is apparent that is a factor.

We did an extensive look at this. What is happening in student
aid at the moment is, we are shifting steadily toward loans. Loans
have now become the dominant form of student aid. Loans in large
amounts—] am not talking about small amounts of loans that help
tide students uver short periods—but large amounts of loans, which
we are now into, create exactly the reverse set of characteristics
that you have been describing.

Students that graduate with loans like $15,000 out of undergrad-
uate schools, or §50,000 or $75,000 out of medical school, or $30,000
out of law school, which are now quite common, and are going up,
those students have the wrong characteristics. Instead of being con-
cerned about how they are going to serve the public, they are in-
creasingly concerned about how they are going to take care of
themselves.

We did a series of interviews with students, both undergraduates
and medical students, and when you ask them those questions, the
responses are often quite bitter. Do you have a responsibility to pay
back through service? Listen, I have got a responsibility to me; I'm
saddled with all these loans.
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Also, we want people to be citizens. We want them to choose the
right careers. All the research data shows that students are in-
creasingly prone to pick careers of high-income return if they come
out with 1arge amounts of loans for obvious reasons.

, Minority students are less likely to go to college under high
oans.

So, for reasens that go beyond anything we have talked about
here, we ought to be thinking about these issues simply from the
point of view of correcting what has become an imbalance.

You asked Congressman McCurdy what the reaction of that com-
munity would be, and by that cominunity I presume you mean the
university/college community. The presidents of the Compact,
which now range from the most elite universities to community
college, the public, private, black, white, Catholic, whatever, it is a
broad array of presidents, have increasingly favored moving stead-
ily in the direction of student aid based:on service.

I think they would not favor eliminating all other forms of stu-
dent aid for some pragmatic reasons. I think they would favor stu-
dent aid based heavily on service, but also on need and on work.
There is some great advantage in students working as they go
g:rough school, in addition to the kind of community service work

ey do.

There is a lot to be learned from straight work opportunities. I
think, in other words, that the education community favors stead-
ily moving ourselves in these directions—moving away from loans;
moving toward these other mechanisms.

I think it is also possible that these Federal efforts already are
being supplemented by private efforts, private funding, and States
are increasingly steering themselves, both in the kind of programs,
service corps programs, but ali., in student aid programs based
around community service.

So, I think it is likely that we can build multiple forms of en-
couraging forms, either through service corps programs, through
student aid programs from the Federal level, student aid programs
of the State level, and student aid programs on the private level,
that encourage students into various forms of community service,
and that if we do, it will be a powerful positive thing for the coun-
try, and maybe even an essential thing for the country.

Just oxe final closing point: it is not that we have not got the
experience in doing this. We have a variety of programs of one sort
or another that deal with this already. It is only that they deal
with a relatively small percentage of students now.

We have had a long history with not only the G.L bill, but with
ROTC. We have had a long history of volunteer programs involving
:pllege students on the campus of quite a wide variety of insti‘u-

ions.

We have had considerable experience with the service corps pro-
grams for disadvantaged youth who need that kind of training in
30-or-so locations around, the country.

So, the problem for us is not that we have to design things. It is
that we have to expand them to the point that they are really
workable and become a coherent set of ways that we encourage
people to understand their responsibility.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Dr. Newman.

RAN
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Mr. King.

STATEMENT OF MELVIN H. KING, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY
FELLOWS PROGRAM, MASSACHUSETTS INSTITUTE OF TECH-
NOLOGY, CAMBRIDGE, MA

Mr. KING. For the record, my name is Melvin H. King. Current-
ly, I am on the faculty of the Massachusetts Institute of Technolo-
gy, as a member of the Department of Urban Studies and Plan-
ning, and I direct a program called the Community Fellows Pro-
gram.

I am formerly a member of the Massachusetts Legislature, and
prior to that I have worked on street corners with youth for 15
years. Recently, I developed what I called the Youth Entrepreneur-
ial Development Program, which takes a different tack as we think
about the term youth at risk. We like to believe that these are
youths who take risks and, as risk-takers, fit the model of people
who should be entrepreneurs.

And so we have put together a program for small business devel-
opment and self-employment for young people 16 to 24 years of age.

As I see it, there is a need for youth to have a way to get money
for college education or for acquiring technical skills, because our
society has not evolved to a place where it recognizes that educa-
tion and the acquisition of gkills should be made available at all
levels at public expense.

If our society is going to raise its level, it must recognize tle
statement that is made by the United Negro College fund that “A
mind is a terrible thing to waste.”

In our failure to see that it is just as important to provide free
education from grades 13 through masters’ and doctoral programs
as it is from kindergarten through grade 12, we are losing a lot of
creativity and talent. Who knows, the cure for AIDS and cancer,
ways to create a pollution-free environment, et cetera, may be
buried in the lack of opportunity and hope experienced by millions
in this country.

As stated by Dr. Newman, the models are already before us: the
G.L bill, Peace Corps, VISTA. The G.I bill provides the opportunity
for thousands of people to receive a higher education who would
never have the opportunity to do so. Through this opportunity,
there is a real explosion of creativity, talent, and leadership, which
moved this country’s economy and help to catapult it into its place
of leadership in the world.

The problem is, as I see it, that it is not befitting for our society
that the only vehicle for unleashing that talent is through the mili-
tary as a reward for taking a gun in one’s hand.

Therefore, I come before you, urging you to take the steps that
are necessary to say t~ you that we value peace work and public
service.

Creativity must be unleashed to create communities, to have
clean air and water, lead-free houses, day care, a literate society,
more music, arts, and sports.

We must say we value this kind of work by saying do this public
work for two years, earn while you are doing it, learn about your-
self, other people, and the body-politic, acquire ckills in huinan re-
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lations, and accrue enough money to cover four years of college at
a State institution.

If participants ci.oose private college, then they ought to be
able to apply the costs that they would get to a private institution.

Dnring my campaign for the Eighth Congressional District, as we
talked about this concept of public service and a peaceful approach
to getting resources for college, it was very well received.

As I stated, I am a member of the faculty at MIT, where tuition,
room and board are $16,970 per year. As we look at other schools
in the area, we see that their tuition and costs are the same.

And even as we look at the State schools, the combination of the
tuition and the cost of room and board make it impossible for large
numbers of youngsters to j.articipate.

1t is not enough to say that opportunities to scholarship and loan
grograms are available. Many of the youth who join the military

0 so becanse they are told that it is a route to training and educa-
tion. However, there are many who desire to do public service work
instead and who see the possibility of access to an education
through a public service program.

This possibility is crucial because motivation to remain in junior
high and high school increases directly with the belief that access
to skill development and higher education can be a reality.

One thing I would like to just describe is some of the work on the
street corners and how we showed that what we are talking about
is a motivational process. We were able to get scholarships and to
find ways of getting some of the young people in a public housing
development to go to college, and at a time when none of them in
that particular development had had that kind of access.

The surprising thing was, and maybe not so surprising, that once
we were able to get three or four of the young people in from that
particular area, other youngsters would come to the center, want-
ing to find out ways of getting that kind of support. And I was
struck one day by a youngster who came in and he said, I want to
get some help, too. gilly’s brother is going to college, and I know
thalil: I am smarter than he is; and if he can do it, then I can as
well.

I do not think that we really understand the kind of impact of
modeling that can happen once a program like this is in place and.
how it will have a direct impact on the younger boys and girls in a
particular community, as they are able to look up and see others
whom they can identify with or involved in this kind of program.

The figures are there. Any analysis of demographics, particularly
with resgect to young people of color, clearly show that our failure
to provide access to education has disastrous social, political, and
personal consequences.

There is no need to recount the statistics referring to the tragedy
of substance abuse, school dropouts, prisoners, suicides, unwanted
pregnancies, and unemployment. We have too many victims al-
ready of hopelessness and despair.

But I would like to suggest that we think of our own selfish in-
terests, particularly with respect to a recognition that for many of
us who look forward to social security and retirement, we ough’ to
be the loudest in support of any program that would increase the
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gross national product, because it would have a direct bearing on
our own szlf-interests in lerms of vetirement.

That is why I believe we need a vrogram of youth service, or, as I
would like to call it, the future corps. And I like to call it that be-
cause it is about the future. I¢ is about the future of the youth; it is
about the future of this country; it is about the future of our physi-
cal and mental health, and the future of the social security system,
as | stated earlier.

In Massachusetts, we have filed legislation, which is before a
Subcommittee of the Education Committee, to develop a program
which parallels Representative Leon Panetta’s bill. This legislation
would provide matching grants to cities and towns, and public and
private nonprofit organizations to develop service opportunities.

The Committee on Education thought so much of the bill that
they put together a subcommittee to try and work it out so that we
could present to the total legislature a workable bill. And so we
have a commitiee that is made up of youth, legislators, educators,
people from public ~nd private human services and environmental
agencies.

I have learned recently about a proposul filed by Senator Pell on
behalf of Father Hesburgh of Notre Dame, to have a Peace Corps
type of approach, simiiar to the ROTC. I would highly endorse this
concept and would only caution that if it works for those who are
accepted to the schools, then we need to find a way to do something
similar that will encourage our youth to stay in high school and
allow them to knew that they can get into college where the finan-
cial resources will be available.

Now, I have not addressed the costs Jf this type of program and
am hard-pressed to do so, knowing full well the expansion of the
military budget over the last several years has reduced the amount
of money available for programs like this. So I put it in your terms,
and that is, somewhere I jearned that most countries, societies or
empires die or deteriorate from within.

The handwriting seems to be on the wall for this to happen to
ours. Pollution, crumbling infrastructure, increased infant mortali-
ty rates, diseases, self-destruction through substance abuse, dishon-
esty in government, the dissatisfaction and lack of involvement of
millions of Americans in the body-politic, a disproportionate share
of thle commonwealth being used for militarism, are but a few ex-
amples.

The loss of creative talent and energy, I believe, can be turned
around with a commitment to programs such as the future corps;
not for make-shift employment, but out of a desire to maximize
human potential.

Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Melvin H. King follows:]
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For the record my name is Melvin H. King. Currently, I am
on the faculty of the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, as
an Adjunct Professor of Urban Studies and Planning, and I am the
Director of the Community Fellows Program. I am a former member
of the Massachusetts Legislature, and I have -orked on street
corners with youth for fifteen years. Recently I've developed
the Youth Entrepreneurial Development Project, which encourages
young people to take risks to get into entrepreneurial self
employment.

As I see it, there i8 a need for youth to have a way to get
money for a college education or for acquiring technical skills,
because your society has not evolved to a place where it
recognizes that education, and the acquisition of skills should
be made available at all levels at the public expense. If our
society is going to raise its level, it must recognize the
gtatement of the United Negro College Fund that, "A mind is a
terrible thing to waste."™ In our failure to see that it is Just
as important to provide free education from grades 13 through
Masters and Doctoral Programs, as it is from kindergarten to 12,
ve are losing lots of creativity and talent. Who knows, the cure
tor ALDS and cancer, ways to create a pollution free environment.
etc. may be buried in the lack of opportunity and hope
experienced by millions in this country.

Ironically, the model is already before us. I am talking
about the GI Bill, which provided the opportuni*y tor thousands
of people to receive a higher education. Through this new
opportunity, the world wide explosion of this country's
productive economic leadership was activated. Through the GI
Bill, we unleased all that genius and talent.

It is not befitting our society that the only vehicle for
unleashing that talent is through the nilitary; as a reward for
taking a gun in one's hand. fTherefore, I come before this body
urging you to take the steps that are necessary to say t¢to youth
that we value peace work and public service. Creativity nust be
unleashed to create community, to have clean air and water, lead
free houses, day-care, full literacy, more music, arts, and
sports. We must say we value this kind of work by saying do this
public work for two years: earn while you are doing it; learn
about yourself, other people, and the body politic; acquire
skills in human relations; and accrue enough noney to cover four
years of college at a state institution. 1If participants choose
a private college, they will. be able to apply the costs of a
public education to the private institution.

During my campaign for the 8th Congressional District,
discussion about the concept of a public service, peaceful
approach to getting the resources for coliege was well received.
I am 2 member of the faculty of M.I.T., and its tuition, room and
board is $16,970 per year. As we look at Boston University,
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Boston College and others in the region, they are not too far
behind. Tuition alone at the University of Massachusetts/Boston
is $1,560. The program we develop should allow youngsters to
make it through four years of a public coliege or universicy.
Even those institutions present economic barrie 3 to many of our
youth. It is not enough to say that opp inities through
scholarships and loan programs are available ny of the youth,
who join the military, do so because they a. 51d tnut it is a
route to training and educacvion. However, there are many who
desire to do public service work instead, and who see the
possibility of access to an education through a public sgervice
progran. This poosibility is crucial because motivation to
renain in Jjunior high and high school increases directly with a
belief that access to skill development and higher education can
be a reality. Having access would say to youth that they have a
stake in this society. It would give more of them reason to be
involved in making this society work and in doing those things
that would insure freedonm.

I believe in a concept of a voluntary national gervice as an
opportunity to meet public needs, as well as a way for youth to
get the higher education they will need in order to become more
productive members of society. A program through which youth
could gee their goals, hopes and ambitions fulfilled will have a
dramatic impact cn changing youth from self destructive and
community destructive behavior. Any analysis of demographics,
particularly with respect to young people of coior, will clearly
show that our failure to provide access to education has
disastrous social, political and personal consequences. There is
no need to recount the statistics referring to the tragedy of
substance abuse, school drops outs, prisoners, suicides, unwanted
pregnancies, and unemployment. There are already too many
victims of hopelessness and despair.

If we think o. our own selfish interests of social security
and retirement, we would be the loudest in support of any program
that would increase the gross national product, because it would
have a direct bearing c¢u our retirement. Thus, We need a program
of youth service. [Or the "Future Corps" as I like to call it%,
and I would humbly submit neming it the Future Corps, because it
is about the future. It is about the future of this country, the
future of our physical and mental health, and the future of the
social security system as I stated earlier.)

In Massachusetts, we have filed legis’ation, which is before
a Subcommitiee of the Education Committee, to develop a program
which parallels Representative Leon Panetta's bill. This
legislation would provide matching grants to cities and towns,
and public and private non-profit organizations to develop
gervics opportunities. There was a positive response from the
Committee on Education to +his bill. With a good working
conmittoe consiating of gyouths, legislatures, educators, and
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people from public and private human services and environzents
agencies, we anticipate getting a bill betrore the full
legislature sometime in HNovember. I have recently learned about
a proposal filed by Senator Pell on behalf of Father Hesburgh of
Notre Dame, to have a peace corps type of approach similar to
R.0.T.C. I would highly endorse this concept, and would only
caution that if it works for those who are accepted to the
schools, then we need to find a way to do something similar that
will encourage our youth to stay in high school, and allow thenm
to know they can get into o college where the financial resources
will be available.

~ I have not addressed the costs of this type of progrem. I
em hard pressed to do 8o, knowing full well the expansion Of the
military budget over the last seven years has reduced the amount
of money avallable for programs like this. So I put it in your
terms, and that is, somewhere I learned that most countries,
societies or empires die or deteriorate trom within. The
handwriting seems to be on the wall for this to happen to ours.
Pollution, crumbling infrastructure, increased jinfant mortality
retes, diseases, self destruction through substance abuse,
dishonesty in government, the dissatistaction and lack of
involvement of millions of Americeans in the body rolitic, a
disproportionate share of the commonwealth being used for
militarism, are but & few examples. The 1088 of creative talent
and energy, I believe, can be turned around with a commitment to
programns such as the Future Corps; not for meke shift employment,
but out of a desire to maximize human potentiaml. Thank you.
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. King.

Let me advise the panel that we are going to try to adhere to the
5minute rule in the time left for the hearing, and that you may
summarize. Your statements will be entered in the record in their
entirety.

Ms. Hedin, why don’t you start?

STATEMENT OF DIANE HEDIN, PROFESSOR, CENTER FOR YOUTH
DEVELOPMENT AND RESEARCH, UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA,
ST. PAUL, MN

Ms. HeEpiN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am really pleased to be able to talk with you teday, and you
have my written testimony.

I want to first say that my interest in this area comes from about
15 years of work as a person who has developed programs, evaluat-
ed youth service programs, and run youth service programs and a
series of studies I do primarily of Minnesota youth about topics of
this nature.

I want to summarize my testimony in terms of three points.

First, is to talk a little bit about yourg people’s attitude about
service, in general, and national service, in particular.

Second, the role young people think they can play in solving
unmet needs. I think that is a crucial point because if the pro-
grams are only good for youth and not good for the society, they
are not going to be very appealing.

Finally, the impact that community service ha: on youth partici-
pants.

My first point, though, is, I think that it is critically important
that we do understand how young people feel about the issue of
service. This is a program that requires young people to be the ini-
tiators, to be the providers of service, and unless they are interest-
ed and willing, it seems to me it is not going to work very well,
different than other youth policies where they primarily are the
consumer.

I am also concerned about the way in which the current debate
is framed, that the call for national service is primarily seen as a
way to remediate young people in terms of their level of personal
and social responsibilities. And while I think there is a good deal of
evidence to suggest that young people are ever more concerned
about making money, having more power and status—and there
the numbers are really dramatic; there are 20 and 30 percentage-
point increases in the last 15 years—actually, the decrease in inter-
est in helping other people to be altruistic is not as dramatic.

Those decreases are more like five percentage points. So, I think
what we really have are young people who want both. They want
to be of use to the society, but they also want more self-interests as
goals as well.

Wkile I think there are very encouraging counter-trends that Dr.
Newman has talked about in higher education and some in second-
ary education to allow young people to be of service, most of it, I
think, still is at the level of pious statements about how good it
would be if our young people were better citizens.
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There are actually rather few concrete incentives and pathways
for them to do service, and that I think if national service and vol-
untary national service is going to have any impact, then I think
we really have to find ways to encourage our secondary schools,
our elementary schools, and our colleges to go beyond the state-
ment that this is a good idea and have real incentives and actual
pr?\?rams 80 young people can be of service.

ow, to the guestion of how do young people feel about a pro-
gram of national voluntary service, Gallup did a poll in the fall of
1986, and desgite what people say here, most Joung people between
the ages of 13 and 17 actually favor a mandatory program of na-
tional scovice. Sixty-two percent of teenagers favor a mundatory
program.

I think there are questions with the way the poil is done, and I
am not sure they actually know it is a required program, but nev-
ertheless there is a good deal of interest in it.

Second, in terms of voluntary service, the results are far more
positive. Though there has not been a Gallup poll recently, all
their polls would suggest that closer to 80 percent of students
would favor voluntary gervice.

In Minnesota, we have recently been debating a State service
E:'ogram. I did a study in 1985 and found out that 75 percent of

igh school students supported a Minnesota State service program,
and 50 percent claimed—we don’t know for sure—that they would
actually join such a program.

So, I think the first issue is that there is a good deal of youth
sulppoxt, and even though we think that they are becoming more
self-centered and less altruistic, that when really confronted with
the idea of having an opportunity to do something for others, they
are quite positive about it.

Now, the second point I wanted to make is on the issue of unmet
social needs. And I would say again that unless we position the pro-
gram as a way for young people to serve their society, it will not be
very appealing. And while I endorse all of the ideas about home
health aids, and working with the elderly and the environment,
one of the things we have not talked about, and when we ask
young people, what could you do—and these are particularly high
school students—they almost always talk about being of service to
their own age mates.

Eighty percent of them say, we could do something about the
problems of children and teenagers; w* could do something about
teenage suicide and pregnancy and deli..quency and school failure.
And I think that really needs to be taken into account.

And my last point is that there is, in the latest excellent compre-
hensive piece by Danzig and Szanton, a discussion about the impact
of servicc, and I wanted to clarify one thing. In that book it is sug-
gested  that there is ambiguity about the positive effects of service
on youth participants.

My work has been primarily on what happens with high school
students, and I do not think it is ambiguous at all. It is totally un-
ambiguous that participation in service activities increases their
personal and social responsibility, their knowledge about careers,
their willingness to be active in the community, their level of self-
esteem, and that these findings are essentially consistent with
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what people who have studied Peace Corps participants and in-
volved with volunteer work camps find.

So, I think it is quite unambiguous and very clear.

And so finally I would say that I would particularly endorse Con-
gressman Panetta’s bill, because it really will assist all of the won-
derful efforts that are currently just beginning to bubble up. I
would say that in our own State the Minnesota State Service Corps
was not passed in. our last legislative session primarily because of
dollars, and I think that had that bill been in place, the Panetta
bill,lthat it would have passed. I strongly endorse that one in par-
ticular.

[Prepared statement of Diane Hedin follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF D1aNE HEDIN, PROFESSOR, CENTER FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT
& ReseArcH, UNIVERSITY oF MINNESOTA, ST, PAUL, MINNESOTA

fir. Chairman, I wculd like o thank you and the llenbers of the

v Subconmitee ¢n Emplovnent Opportunties for holding this hearing on
national service. I am 3leased tiac the issce of national service is

~ being pursued so thorovqil; and seriously by mencers of the Congress.
I would like to discvss three issues: the need for understanding
vouth's attitude about service in general and national service in
particular in fornulatingc an agpropriate policy, the role youth think
they can play in solving inmet needs, and the impact of comnmunity

sarvice participation ugen youth particizants.

Jouk \ tha Jekzza of ‘latiopal Soruvicae

An accurate uncerstanding of voung peotle's uvillirgaezs o
participate in service t: the community and society 1s essential to
the public debate on natisnal service. Young peorle's supsort and
enthusiasm are o key elesant in successfully carrving out such a
brogram. Whereas nost rc.th policy decicicns assuze youll: will se che
glients or the consumers 35 a service or program, his ong :S3unes
youth themselves will be zhe initiators, the leaders who will gerforn
the service. Even thousa active youth participation is at the heart

-1~
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of any service intiative, the views c” the potential participants in
national service are seldom taken into consicderation. In the latest
and most comprehensive analysis of national service by Danzig and
Szanton (1985), there is hardly any attention given to how young
people thenselves might react to and assess a program of national

service. One of my purposes in this testimony is to sumrarize vhat ue

know about the attitudes youth have toward this proposal.

Bational VYoui:x Servica ag Remediation

There is an assumption in rost of the calls for national
service that routn are in need of remediaticn in regard to taeir lavel
of social and personal responsibility. Evidence tiat young peosle are
becoming ever more concerned with zoney, power an¢ status 2and less
concerned with helping others, particigating in puolic affairs, and
being other-centered 15 ~ften cited ir these debates (Astin, 1937;
Wyéne, 1984). While I basically agree with this analysis, I am not
convinced that the chancing values of roung peopls cthemselves are
i the source of the problen, once again ue seem todolanxng “a
victims. Factaer, young gseople warl srecisely nirrcr the doninast
vzives of the larser society, Ia fack, the voung, Jow ncre tan at
any other tipe 1a the last 20 years, hold the sar2 values asz adells
acodt succass and acnievement. t seens unjust to censure youth for
rot veing mera alcrulstic and politically and socially active than
tneir adult codaisg,

iihiie taer2 are scme enccuragiag countertrends in secondazy
and posct-szconlar; institatrons, the clear messaga 1n edecatior is o
oe self-centered--to acguire tne sSaills that expand perscnal resourCas
and opportunities for oneself, typically through coxzpetition wath

-2~
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others. wWhile reports on education and youth policy now call for
increased youth service and participation, those recommendaticns have
at best been peripheral to more pubiicized calls for fregquent test:ing,
stiffer acadenic standards, more unif m curricula angd the lixe.
Educational administrators cite ccrmitrment to and invovlerent in
service as key orcaniztion2l goals but they often rema:in at the level
of piots statements and li) service, while other nore iansistent
pressures push then asicde.

Similiarly, work and employment takes precadance over
voluatesr or extra-curricular activities for the malority of :our:.
Again, youth accurataly reflect the larger vaiues cf American sccisay,
«here naking noney 1s viewed as mor2 1xmzortant tham szending one's
discretionary tize in service to others.

furthernmore, when we sentence law-breakers to do their Zire
throuch "doing service,” we also give a clear message about the value
we attach to working on unret social and environmental needs. e
really ought to rethink the implications of community ssrvice zs =
sunisirent for everything fron drunk driving o vandalis® <0 sa.uzl
assat.te.

Wnile 2 program ¢l naticnal service, such as the cpa 2.

by Representative Papetta is critically irportant :a jusiicly
affirming the value we place on service anéd social resgonsidilic’, zhe
major institutions which educate and socialize yout: must also face a
conmittrent to encourage, nurture, and provida clear satlmars ..ca

re2) inceatives for youth invelvenent in conmurnity service,

(B AR ) ryicn

flhile I suggested . hat there is a widely~-held belief rhat rost
-3=
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young are irresponsible and unconcerned about others, the data on

youth and volunteerism siow a cifferent picture. (Parenthetically, in
a recent issue of the iHiznesota Youth Poll, nore taan 3/4 of secondary
students reported that taey believe adults held necative vieus of thenm
as immature, untrustwortay, un:easonahle, 1rrespoinible and ignorant!)

For example, in a study of vouth in Chicaco (Popowski, 1985),
approsirately 2/3 of the aigh scnool students in poth inner-city and
sutburban schools reportec that they would like to incCrease the amount
of volu.teering they cusrzently do. Even s1th lattls encouragement and
few incentives, Gallup rezorts in 1985 that over jalf of teepagers
ageé 14 to 17 report ensasing 1n Scre kindg of wol.steering (chough
this includes an :xtrenel  wicde variety of activi:zies suCh as sirziag
in the church choir to ra<ing brownies for their cirl scout troop to
taking care «f a neighobc:z's dog to one-shot events sucn as a bake
sale). A d.sturbing tra2nd is that tae proportion of voung adults
betueen 18 and 24 who vc.unteer has declined over tine past five years
from 54¥to 43%.

A recent surve_ of hicn schools found that nearly a million

students are enrolled 1~ some kXziad of school-sponsoied service

nrograp, with the vast —z2cority Joiny 30 voluatir.i’ &s opposel to

-

raauired school service., There is also a rising incerest in service
activity on many collec: campuses, sapported and nurtured by Campus
Conpact and simil:iar or;arazations. “ihat all these trends suggest is

that stucents will res7ard to a call Zor aelg 1f taey are asked to

a

serve, given & concrzcz “iLh <0 acCuLirol.3it, aad iI cherz i3 &

rezscaably clear zaciwe, chrougn mica %hey can secore iavolyed.

@w

There is amony youth a .2sevcir oi poszcive (221l03s ~wout compunicy

service and despite the signficant parriers 2racted by educational

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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institutions, the workplace, and the larger society,, many youth still

manage to volunteez, though on a sporadic basis.

1 I3 3 a i

A majority ol youth approve of a national service program. The
Gallup Poll in fall, 1986 found that the majority of 13-17 year olds
even favor a mandatory program of national service--with 62% of both
sexes favc-ing a one-year program of military or civilian for males,
and 56% of the respondents supporting such a program for females.
These proportions were similiar to those found among 18-24 year olds
in 3284, but show a definite trené toward far more support for a
mandatory p.ogram since the late~79's, when the agproval rate was only
42% (Gallup, 1979). (I question whether respondents to the Gallup Poll
understand that they are being asked about a reqguared program, since
that dimension of it is not highlighted. Rather, distinction between
civilian ard military service, between male and female participation
are emphasized. Thus, the respondents may be giving their opinions
atout certain for:'s of national service, rather than its voluntary or
mandatory nature.)

The Gallup Poll has not recentl- surveyed vouth about a
voluntary national service program, but other older studies have shoun
that there is far more support for such an approach. Studirs in North
Carolina in 1980 and Hinnesota in 1980 anda 1982 found that high school
studeats (£03) overwhelming favor voluntary grograr Over mangatory
ones.

Siniliarly, strong support by secondary school students for a
voluntary state service program was found in jiinnesota in 1985. The

question was posed as follows:

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Several states and Canada have & voluntary community service
pragram for 16-22 year olds. They involve a year of fulltime
service to the conmunity doing such things as working in
hospitals and schools, building nature trails, working with the
poor and elderly, etc. Youth get paid just enough to live on
and at the end of the program, they get 2 cash bonus and a
scholarship to further their education. Do you think Hinnesota
- should set up such a program?
Almost 75% of jumior and senior high school students appioved of this
idea. This is a strong endorsement of the idea that youth can and
shvi'd provide targible help to their communit® .nd state. Students
ware also asked whether they themselves would Sign up for a statez
service program. Almost half sard they woulé like to particizace in
such a program. Relatively fe's said thev woulld act sign up, cus
alrost 2/5 were undecided.

- The responses to the questions about a state service progrzam
are surprising in light of how the same studencs talked abaut their
obligations to their cormunity and country, in which the most
frequently responses was that they owed them "aoriing."” Ther2 ay be
less of a contradiction than i1t appears on the surface. The %2, iz
taat tie state service rogrz.a was described iz voluntar: oas, act aa
cblicaticn mpandacesd by tae geve_nment. Because acdolesence 12 2 _er:od
of 1life in which the wish to 02 indesendest 2ni 13 coatrsl of caezs
lives is very utrong, the noticn of "owing the cormunity aad coanzzy

samehting” is not acce;ted very zasily. It azgears that nany voung

reople are uilling to serve society, but on their terms, 2ot oecause

they are required or otliiged =5 do so.

In two iliznesot2 Youtnh Poll3, stucdents sere ashad "Ui.t 11ads
of ptoblems do you thinx voung people can do someching acout or uaelp

-3=
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prevent?” The most frequent focus (80%) was on problems that directly
affect their age group such as drug and alcohol abuse, teen pregnancy,
academic failure, and delinquency. 1lssues such as stopping nuclear
war, helping the disadvantaged, improving the envircament, decreasing
vorld hunger, working with the mentally ill, reducing crime and
reducing unemplovment were also cited, but quite infrequently. About

108 argued that, as teenagers, they could not have any impact on

A

solving comnmunity proolems. Some spoke vividly about their sense of
powerlessness:
"We don't feel that as long as we ars young people that we
change n.ch tecause to a great extent, we don;'t have control of
ovr own iives or the environmert around us." .

"Not much we can do. They don't think we know what were talking
about.”

The cuotes from these youth dramatically demonstrate the need
for a program of national service to counteract their sense of apathy
and powerlessness and to explore therr capac:ity to be needed and make
a difference.
furthermore, the discussion on vouth's ability to Zulfill unmet needs
sucgests two other principles: 1) because young peogcle can generata
long lists of communit; groblems, 1t suggests that youth themselves
should be involved in che process oI desiyning service programs since
they appear to be competent in analyzing community needs and 2) they
are experts on the proclams that adolesceats encounter and have the

capacity to influence tieir peers and young children in ways that

zaules do nob,

Q 6_[
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A recent study of national service >y Danzig and Szanton |
suggests that there is great ambiguity about whether volunteer service
has positive effects cn the social, psychological and intellectual
development of young people, particularly those in school=-basel |
p:ogfams. As the author of the larcest study of school-based se:vice
programs, I wish to unambiguously state that we fcund that ‘
participation irn community service, internships, and other
experiential learning programs in schools did increzse the le.el of
personal nd social resgonsiblity of participipants, did result ir
more positve att:.tudes tcward adults and other with whom they .c:r.ed
and di¢ increase their willingness to be active in the comrmunisl.

Nearly all students gai.ed in terms of career information and
exploration. They also showed modest increases in self-esteen.
Finally, students gained intellectually in terms of their
problem-solving ability, particularly those who u2d an opportunity to
think about and reflect on their comnunity service erxperience. These
findiags para lel those found in studies of Zeace lorps partiiijants, -
taose involved in velunteer work canps, and the like. .here is a2
strong and consistent body of evidence that well-Cesigned and
res/trety
vell-sugervised comnunit; service programssimpact the socizl aad

osychological development of young people.

I believe thet national service, and partlcularly a zill such
as this one which supports state and local efforcs, can help oo
rraffism the nost {undanental of our values, i.e., thac we 3clii:i 30ne
measure of personal responsibility for the welfare cf all otrers in
our community. ije must help young Deople reaffirm their opelief .a

their power to change the world and to do so out of 2 deepened lcve
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and concern fer others. We must help youth develop and test their
skills for effective citizen participation and have the chance to act
on their humanitarian ideals. We must require that the agencies angd
institutions that serve youth make central to their mission the
nurturance and practice of skills and values that will assure our
survival into the 21st centuig. In short, we must create a
strengthened service ethic in our society. I think nat:onal service

is one important rorte to that end.



Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Ms. Hedin.
Mr. Smith.

STATEMENT QOF DAVID SMITH, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL JOB
CORPS ALUMNI ASSOCIATION, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. SmrtH. Mr, Chairmen, I would like to thank you and the
members of the Subcommittee on Employment Opportunities for
giving me this opportunity to testify on behalf of national service.

I am here representing the National Job Corps Alumni Associa-
tion, headquartered in Washington, D.C., to express our support of
a voluntary natioral youth service initiative.

I am a graduate of the Breckenridge Job Corps Center, now
known as the Earle C. Clements Job Corps Center in Morganfield,
Kentucky.

I dropped out of high school at the age of 15 and with little edu-
cation and no vocational training, there were no job opportunities
available to me. An acquaintance of mine who had completed the
dJob Corps training program told me about it and the benefits that
it offered.

After further investigation, and because of the stipend the Job
Corps offered my family and me, and the fact that I could get a
GED and could receive training in a vocation at the same time, I
decided to join the Job Corps.

After I entered the program, the Job Corps gave me a sense of
self-esteem, especially after I completed my GED in only five
months. I had a good counselor who helped to build up my self-con-
fidence and belief in mankind. The Job Corps was definitely the
foundation I needed. It gave me the motivation to go on to college,
where I earned both a bachelor’s and a master’s degree.

I am currently employed as an administrator with Res-care Cor-
poration, a Job Corps contractor and health care company located
in Louisville, Kentucky. My responsibilities are t. develop and op-
erate commuraty homes fo~ the mentally disabled individuals and
to train these individuals to live outside of institutional settings.

Given my background and experience, I see youth service as a
concept long overdue and can perhaps enhance existing programs
that are currently in place and have proven track records, such as
the Job Corps program.

I commend Congressman Panetta and others for seeing the need
to help young people beyond the age of 21.

It has been said that America’s youth are the most precious nat-
ural resource that we possess. I most certainly agree with this
statement. The future of this nation is our young people, and it
will depend upon their employability, preductivity, and civic pride
if we are to continue the momentum as a world leader.

We must have alternatives to idleness and social alienation. As
this illustrious committee well knows, since most of you have Job
Corps centers in your district or State, the Job Corps program has
lz)gen very successfu! in training youth between the ages of 16 and

knowing the mood of Congress, I do not see the purpose of a na-
tional youth service initiative duplicating these services. However,
I see it rather as an augmentation of such programs. There do exist

o
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distinct differences between the programs, and the National Youth
Service initiative could fulfill several important functions that are
not presently addressed by Job Corps.

As local programs, youth would not have to leave home to take
advantage of this opportunity, and the community would benefit on
their investment from the actual public service performed on the
iocal level.

Further, such a local program helps to aileviate youth unemploy-
ment, giving youth of the community a sense of respect, accom-
plishment, self-esteem, and increased pride in civic awareness.

Another benefit to the locally-based youth service program is
that the seed money for the program would remain in the commu-
nity and continue to generaie benefits to the local economy.

Most youth employment programs target young people between
the ages of 16 and 21. It has been our experience at the National
Job Corps Alumni Association frem calls to our toll-free assistance
hotline that many young people between the ages of 21 and 24 also
need guidance and assistance but find few agencies available to
help them.

A National Youth Service program can uniquely reach these in-
dividuals currently not being served by the Job Corps or other fed-
erally-funded programs.

Ideally, youth service programs would include substantive experi-
ences that would benefit the recipient on a long-term basis.
‘[Lrough the Job Corps program thousands of youre neople have
found an alternative and a support sysiem that a. s them to
become viable citizens; however, there are thousa s of other
young people that the Job Corps pregram does not affect.

By offering the opportunity to perform public service to these
youths, this country will also provide an .venue to thousands of
young people who will discover the joy one 1eceives from volunteer-
ing to help mankind, while contributing tc the solution of youth
unemployment.

A voluntary National Youth Service program can be a great ben-
efit to this country and can serve as the impatus to renew the com-
mitment and sense of pride in America that has been the key to
America’s greatness.

[Prepared statement of David Smith follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, I wnruld like to thank you and the Members of
the Subcommittee on Employment Opportunities for giving me this
oppor.unity to testify on behalf of national service. I am here
representing the National Job Corps Alumni Association, head-~
quartered in Washington, DC to express our support of a
voluntary national youth service initiative.

I am a graduate of the Breckenridge Job Corps Center, now
known as the Earle C. Clements Job Corps Center in Morganfield,
Kentucky. I dropped out of high school at the age of 15 because
of a chaotic family life, and of course with ne education nor
;:aining, there were no job opportunities available for me in my
hometown of Alexander City, Alabama. An aquaintance who had
completed the Job Corps training program told me about it and
the benefits it offered. I investigated a little further and
because of thc stipend Job Corps offered me and my family, the
fact that I could get a G.F.D. and at the same time receive
training in 2 vocation, I decided to join the Job Corps.

After I entered the program, Job Corps gave me a sense of
self-esteem, especially after I earned my G.E.D., which took me
only five months. I had a very good counselor who helped to
build up my self-confidence and belief in mankind. Job Corps
was definitely the foundation I necded and gave me the
motivation to go on to college to carn both a bachelors and
masters dedree,

I am currently employed as an Area Administrator with

R s~care Corporation, a Job Corps contractor and health cére
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company located in New Orleans, LA, My responsibility is to
open and operate homes for the mentally disabled and to train
these individuals to live outside of institutional settings,

Giver my background and experience, I see youth service as a
concept long overdue and can perhaps enhance existing programs
that are currently in place and have proven track records, sucn
as the Job Corps program. I commend Congressman Panetta and
others of you for seeing the need to help young people beyond
the age of 21, and it is good to see the mood of the country
focussing on our youth,

It has been said that America's youth are the most precious
natural resource we possess and I most certainly agree with this
philosophy. The future of this nation is our young people and
it will depend on their employability and productivity if we are
to continue the momentum as a world leader. We must have
alternatives to idleness and social alienation., As this
illustrious Committee well knows, since most of you have Job
Corps centers in your district or state, the Job Corps program
has been very successful in training youth between the age of 16
and 21, Knowing the rood of the Conaress, T do not see the
pur "¢ of a pational youth service initiative duplicating
services currently offered by programs cuch as the Job Corps,
but to auament Job Corps. There exists distinct differences

between the programs, Job Corps already has a network in place
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that works with disadvantaged youth who may need to be placed in
residential centers away from their home communities. The
program provides wholistic training, information, advice and
specific vocational trade skills for furthering their

education. Additionally, Job Corps's fine program currently has
u built in network of experienced counselors and community
referral and rescarce systems. however, the Natinnal Youth
Service initiative could fulfil) several important functions
Ehat are not presently addressed by Job Corps.

As local programs, youth would not have to leave home to
take advantage of this opportunity and the community would
recalize immediate benefits on their investment from the actual
public service works performed on the local level. Wherecas in
many instances the Job Corps program provides structure and
removes troubled young people from negative home environments,
this initiative would serve those youth who would benefit from
public service but who do not want to leave home,

A Na.ional Youth Service has the flexibility to address and
respond to locally determined public service necds and lacks the
rigidity of federally imposed criteria. Further, such a local
program helps to alleviate youth unemployment, gives the youth
of the community a sense of respect, accorpiishment and
self-esteem and increases pride and civic awareness. Another

benefit to the locally based youth service program is that seed
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money for the program would remain in the community and continue

¥
to generate benefits to the local economy.
Host youth employment program. target young people between
- the ages of 16 and 21. It has been the experience at the

National Job Corps Alumni Association from calls to our toll
free assistance hotline that many young people between 21 and 24

years of age also need guidance and assistance but find few

|
égencies available to help them. By extending the age group to

24 years, the Natioral Youth Service program can uniquely reach

those individuals currently not being served by Job Corps or

other federally funded programs.

Ideally, youth service programs would include substantive
experiences that would benefit the recipient on a long term
basis. Examples of such experiences might include teacher
aides, library assistants, office aides, volunteers in hospitals ’
and clinics, and nursing home aides to name a fe:,

It is my hope that public service would include more sub-
stantive pusitions than youth serving as messengers, maintenance
workers and other performing other menial tasks that would not
provide meaningful experiences toward becoming self-sufficient
and productive citizens,

Through thz Jab Corps progr»m, thousanas of young people
have found an alternative and a support system that allows them

to become viable citizens. However, there are thousands of

™
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other young people that the Job Corps program does not affect.

v
By offering the opportunity to perform public service to these
youth, this country wili also provide an avenue to thousands of
young people who will discover the joy one receives from >

volunteering to help mankind, while contributing to the solution
of youth unemployment.

A voluntary national youth service program can be a great
benefit o this country and can serve as the impetus to renew
Ehe comnitment and sense of pride in America that has been the

key to dAmerica's greatness.
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Mr. MarTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Smith.
Ms. Royd.

STATEMENT OF LESLI KAY BOYD, YOUTH SERVICE VOLUNTEER,
WASHINGTON STATE SERVICE CORPS, OLYMPIA, WA

Ms. Boyp. Thank you. Good morning.

Mr. Chairman, committee members, I would like to thank you
for the opportunity to speak before you today.

I am the type of person that you have been talking about all
morning.

For the record, my name is Lesli Boyd. I live in Olympia, Wash-
ington—the other Washirgton. I am a proud graduate of the Wash-
ington St.ote Service Corps program.

My purpose here today is to implore you to support the concept
of service prcgrams, to help other young adults the -vay the pro-
gram helped me.

I would like to take a moment to tell you of iny experience with
the Service Corps and a little history of myself, to give you an idea
of how I became involved. When I discovered and enrolled in the
Service Corps, I had been unemployed for nearly a year.

I had been on my own from the age of 14. I did not qualify for
any kir 1 of job that would allc'v me to adequately support myself.
When I finally 3id find a job, it was as a cocktail waitress for four
and a half years. I was a high school dropout and then held a vari-
ety of other jobs.

Through the Servics Corps I was placed in the Thurston County
Economic Development Council. It is a business which wcrks to at-
tract jobs to our community. The motto of our business is, “Our
Job Is Jobs.”

With the encouragement of the Service Corps staff and the Eco-
nomic Development Council staff, I was :™le to attain my GED
with extremely high scores. I also learned valuable research tech-
niques, report-writing skills, project organization skills. I staffed
volun eer committees and met with the public on a regular basis.
Most import: 'ly, I gained the confidence to succeed at anything
that I set my mind to.

When I graduated from the Service Corps program, I was hired
as a legislative aide for Senator Jse Tanner. I woried through the
1987 legislative session, and after the legislature ended, I was im-
mediately rehired b, ch.e Thurston County Econc:nic Development
Council. where I am currently employed.

In summary, my experience with the Service Corps h.s given me
the credentials, the job experience and a sense of self-worth that 1
so desperately needed to survive in .his world. Now I feel that my
future is unlimited, whereas before I felt I had no future.

I ask you to give this opportunity to other young adults by your
support of service programs. It helps open the door to endless op-
porturities.

I might add that I have been listening to the questiors today. I
am reaily concerned about the education requiremerts on some of
tllme bills. Some of them that I previewed required a hig. school di-
ploma.
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I did not have a high school diploma. I did obtain my GED. But I
have been able to give back to the community ten hundred percent
of anything that I have been given. I am an active member of the
chamber of commerce. I am an active and caring member of the
con..nunity. I was just inducted into the Kiwanis, the seventeenth
woman in the State of Washizngton since they have opened it up to
women.

Service programs are so valuable, and, as a young person, I am
living proof. I am not on welfare. I am not a drug addict. I am not
a prostitute. I am a productive member of society, and I think be-
cause I had a constructive direction and constructive way to go, I
am able to give back to my country, my community, a lot more.

Thank you.

[Prepared statement of Lesli Kay Boyd follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF LESL1 Kay Boyp, Youtn SERVICE VOLUNTEER, WASHINGTON
StaTE SERVICE CORPS, OLYMPIA, WA

My name is Lesli Kay Boyd. I live in Olympia, Washington,
(the other Washington). I am a proud graduate of th> Wash-
ington State Service Corps Program.

My purpose in being here today is to implore you to support
the concept of Service progvams, to help other young adults
the way the program helped me.

I want to cake just a moment to tell you of my experience with
the Washington State Service Corps and what a drametic dif-
ference it has made in my life.

When I discovered ~:* enrolled in the Service Corps, I had
been unemployed for nearly a year. I had teen on my ow: from
the age of 14 and did not gualify for any kind of job that
would allow me to adequetly support myself. I was a High
School drop out. I had held a variety of jobs and then worked
as a cocktail waitress off and on for 4 1/2 years.

Through the Service Corps I was placed in the Thurston County
Economic Development Council, a business which works to

attract jobs to our community. With the encouragement of the
Service Corps staff and the Economic Development Council staff
I was able to attain my Graduate Equivalency Diploma {GED) with
extremely high scores. I also learned valuable rasearch tech-
niques, report writing skills, and project organization. I
staffed volunteer committees and met with the public on a
regular basis. Most importantly I gained t%e Confidence to
succeed at anything I set my mind to.

I graduated from the Service Corps and was hired as a Legis-
lative Aide for the 1987 Legislative session by Washington
State Senator Joe Tanner. After the Legislature ended, I was
immed ately re-hired by the Thurston County Economic Develop-
ment Council as a Data Research Coordinator.

In summary:

My experience with the Service Corps has given me the creden-
tials, job experience and the sense of self worth that I so
desperately necded to survive in this world. Now I feel that
my future is unlimited whereas before I felt I had none. I
ask you to give this opportunity to other young adult- by your
support of these valuable service programs. It helps ovpen the
door to endless opportunities.

Thank you.
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Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you.

The testimony nas been excellent. It highlights some of the
things that we have been thinking about.

Let me ask Dr. Newman a question. There are a couple of
thoughts in my mind, and your testimony brought to mind a situa-
tion in Mexico. In Mexico, they have a system for paying for the
education of people in professional life, lawyers, doctors, et cetera.
In fact, I hosted a gentleman doctor from Mexico, from Merida. His
education was full, paid for by the government; which is what Mr.
King said, public education for all levels should be paid for at
public cost.

The only problem with that is, you know, after a certain level it
gets to be expensive, and we have accepted paying for K-c0-12 in
public schools, except for those people who can afford to send their
children to private sc! ols.

That has been a big burden, and I think that most local commu-
nities are the same way. It is a problen: >f getting bonds passed to
provide for school necessities. Those people who have children in
school age do not go out and vote for them but the older people
who feel their obligation has passed do vote, and sometimes, b2-
cause they are the most ‘onsistent voters, we do not get the bonds
passed that we need to p. ide for the public education system.

Se it is an ongoing prou...a. But there is a way to pay it back,
one cf the ways is low tney do it in Mexico. When a doc?or like this
has received his education at public expense or government ex-
pense, ti 2y require him—I think it is through all of his career—to
provide community service i» a communtty hospital at least three
days a week.

HNow, if he wants to work a 6-day workweek, the other 3 days he
can have a private service. This particular doctor did, and he was
quite wealthy from the three days’ private work thet he did. And
he still gave the same quality of work because a civic pride in-
stilled in_him because his education was attained at government
expense. He provided service to people who could not afford tc pay
even as a form of socialized medicine.

I think that when there is an option there, and an opportunity to
practice privately and make money—and man, “nctors like him in
Mexico are the same way—that maybe there should be some
system like that in the United States in terms of the cost of educa-
tion.

Students today are worried sbout the Ioans they have to pay
bock, not about the community service they should provide, and
not even about the quality of service they provide; just make the
dollar. as fast as you can and get out from under the terrible debt
burden.

Coulc _ ou see in this country some kind of a program keing ac-
cepted by the public that will train and educate? We need to train
and educate qualified people who might not otherwise get the edu-
cation because their parents do not have the money, or may don’t
have their own and could not get grants or loans. They may not
want to go into that kind of debt and have that burden. Train and
educate them, and then have them pay it back through service
they would provide to the community.

F/ “é
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We had a form of it, really, in the GI bill, because, you know, you
went in the service, you volunteered for three years, and then you
got the benefit of the GI bill. Right after World War II, they were
enticing a lot of people into the service on the basis of an extended
GI bill benefit, and these young men realized *hut they could go
into the service for two or three years, qualify iu.: the GI bill, and
come back and get the education that their parents would not be
able to otherwise provide for them.

Mr. NEwMaN. | think an even closer analogy is ROTC. I think
the GI bill was an excellent program. Many got through roliege on
the GI bill. Wonderful program. And there is no question that G.Ls
had a very powerful - ense of service and responsibility.

And, incidentally, it bears on the point that has been made by
almost everybody in this panel, and that is that people went out
and got some experience in the world and then came back to
schooling and, contrary te the expectations, did better. And that
has proven true all the way along that very program. People who
have gone off to the Peace Corps and come back to graduate school
always turn out to be better students as a result, not any more
public-spirited students, but better students in the conventional
sense.

I am thinking about your comment, Mr. Chairman. If you think
about tne ROTC as one vehicle of that, why not think about—we
put a program together that is now being tested out in a couple of
locations—what about an ROTC for teaching, for example, or medi-
cine, the way you are talking about?

We think we are going to be short of teachers. We are already
shor: of teachers in New York City. We are already short of teach-
ers who have math and science skills. There are two ways to think
about it. One is the on. you mentioned in the Mexican example of
service over a period of ,ime that continues on for a long distance.

The ROTC is a Jlightly different variation, which is you de all
your service, but you do it up front.

When we put that proposal together, we talked to the Pentagon
people that run the ROTC program, and we asked them, what kind
of reaction do you get from ROTC officers. Do you, for example,
find that ROTC c¢fficers put i~ their time and do just whatever they
have to do and then go ho-....

They said, no, ROTC officers usually ask for the tsughest assign-
L.ents. We said that is fascinating, why?

They said, well, they say, look, I am here only to serve; I do not
have to make a career out of this, so being a parachute officer or
submarine officer is the most exciting thing I can do. That may not
b,e the thing that leads me to the best career; I don't care about
that.

As a cousequence, they found that there was this terrific willing-
ness to go out and do whatever was necessary.

We were very impressed. The harder we looked at ROTC, the
more we said, that is a good model for this country.

I think you could do it in medicine, and, in fact, we had a partial
version of it until the administration cut it back considerably in
the public health service arrangement.

,\‘7
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_But I think you could spread that and get the kind of benefits
cl;fat you are talking about, and we would be just enormously better
off.

I do not think you have to cover the full cost, for we do not do it
for ROTC now, which makes it considerably less costly. But you
can sure make it possible for kids to g through schonl, come out,
put service into teaching or medicine, or whatever, and then go on
about their careers.

Mr. MarmiNgz. We do have slight variations of that. There is a
loan program now in which if a person is going to become a doctor,
they still have to pay the loan back, but to be able to get the loan,
they have to promise to do service in a particular community, com-
munity of origin, generally. There are some severe penalties if that
person does not fulfill the commitment afterward.

Mr. NEwmaN. We loozed at loan forgiveness programs as a
mode. I think they are nowliere near as effcctive as the ROTC pro-
grams. I think one thing you could do with an ROTC for teaching
is, if you decided after a year of service you did not want to com-
plete a secnnd or third year, whatever it was, then it becomes a
loan. But tae ROTC has some big advantages.

First of all, when you sign up in ROTC, you start im.mediately.
This is not son:c future commitment you are making. When you
start, you go to college; you sign up for ROTC; you put on the uni-
form; you. are part of it; you do weekend and summer work. So you
are getting pragmatic work as you go along.

There is much more of a bonding, much more of a sense of serv-
ice. This is not just some way you pay off your college; it is partici-
pation. So, our conclusion was that you could have loan forgive-
ness, but the real way to do it is to start with a commitment of the
kind you get +vith ROTC.

Now, I think you can think of all kinds of variations, and I do
not think that one answer is the right one. I think you need man{.

Mr. MarmiNgz. Mr. King, you touched on the fact that people

came in and said, well, so-and-so did it, and I can do it, too, you
know. Success breeds success, you know, and peer group succest is
sometimes the best way to show people that they can achieve aad
accomplish.
s I will never forget something that Terrel Bell said when he was
appearing beforc one of our committees: there is nothing so re-
warding to those in the field of education as when they look into
the face of a young person that has just discovered that he can
learn and see that light go on.

And sometimes it comes from. the people you associate with in
the neighborhood, friends, wl.o have become successful. They say,
how did Johnny do it, you know? Well, if he can do it, I can.

You see, one of my problems is that I made it appear so easy to
go from a small-town mayor to the Congress in less than :wo years,
and everybody wants to run against me now. They think, if I did it,
they can do it too. [Laughter.]

A big factor, I think, in breeding success in neighborhoods and
communities is the experience that you had.

Would you like to elaborate on that a little?

Mr. King. Well, I want to even put it in context that goes like
this. In the sixties, almost everyone I know—a lot of young

2
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people—when you asked them what kind of job they wanted, they

said they wanted to be a community worker. Why? Recause we are

in wne struggle, and people are organizing, and they could see the

kind of things that were happening around them in their communi-

ty, and so they were not even asking how much it paid, because

you ‘tnow they pay little, but they warted to be organizers because

o it was involved in changiug the face and the focus of the communi-
ty.

Now, I think if you go across this country and you examine the
places where arganizing was taking place during that time, and

< you go and look at the police statistics, you w:ll find that there was
a reduction in crime—that people had more access to their streets.

I think it is very clear that as the young people are involved in
dealing with those things that affect their lives—and I agree with
Mrs. Hedin, when she indicates the things that the young pzople
say they would want to do—but I want it clearly understood that
as young people are involved in the process of change, and they
know that they are about doing things that are relevant, not only
does it spread up and down, but the impact of getting people to
change from self-destructive behavior to community behavior that
is vary supportive is just so great that I do nut understand why we
are at this point of not recognizing how valuable it could be.

Mr. MasTINEZ. Not encugh of the 435 people in Congress—535—
have had enough experience with instances where there has been
success in something like that.

Mr. KinG. Well, they obviously are ignoring the reaiity of what
is happening in some places, in some streets, and I think we are
turning our back on it. It is almost like a triad situation here in
this country where we are saying that those young people who are
on these streets, we are just going to send to the scrap heap; that
we are not going to attempt to do anything about them.

I think that we need to do a better job of analyzing what, in fact,
the costs are of our failure to do the kind of programs we are talk-
ing about. We look at it and say, well, it is going to cost a lot of
money to do it. I think the cost to do it is minuscule in terms of the
social and economic cost of our failure to do it.

Mr. MARTINEZ. | believe you are right.

Ms. Hedin touched on the fact that thess people have civic pride
and community interest; they just want to know that what they
are doing is really worthwhile. And they do not do it just for the
pat on their be °k; they want to know that it is worthwhile.

Ms. Boyd, I think, is an example of that. When you started out,
you realized that you could achieve and accomplish anything that
you set your mind to. I think it had to start from a basic premise
that what you were dcing at the time they were teaching you was
worthwhile. Isn’t that so?

Ms. Boyp. When you feel good about what you are doing, it
makes you feel good about yourself, and it precipitates that.

Mr. MARTINEz. Just continues to grow.

Mr. Smith, you are an alumnus of a program that I think is the
greatest thing in the world. You take young people who are at
their avenue of last resort, and you give them an opportunity.
More importantly, the whole program teaches them self-worth, self-
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confidence. It gives them a self-image that is valuable. And that is
a big part of it.

In Job Corps, we have seen the Mathematica, Inc., study that
shows that for every dollar invested by the United States Govern-
ment, they return anywhere from $1.35 to $1.48, so you and your
exper'ences have already, since you have graduated from there and
gone on to work, have returned tenfold that investment in you.

In these programns we look at as Mr. King has said, we have
tendencies to think in terms of what it is going to cost, not of them
being an investment.

Would you like to comment on the fact that it is an investment?
You are living proof it is, because you have been an asset rather
than one liability you might have been, had you not had the opnor-
tunity.

Mr. SvurH. Mr. Cha.man, thanks again.

And I do agree with Mr. King and also Dr. Newman. I shudder
to think if I had not gone into the Job Corps where I would be now
presently. I had occasion to go back to my home town about eight
months ago, and a lot of the people that I had grown up with, sev-
eral of them are now in prison for lang terms; a couple of them are
now, as I was told, confirmed drug addicts, and things like that.

It was only through Juo Corps.

And also I want to add that I feel, as Ms. Boyd does, that I can
do anything that I want to do now and eventually be sitting up in
your seat. [Laughter.]

Mr. MArTINEZ. Very good.

Mr. Jontz.

Mr. JonTz. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no questions.

I do want to thank each of the witnesses for what has really been
outstanding statements, and I do want to make a brief comment to
several references that have been made this morning to the GI bill.

T believe I am the only member of his subcommittee who also
sits on the Veterans Committee, and { mizht state for the record
that, as you well know, Mr. Chairman, we just rr.ently passed
some legislation to make the peacetime GI bill permanent lav/, and
it might be interesting for the panel and the other members to
know that at the present time approximately 67 percent of the
young people who are joining the armed services today are signing
up for the peacetime GI bill.

They make a contribution from their pay of $100 a month for 12
months to qualify for up to $10,800 of education benefits, and, as a
member of the Education, Training and Employment Subcommit-
tee of the 7eterans Committee, I was a part of a field tour at the
basic training camps, several of them, of =ach of the branches of
the service, and we talked to the recruits and asked them why they
were there, what they were doing.

The two reasons that were cited most frequently—I suspect there
were some other reasons that were impcctant but not cited—-for
their enlistment in the armed services w .re, one, they ‘were inter-
ested in being of service to their country, and, two, they were inter-
ested in looking toward their future educational needs.

Now, as I say, those young people knew we were there for a spe-
cific reason, and there are probably some other reasons that the
were in the armed services besides the two that they mentioned,
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but I find it very interesting to hear them articulate that concern,
and I think what Mr. King has said is quite on the mark, and that
is that we ought to provide a similar source of opportunities to
those who wish to sexve their country in other ways.

I just wanted to make that brief statement about the GI bill, be-
cause it has been a tremendous success, and I think we can learn
some lessons from that and perhaps use them in refining this legis-
lation and ..oving it forward.

Let me again say thanks to each of the witnesses for outstanding
testimony.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Thank you, Mr. Jontz.

Let me just ask, in closing, one last question of Ms. Hedin.

How many of the street youth would really be attracted to the
educational component of these programs, in your opinion?

Ms. HepiN. Well, I think, apropos of what Mr. King said, I think
that it would be very attractive.

I work with a program which is a national program called
Career Beginnings, in which we are attempting to find ways for
low-income minority youths to move into L.gher education, and in
vur small program of 100 youths who are now graduating seniors
with support, with mentors, with assistance to find out how to get
into college, 85 percent of our 100 students want a post-secondary
education. These are all low-income minority youth.

I really think that the studies I have done and other people’s
studies would say that the vast majority of all young people in this
country want higher education. They do not know how to get it,
but they want it.

Mr. MARTINEZ. Dr. Newr.zn.

Mr. NEwMAN. That was brought out by the experience of Eugene
Lang in New York. If the students believe that it is real, if they
belieare that they could achieve it, if someone cares enough, they
can do it.

Mr. MARTINEZ I think your last statement is the key to it. You
}ﬁalve to mezke them believe and realize that i. is to their benefit to

elp.

Mr. Nr 1AN. Can I just add one other point?

Mr. M. 1nEz. Yes, of course.

Mr. Ni.wMAN. Ms. Hedin made the point akout young people
wanting these things, and, at the same time, there seems to be the
sharp “ecline in civic responsibility among young people. How do
you reconcile these?

I think the key in understanding that is, young people need to
hear ¢ clear signal from society. They do not hear that signal. They
heard it under Kennedy and the Peace Corps: ask not what your
cpuntlry can do for you. I mean, that whole thing sent a very clear
signal.

Even holding these hearings, passing a bill, putting attention on
the subject, creating a r~ogram, is sending a clear signal to young
people, and that clear signal is getting louder on every camnus. We
have had in the Campus Compact of a ccuple hundred, where the
president has gotten up and said, you ought to e involved in com-
munity service. It has doubled and quadrupled the number of stu-
dents involved in this.
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So, we need a signal going out there, and I commend you, be-
cause I think you are giving it.

Mr. MARTINEz. Thank you very much, Dr. Newman.

I want to thank you all for coming.

Mr. King.

Mr. KinG. I wanted to respond to that point about the education.
In starting my testimony, I indicated that we have this ycuth en-
trepreneurial program, and one of the issues in all of this work
with youth is the level of expectation, and there is a direct correla-
tion between what we expect of youth and how they respond to it.
And if you expect little, you g2t little in return.

We have watched the you.n in this program come off the street
corners, go through what we call an achievement motivation proc-
ess, and who come out of that willing to take on just things that
they would not have imagined they would have been able to do,
and the thirst for more information, for knowledge, for techniques,
and for skills, is just boundless in terms of some of these youth.

But there has got to be a structure for it to happen. With all due
respecl, the presidents standing up and saying this, is good, but it
does not work if there is not the struct ~e. And I agree with Dr.
Newman about the method that has to come from society, and
what I would like to say, in closing, is that whatever public rela-
tions approach you have, Mr. Chairman, you know, you need to be
on the Today Show; you need to be on JolYmny Carson; you need to
be on all of those vehicles for getting pecple to understand how you
believe, and this committee believes, that this is an important issue
and a value that we hold for this society.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I agree with you wholeheartedly that we need to
send that signal, but we need to do more than just send a signal in
words; we need to do it in structure. We have to provide the ladder
that is needed if we are going to challenge these young people and
raise their expectations; they have to have a way to get up, and we
have to provide that ladder.

In closing, I would like to ask any of the panel if they have any-
thing that they would like to say as a last statement, anyone?

Ms. Boyd.

Ms. Boyp. I would like to say something.

You talk about a ladder. Before you put the ladder out, somebody
needs to hold a hand out to help them up the ladder. I think this is
3 vehicle, and these service programs are a tool, and what you can

0.

Mr. MARrTINEZ. Tha.tk you.

Ms. Hedin.

Ms. HepIN. I would just again say that I think that it is a mis-
take to think that youth idealism is gone. I think it is really sup-
pressed by a society that asks very little of its young people and
tlgﬁt does not provide clear pathways to be of service and of help to
others.

I think, when we ask young people whether they still care about
helping others, we find they do, but that we provide very, very few
ways for them to be responsible human beings.

Mr. MARTINEZ. I thinll() you are absolutely right.

Mr. Jontz, anything else?

Mr. JonT=. I have nothing more.
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Mr. MArTINEzZ. Thank you all again for coming in from the
places that you have come from. I know, in your case, it is a long
way. We appreciate it. Thank you very much.

We are adjourned.

[W aereupon, at 11:20 a.m., the subcommittee adjourned, to recon-
vene upon the call of the Chair.]

[Material submitted for inclusion in the record follows:]
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PrEPARED STATEMENT OF Topn CLark, Epuiation Director, CuonstiTuTional Riuits
FounbaTiON, Los ANGELES, CA

Mr. Chairma cussions of HR 460, the Voluntary National
Youth Servine ¢ raderway, I would like to call the
attention of you: subzommittee to the equally important need to
establish with.r American secondary schools ongoing programs
«which encourage young people to provide voluntary service in a
wide range o, school and community settings. Such programs will
meet well-known and important educational and community needs,
and in so doin¢ will help young people develop an appreciation
for the role che .ndividual plays in our democracy as a
volunteer, a3 well as the leadership 5kills necessary to become
an effective participant in our democratic society. 1In their

r nt book, National Service: What Would It Mean?. Richard

Dancig and Peter Szanton concluded that such pragrams would,
"help instill a sense of service as an important part of
education," and that, "The prograrn could be of value to a
student's personal growth, and it could contribute to the
accomplishment of public service viork." As Congressman Leon
Panetta said in his recent testimony before the Subcommittee c¢n
Human Rescurces of the Post Office and Civil Service Committee,
"Scores of youn¢ people have turned to drugs, alcohol and
countless other vices to occupy long hours of idleness." While
his reference was to programs for out-of-school students, they

apply equally to young people in our public schools for whom
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service can provide an equally important alternative to
potentially anti-social activity.

Since 1984, nationa’ interest in community service has
substantially increased. University -rograms have proliferated,
the conservation corps movement has grown, and the value of
public school based service for high school students has been
recognized. Nationally, service programs already exist in a
growing number of schools. The Chief State School Cfficers are
weginning to develop an initiative for school-based service
programs among their members.

The Constitutional Rights Foundation's Youth Community
Service (Y¥YCS) program has been operating within the Los Angeles
Unified School District frr thiee years. As a product of this
three year pilot projec.. twenty-two public high schools
currently sponsor YCS groups incorporating four hundred and faifty
(450) youth who assume significant responsibilities for service
projects, develop leadership skills, interact with their
communities, recruit peers for service and gain insights into the
service ethic. Through their efforts, during the 1986~87 school
year, over eleven thousand Los Angeles area young peopie have
taken part in community service projects (See Attachment C for
detailed report}.

Los Angeles City schools have been an exceptional laboratory
in which to develop our community service project. The twenty-
two high schools include both urban and suburban locations and

function on both year-round and traditional school academic

e
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calendars. Low-income youth work with more affluent students in
a racial mosaic of growing diversity as immigrants stream into
the city. Eleven of our twency-two sites aize ranked among the
bottom forty high schools in the California SES (socio-economic
standard) Rank for High Schools out of 780. The low income of
many of these students poses a unique challenge since their
personal fimancial situations can limit the.r availability for
service involvement.

Key educators recogn. ze the need young people have to engage
in meaningful experiences outside the classroom. Academic
instruction is necessary within the scnool stri.cture to encourage
critical thinking, amalysis and the acquicition of accurate
information. Our academic curricula lets yoi :h know how society
values reading, writing, science, math and the social studies. A
mandate for service lets youth know that society places a premium
on the service modality. Since volunteer service providers have
a long-standing history of contributions never met via business
or government, this learning exper.ence develops personal values
intrinsic to the survival of our country.

In California there is interest on the part of .everal state
legislators i1n encouraging school districts to create high school
community service programs. In addition, the new state
History/Social Science Instructional Framework stroagly
recommends thal schools provide service opportunities that are

linked to the curriculum.
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A high scnool community service experience can provide
unique educational opportunities unmet within the traditiomal
classroom setting. In the Los Angeles Youth Community Service

v program, youth examine key issues affecting their communities.
They practice essential citizenship skills, demonstrating the
necessary leadership to execute successful community projects.
Furthermore, they recruit their peers to participate, thereby
impacting a larger population with the service ethic. Planning
and making decisions within their school groups affords the young
people the reflection needed to synthesize their experience and
impact their persomal growth and development. The service
experience breaks down feelings of isolation, apathy,
disenfranchisement and powerlessness which often plague our
youth. All youth can excel within this medium.

The Constitutional Riyats Foundation (CRF) has received in
excess of 100 inquiries from agencies, school: and individuals
nationwide regarding YCS {See Attachment A). Presentations have
been made at numerous national couaferences by CRF staff, high
school students, teachers, principals and key administrators from
the Los Angeles school system. YCS has been featured zs a model
program in the Carnegie Foundation's Student Service monograph,
and reported by Education Week (February 25, 19f7) and

ProEducation Magazine (November 1986). (See Attachment B)

As we reach the end of our three-year .Jevelopment period the

Conscitutional Rights Foundation is prepared tc advance the

o .
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national and state service movement with Youth Community Service

* maintaining the model program throughout Los Angeles

Unified School District and v
* providing outreach and awareness activities to affect

policy and involvement i community service in California

and throughout the nation.

As the youth service movement grows, we hope to use the
successful YCS model and its experienced staff to help school
districts throughout the United States turn this important idea
into a part of the regular secondary school program.

There is much interest. Cur organization and others 1in
various parts of the U.S. ha"e the experience -- we would be
pleased to take part in the growth of this important movement.
While we support the efforts of Congressman Panetta, we believe
school programs can provide incentives that will help young
people still in school develop a sense of commitment to the
greater good of all our citizens -- a value essential to our

future as a free nation.
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Angeles said boys are still conditioned not to show much exnotion, and, she
added, many of the situations in which student volunteers find themselves
cell for great sensitivity. Whi'e a number of boys generally confirmed this
observation, they also pointed cut that boys are more likely to have paid
work after school or be involved in scholastic sports. (Hovsever, a senior
girl at Hudson High School volunteered five hours or more a week as a tu-
tor of children in a special education class, worked 30 hours a week at a local
fast . od restaurant, and practiced roller skating in defense of her title as
National Intermediate Ladies Figure Skating champion.)

Students generally are recruited for programs through homerocm pre-
sentations by “veteran” volunteers and at special meetings. Posters 2nd
fliers also are sometimes used. As with many school-spansored activities,
students often sign up because a friend did first. A. a —eeting of volunteers
at Grant High School in Los Angeles, we sat with a group of four girls,
three of whom joined the school’s program because of the involvement .
the fourth girl.

Students in special education classes are welcome in the programs al-
though their assignments may be more limited than those of other stu-
dents. Where schools have 2 requirement that students must maintain a
certain grade point average in order to be involved in extracurricular activ-
ities, that requirement usually applies -0 the service program, too. Some-
tirnes a community agency also may hay. .trictiras. Ann Loeb, director
of volunteers at the Putnam Hospital Center in ¥ :stchester County, NY,
said she will not take students from Brewster High School (or other
schools) who are failing in their courses. “They have too much responsi-
bility at the hospital,” she said. "Kids who are having acade.nic difficulty
_ need too much direction.”

Orientation. All of the programs have some form of orientation, but
the most formal undertzking is in Los Angeles. The Consututional Rights
Foundation (CRF), which conceived the Youth Community Service pro-
gram for the Los Angeles Unified School District (the district will take it
over completely in two year-), previously had initiated another program
cali~d Youth Leadership for Action. The idea was to train young people fox
leadership roles in school and beyond. “We always wanted to train young
people to do their own projects,” said Todd Clark, education director of the
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CREF. The program especially tried to tap teenagers who had notential lead-
ership abilities but who, for reasons of plain looks, low-l: vel popularity,
and the like were not elected to student government or made officers of
classes or clubs. “We wanted to develop the potential of iids in the mid-

v dle,” Todd said. Part of the Youth Leadership for Action program was a
three-day retreat where students talked with leaders from the community
and took part in a variety of role-playing and simulation sessions designed

A

to teach leadership skills. The Youth Community Service program (YCS)
has borrowed from the earlier program, although the retreat now lasts two
days (scheduled in early December.) As it now works in the YCS, each fall
ten to twelve sophomeres are selected from each high school’s YCS “club”’
to participate in the leadership retreat. The hope is that these young people
will become the ones to help give their club direction, inspiration, and vi-
tality, notonly for the remairder of their sophomore year, but also in their
junior and senior years as well.

One of the emphases at the retreat is to acquaint students with what
their community is all about. ““Typically, they don’t have much sense of
community,” said Cathy Berger Kaye, project director for the CRF. One of
the retreat exercises is called Discovering Community. In small discussion
groups, students considzr such situations as these:

® A friend is riding a bike near the school on the weekend and is
hit by a passing car. What community-related groups assist or
getinvolved in any way?

j ¢ Community pressure is mounting to close a popular neighbor-
| hood hangout. Local residents are complaining about noise
| lateat night, crowded sidewalks, and the lack of available park-
| - ing spaces. What community groups assist or get involved in
; any way?

-

Outside of the police and perhaps one or two other well known com-

, munity organizations or institutions, most students have no knowledge of

the myriad of public and private groups that provide informaton, finanaal

| assistance, counseling, crisis intervention, and so on. The program direc-

N tors take the position that students’ tine and energy wil! be better spent in
the community if they know in advance what makes the community tick.

32
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Ninety-one students from ten high schools attended the 1984 revieat.
When asked 1o rate leadership skill activities on a scale from “’not valua-
ble” to ““very valuable,” seventy-five students rated the skills instruction
very valuable zad fifteen found it valuat'* Some of the students’ com-
ments were: "It helped me learn where I need to improve.” "I think it
brought us—-le kids from Los Angeles—together and prepared us for one
ideal and new ideas.” "’ now know what leadership means besides what is
said in the dictionary.” “Ilearned it isn’t easy being a leader, that you have
to work hard for it.” "’If you want to be a good leader, you must always
follow the rules.” “’I found that I wasn’t so quiet on the second day after
the discussions.”

An extreme example of the impact of the retreat is a boy from the Watts
secdion of Los Angeles who attended the 1984 retreat. According to Cathy
Berger Kaye, when the boy *: .t sat down with his discussion group, he ac-
tually turned his chair around so that he faced away from his peers and the
group leader. After the retreat, Kaye said, the boy ve. inteered to talk to
his school’s PTA about the values of the program.

The other programs (lacking perhaps an organization like the CRF and
also the grant money that helps pay for activities such as the leadership
retreat) do have meetings where students are inforried about the nature of
the program {with spedal weigh. placed upon the altruistic bent), require-
ments of the program, roles and responsibilities of volunteers, and a de-
scription of the kinds of community organizations and school s ..ations
where students might serve.

The programs provide students with handbooks that include most of the
information they need te kiow about the service program. The handbook
typically begins with a statement of purpose. In Brewster, the purpose is
stated as follows: “’To provide the means by which students may volunteer
their skills, time and services for the betterment of their school and com-
munity.”’

Placement. Again, placement experience ir each of these four programs
is.quite different. As previously mentioned, the Los Angeles YCS clubs are
designed to work as groups on community projects. In the other programs, .
students volunteer and work as individuals, aithough more than one per-
son may be assigned to, or placed in a particular situation. The YCS clubat
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Los Angeles High School was only recently formed, but members talk
about such group projects as helping members of youth gangs to go
straight (and periiaps even to join the YCS program) and working with .
cormunity organization to act as big brothers and sisters to runaways wi.o
steadily drift into the city. The YCS clubs usually draft a proposal for a
project in consultation with their teacher sponsor and comm. aity men-
tors.
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2 For over two centuries, Ameris
cans’ fierce commitment tc.individ-
zaliem haa competed with their
intirest in the larger common good.
PeToquevillecalled this for
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TUDENTS SERVING THE COMIVIUNITY

.oonntry, |tudenn are increasingly

ot
N e

their talents with othm in

" stereos. and beach vacations on!};
. furthers the negative image of ul
™ Ish college students caught up in

conspicuous consumption.

Having talked with many other
- college presidents andjudging from
my own personal observations of
what is happening around the
nation and in Providence, I am
struck by some very

the community. .
Locally, over 100 students athw
idence College zun errands for the
elderly and handnuppedhﬁ.q Elm-
hurst district and maks weekly vis-
its to patients at {he Veterans
Administrstion Hospital. Another
100 students serve a3 Big Brothers
ang Sulen providing friendship

which run counter to

couperative endeavors 2 “habit of
the heart.” Some observers of the

the popular image of today s stu-
denn Last lummer 72 Sta.nford

scene on
however. would have the publlc
believe that student interest in hab-
itsof the heart have lost out entirely
to what might be called hlbn.l of
the wallet,” or a sole p

r 14 f
throvgh the achool 2 p{ublxc nmee

volunteered to work with Mother
Tmla in Cllcuna. to help Salvado-

with future earnings pounzul prea-
- tige. and power.

Certainly the popular media rein-
force this sureotype Cover stories
on the “Yesar of the Yuppie® and
reports that stucents aremoreinter-
estzd in high starting salaries than

ran cope with the
effects of violence, and to publicize
the dangers of certain pesticides
used in Third World nations.

A similar fellowship program at
Harvard has enabled students to
lpend their summers counsebng

ln

in serving society only seem to con-

. finn theself-centeredness of today's

students, Statements by US. Secre-
tary of Education Bennett that fed

to Providence area
children

At Brown, over 1.000 studentc ,re
involved in public service during the
year. Their contributions range
from abortterm activities like blood
drives and food and clothing collec-
tions to longerterm involvement =
working in group homes for
teenagers, special schools, day care
centers. shelters for battered .
women, and rape crisis centers.

1l thess examples are healthy
evidence that students do care about
more than their own narrow per
sonal and career goals. Unfortu-
nately. not enough is being done to
thiskind of commitment.

ters, ewly-
umved xmmmnnt-l md bullduAg
t

Curvently, there are too many dis-

for | w
colleges and universities around the

, the most forrmdable
be|n¢ financial and lack of public
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A convalescent home
resident enjogs the
compu.¥ of & young

hi
students from pablic service. The
federal gov.mment, which

¢,

to the i » These *
mode-t scholnah!pt lo not g;y
8

or their

on & generation of students in eer
vice $0 others with the Peace Corps
and VISTA, is culting backonthese
riogeams, despitt President Rea.
. gau'scall foc greater publicinvolve
ment in service to the nation and
despite evidence that the need for
programs ls as great as oz
greater than everbefore. Youth pub-
Hc setvice bills have been faive-
* ducedyearly in Congreas andjust as
. regularly have been tabled or
P |hnnledu e.

ﬁn; nL'ur lhey make up the differ-
ence Instuition that results
goctpomnx gradustion for s year,
ven without scholarships, colleges
lnd universities can recognize
young people who have dustine
themselves through volun.
teer work by giving preference to
those individucls during the college
admisslon process,
Although tha {edeul govenunent

-Is cutting buck its involvement in

pubhcurvm.l numberofstateand

* The federal g t s not
done in shomhlndng public ser-

vice; colleges and universities
need to do more, Traditionally.
higher education in this nation hss
astilled futurs leaders with values
that emphasize a commitment to
u’x-ocmy: and cdﬁunng students for

{1

ts are taking
steps to {oeut an cthic of service
among g: So far, these pro-
grams have been successful in
avoiding thetwo pitfalls of any pub-
e rervice u;‘axmzm:u. the trap of pro-
viding nothing but ma%~work jobs.
and the danger of becoming overly

has been one of the mulor goals of
higher ed But fo>

d. Certainly, there [s
enough work that needs to be done

civie ibility bas notreceived

cities. preserving parks,
the eldetly and tutoring

the sttention it deserves in the last
eouple of decaZes.

In s2d&ition to making career
counseling and Information about
ublic service more available. cols
eges and universities need to red-
ress the financia! disincentives
which discouragestudents from taks
ing time out to serve others.

At Brown, larships from the

children, among others. to avod the
first concern; and bec:
grams are Jocally admini: and

LN -,v v
Wy e
tional rewards can betraced back to
the popular post.World War 11 GI
Bill. More should be done, howevez,
t: esiabitalt cooperstive efforts
between higher educstion and pub-
¢ gervice programs. Elected state
officaly should explore the possibile
ities of working -vith their state’s
universities, colliges, and high
schools to establist. Public Service
Corps for their states. Sult state
Public Service Corps would not only
provide job skills and experience for
youth but would mnfom the habit
of the heart that has been the hal
Imark of Amenc-l v:uhty nnd
compassion. e Bl
. ohee '\.5. N .:' ’

"-'~'.I =-4

Los Angeles Youths
Make a Difference

High scheol students want to be
moznizcducarinx.uvbleyounx
people. To this end. the Youth Come
munity Service (YCS) program,
{unded by the Ford Foundltion,wu

respond to local needs, they have
escsped heavy sdmiristrative strue.
tures,

Some of the most successful pro-
grams rewsrd vo.unteensm wath
educauon\l beneﬂu. and thisisan

Starr Foundation go to students
who take time out before or dunng
college to make meaningful contn.

Y P way (o encoun
age vol and to

duced among low-income 10th
grade students in the Loa Angeles
area who have no previous leader
ship experience.

A division of the Constitutional
Rights Foundation, which has
organized student programs for
ne;;lly 25 years, YCS has so far p;o-

ies for

sccess to higher education. Such lin.
kage between service and educa.

more than 400 students from 20
senior high schools.
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Los Angries Ngh school

These students are taught to be
their own project managers as they
fan vut over thecity to provide coms
munity service, Projects vary from
painting identifying numbers on
classroom doors to regularly visit.
ing convalescent homes. Students
organize blood drives, adopt shel-
ters for hlt_zred women and child-

ren, P
campairns against drunk dnving,
help in programs to feed the home-
less. and embark on campus and
community beautification prajects.
For a*really big statement,* YCS
students iritiated a clean-up effort
in a Los Angeles business areathat
led 800 fellow high schoolersto take
rt in Operation Big Sweep, With
ocal financial support, 100students
at & time maneuvered a giant push
broom, 45-feet-wide and 105-feets
long. weighing 3500 pounds, The

3 .ho L luded el

over graffitl, removing trash, and
ining the neighborhood

At a two-day Training Retreat,
students discuss the nature of leads
ership. learn to interact in the coms
munity, and hesr about community
roblems and solutions from local
eaders.

ity service training con-

tinues at twice-weekly meetings on
school premises and at special con
ferences. Pald teacher spunsurs
guide students in compiling a coms
munity resource directory after

gram &3 community mentors, are

broughtintohelpstudentsplanand

implement their projects.
CS providesa h

ah

stucant must complete 270 hours of
unpaid volunteeniam in order to
graduate,

Cord,

p k for pare
ticipants that outiines the detailed
steps needed for each task and
includes a rofect preposal form

ired to {anning and

help in the community
one to three hours a week between
late Septem and May, Every
other Wednesday, the school day is

hortened one hour and fifteen min.

evaluation stages.

Rather than stress job skills, this
extrs “Ticular program setks to
pror  preparation forcitizenship.
For L.e198687 school yar, thestaflf

utes to allow students additional
time to meet thelr service reqrire
ment. Most 9th and 10th graders
volunteer for two hours on these
Wednesdays and one hour on alter

wants 10 ses eager \oph nate Wednesdays when the school
recruit {reshman to share in the  day ends at the regular time.
Journey toward ity leader Entering stud are iy
ship, assigned to public elementary
For more Information. contact schools, day-care centers, libraries,
Cathry:  erger Kaye, Director of  and hospitala located within walks

Youth L Zlership Programs, Con.
stitutional Rights Foundation, 601
South Kingsley Drive, Los Angeles,
CA 90005, Telephone (213) 487-5590,

Banneker High's
Community
Lab Project

Since ity Inception as a msgnet
school for academic achievers, Ben.

jamin Bann~ker High School in the
nation's capitsl requires all stu.

ing distance from Banneker or near
their home. Getting stedents from
the start 10 seloct where they will
volunteer is considered an Impor
tant_aspect of their growth and
development.

Now {n its fourth year, the pro-
gram has grown from 25 to more
than 125 sites. Many of these loca:
tions have been added through stu.
dent initiative, with family
encouragement,

For example, when Robert
Hogans was accepted at Banneker
l:e visited the Dean of the School of

dents to perform volunteer gervice
as part of the curnculum,
nder the Com?unuy Labora-

interviewing localag
ducting & needs sssessment survey.
Professionals, known in the pro-

tory p receive a
quarter credit for each 45 hours of
approved, supervised service, Every

atthe Univeniliof the
Distnet of Columbia whom he had
met dunng a Youth in Scence and
Engineenng program two years
before, The dean gladly gave him &
volunteer asaignment. Robert plans
to volunteer there for the rest of his
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A Boancher High School
Student eorns counte credit
whide helping ous st the
Washwngion Home for the
Aged inthe nation caplisl.

stay at Banneker.

Pariicipating agencies are grate
{ul for the help. Florence Augustine
of the Mamia D, Lee School for the
mentally handicapped says, “Our
teachers really value tha opportun-
ity to work alougsido bright child.
ren. As for the olunteess, at the
beginning of theyear they sreoften
frightened to enter tha classroom.
By mid year. they are &t ease ar |
working very well with one ortwe £
our students.”

Tha Lee school is a first assign.

The agencies do what theyean to

make thestudents fecl at home, Dele
sphine Roach, forexample, herselfa
product of the D.C. Publle Schools
system, coordinates tha volunteers
at Africare, & non-profit organiza.
tion specializing in development
projects in that contlnent. "I take
my responsibillty very seriously,”
sha says, “and I make aure ¢sch
learns something in order to grow
from the experience.”

Through Banneker High's volun.
teer program, both students snd

ment for nearl” all who
there, Conley hlng, now & senior,
atill rermembers his impressions, “1
worked with people aged 15 to 211
knew at onpc:L:I'n ?“ll{lud with
some very s, people.l hadtor o
some sdjusting: but after about 8
month, I began to develop sevencl
deep friendships.”

Ancther example of how all
benefit throuSh the volunteer pro-

am {3 seen st Howard University
gospiul.wherenudenu whoaspire
to the medical profession spend
threeor four yearshelping inlabora
tory work and research sn pediatne
medidneunderlphylidln-mer‘\wr.

tors have | d new ways to
be useful to one another.

For more information, contsct
Mes, Mazie Wilson, Principal, Ben.
jamin Banneker High Sch- | 300
Euclid Street, Washingtor. DC
20001, Telephone (202) 673-7322

Georgia Elementary’s
Creative Volunteerism
Southside Elementary School in

rural Milledgeville, Georma, counts
its numeroua community service

Although thereare sto
ries of students gettsng bored or not
fitting in, for the most part the
volunteers focus on tha experiences
that have been “fun” And as Afriye
Amerson saya of her expenences at
Howard University Hospitsl. “You
learn to be business hike while hav.
ing fun. You come with the nght
attitude. with 2 smile on your face.”

Jects as pnme reasona for being
honored as a 1986 Georgia Public
School of Excellence,

One of its crestive endeavors
included 154 students in a Math.a,
Thon o rase money for Bnan Floyd
at St. Judea Children's Research
H iin M 'L T

Y hen the story of Bnan, a native
of Jeffersonville, Georgia. who suf-

fered from acute lymphocyic leuke-
mia, was read in the dassrooms.

- students wented to know how they

could heip their fellow Georgisz and
other very aick children at the Mem
s hospital. Lo x

Since the patients needed expent
sive care, it was decided to eoﬁ:xclt
money. The Math-aThon eventa.
ally ralsed an improssive $3,338.04.

Each participant was given 228
mathematica] problems Lo solve ip
addition, subtraction, and multipli-
cation, Parents, fxiends, and neighe
bors sponsored i\ha students by
pledging money for each problem
solved correctiy. The school librar
fxn, Hardett Hargrove, collected the
funds daily. .

By ths end of the carmpaign, four
students = Donna Brantley, Bryan
Eady, Tracy Hartley, and Keth
Sweat - had ralsed more than $100
each and received a apecial Toshirt
and tote bag for the'r efforts, Sixty~
fiveother students 1. tsed morethan
&25 and received T-shirts.

Sadly, Brian Floyd died. Bu, in
sppreciation of Southside’s gener
ous fundraising support, St. Jude's
erected a Colden Tribute Plaque, to
hang in perpetuity in oneof itscorn:
dors, ;nscnibed with thename of tha
school and the young person the
students never met but cared 30
much about.

For more information. contact
Janice Cox. Southstde Elementary
School. Penninton Road, Milledge
vnlls.GA3|06|.T¢lephone(9|2)453-
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One of 7000 mevbers of
New Yorky City Vohaueer
Corps teaches computer
skalls 10 & pre-schooler in
East Horlern,

The Big Apple
Approach
to Community Service

Asap mberoftheCity Volunteer
Corps (Cv.  20-yearold Deborah
Irvinghashaa. »opportunitytobe
botk teacher uxd. student - oftenin
the same

AtPS, 57 in the Bronz, Deborsh
tutors kindergarten students full
time. One evening a week, she takes
& college credit course in Spanishat
the New School forSocial R h

schools and a score of city-
sponsored afterschool programs.

While the city and its xwple
benefit from CVC'. m-vxce. the

serve lves, a3
well, At the ezd of & year in the
Corps, CVs receive & $5,000 educa-
tional ccholarship to the college or
vocational school of their choice.
Each week along the way, volun-
teers get an 380 expense stipendand
the chance to continue their educa-
tion tuition fiee.

Using resources at City Univer
sity of New York and the New
School for Social Research, CVC
has created a comprehensive educa-

in Manh

“My Spanuh is improving,” she
says, “but working in a classrocm
with the young kids and watching
them grow, you learn a lot as well.”

Deborzh 1s one of more than 1,400
young New Yorkers whohavedisco-
vered CVC, a new youth service
orgamzauon zhaz has developed a

ship wlththerzy‘ledu wonahyp
tem.

Currently 740 City Volunteers,
working in 50 separate teams, serve
New York in o variety of ways «
beautifying its parks, renovatingits
vacant bu:ldings, providing relief
for the homeless. and helping the
elderly One of CVC's most dra-
matic efforts, however. has been its
outreach efforts to other young peo-
ple. During the last school year
alone. 160 CVs worked 1n 14 publks

tional to fit the d

needs of its members. Volunteers
who have not completed high school
are required to take English as 2
Second Language, BasicEducation,
or GED preparation classes. High
school graduates like Deborah have
theiz choiceofcollege preparanonin
English and math or college credit
courses in a variety of

unique kind of education,” says
Suszn Pierce, the associate director
of education. “They gain academic
skills that they will need in college
and onthe job, a.ndauhuamenme.
ey leam lessons in civic responsi.
bility end self-discipline, which they
will use throughout their Lives.”

As Deborah puts it, “CVC has
made & difference for me. It has
Siven me a positive attitude about
everything I do.1knowIdon'thave
to wait for anyone. I can mmake &
good life for myself.”

For more i.formation. contact
Putlic Relations, City Volunteer
Corps, 842 Brosdway, New Ycrk,
NY 10003. Telephone (212) 4756444,

Mandated Service
in Atlanta Schools

Ci ity service is taken zo

Afterjust 17 hs of

CVC has placed 60 young pecple in
English as a Second Language
classes. 543 in Basic Education
courses, 3231n GED classes, and 225
in college prep or college credit
courses.

Sixty-nine volunteers have
earned their GED credentials while
in the corps, and at least half of the
120 whohave stayeda full yearhave
improved their reading levels by a
grade level or more.

“At CVC, young adults receive a

fously in the Atlanta Public
Schools that every high school sto-
dent must complete Course- No.
959050, Duties to the Commaunity,in
order to graduate This means that
atsometimein grades9 throughll,
all students must contnbute 75
hours of service to an approved non-
profit agency of their choice.

"The district made theexperience
mandatory after eight years as an
elective course, because, in part, it
wanted to repay the local ‘commun-
1ty of believers' who had gqiven so0
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Sersabookson o

Mt mkee sophomore
atudents preyee pfts
Jor patserss ag the cuy’s
St Josepht Hospual.

much themselves throngh Adopt a-

School, magnet school programs,

and volunteericg.” says Eugene

Thomas, who administers the recip-
program.

United Way sgencies are asked to
provide substantial servire oppor-
tunities with the community - not
the typein which studeats can hide
away in some office. Before or afier
achool, on weekends, anddaring the
sumeer, students can be found
working at Boys and Gisls Ciubs, or
even lending ahandat thelocal z00.

Many become such nuunch
believers in service to 0
they easily exceed the coune

During
be{on the program | wu lznnched.

Milwaukee Teenagers
Know All About
Lending a2 Hand

The opportunity to expand per-
sonal experiences and goals among
students at Milwaukee's Riverside
High Schoc;l ;‘u m;tmed by the
young people themselves.

When severalteacherswhoserved
on the advisory committee of the
local Voluntary Action Center
{VAC) shared their volunteer expe-
rienres in the classroom, the stu-
dents b hused and ted
to_lmow how they could become

lndenhxp training eoxme with
Boys and Girls Cluos in the a1 .
Later, each contributed atleast 500
volunteer hours to these groups.

With support from VAC, the
Human_ Service Program at the
school devle‘l:?:d a sophomore cur-

‘wh

‘Thomas speaks warmly of theuL nent for two and one halt hours
utary effects of the reg t on aweek. Students could
student character: "1 grew upina also test career goals, or engage 1n
social agency b

died when I was a child. I lmow firs-
thand how service agencies can
change the livas of young people.
What these young people stand to
gain from their involvement is
unlimited.”

For more information. contact
Planning & Extended Services.
Atlanta Public Schools. 2960 Moms
Hill Drive S.W.,, Atlanta. GA 30315.
Telephone (404) 766-0551.

gh most
decided to help others.

Sites were selected by the students
from a list supplied by VAC. or from
contacts made by teachers and
peers. The agency would then inter-
view the praspective volunteers.

Every two weeks. a class period
was set aside to discuss and evalu
ate the problems and successes of
each student’s activittes.

In 1984. enrollment 1n the total

prograz doubld when Riverside
became a city-wide Triversity pre-
paratory high schoolin partnership
with the University of Wisconsinat
Milwaukee.

Thehigh-achievingstudentshave
found community projects of great
use indirecting theirgoals to becom-
ing active members in society. The
number of volunteers has tripled to
147 a year.

Sophomcre Kelvin Bonner noted,

“My volunteer job gave me expe
rience in the field of education.
Volunteering gave me more incen-
tives to work harder on my school
work. I tutored children at the Vel
Phillips Y.W.C.A. and when |
watched bow hard the children
worked it gaveme a sense of prideto
know that I helped someone
improve their grades.”

For more information, contact
Judith Skumnick. Education &
Human Services, Riverside Univer-
sity High School, 1615 East Locust
Street, Milwaukee, WI 53211, Tele
phone (414) 964-5900.

Care for the Aged
Rises in the West

SilverThreadsis s special cooper-
ative program of Bancroft Com-
munity School and Wilson Manor
Convalescent Home. The school i3
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of the La MesaSpring Valley
§2bool Districtin the vicinity of San
Diego, California.

Students participating in the pro-
gramare prepared in advanceabout
thensteral aging processand howit
can bring about changes related to
the nervous system and motor abili-
ties. Tht students gain an under
standing that sging is universal
and vanrdle

After this i*.,..al educational unit,
students and teachers visit the
home and plan special events.
Somﬁme: its jo'ninz in ftiendly

Service Scholarships

By Arnold Hiatt
Chairman of the Board,
Pres.dent, and CEO,
Stride Rite Corporation

"A.n a volunteer at Boston Clul&-

ment during the school yesr and
full-time employment duricg the
surimer months.

The awards are renewable annu-
ally for four years oruntil the bache-
lor’s degree is achieved, whichever
comes first. The university’s admis-
sions and financial aid offices select
the mzs!en!:! with Stride Rite’s

and sdmind

ren’s Hoapital, I visit child
the art cart — With every child’s
smile, proud app-wd of his fine
ished paece of art.and thank you,'1
get & great feeling of satisfaction. §

143 pro-
gram, manage the disbursement of
funds, and assist the students with

job plaeement.
Ad ive feature of thisacho-

feel T in a hospital filled withlittle
brothers and sisters.” The above is

acnvmes mlhmzdent&'l‘heelderly
are often interviewed sbout their
varied pasts and about theircurrent

Groups of students enter-
tain with songs. dance, and some.
times they bnng along special
refreshments.

The smiles and hugs that take
placeduring thevisitakeepbrth stu-
dents and the elderly comir back
for more. Recently, Greg L vers,
activity director at Wilson Manor,
coordinated a fundraiser that
helped the school put v~ _commun:
ity sign board. The check was pres-
ented during a school assembly by
an 85year-old resident of thehome.

For mo~= information. contact
Darlene Montgomery., assistant
Principal, Bancroft Community
School, 8805 Tyler Street, Spring
Valley, CA 92077. Telephone (619)
460111,

excerpted from a job evaluation
written by a stadent in the Stride
Rite Inner City Scholarship Pro-

gram.

Now in its fourth year, tlie pro-
gram was designed 23 & protolype
foz corporate giving toaidinner<ity
college students financially, to
encouragethemtoserveasrole mod-
eh for. r.hm pee':sf and o assist

t

upand Lhexr staffs by using work-
zubsidized students,

Ten sentor high school students
from the Beston/Cambridge public
and garochial school systems who
huve been acceptedto Harvard Uni-
versity are selected each yeartopar
ticipate in the program. Each
student receives $5000 a year.
which includes $1,500 for tuttion.

for books and supplies, and
$3.000 to cover psri-time employ-

larship program is its workﬂudy
provision, which stipulaies thattha
students must v < in non-mﬁL

ted = ! t d°

with social, medical. cultural, or
educations! services. Tha objectives
of this provision 2re:

. ® To subsidize jobs for students
in an economy that offers limited
employmert opportunities.

o To enccirage interested ste-
den's to make A direct contribution
to their commuaity in vital social
service areas.

e To acquaint students with
cateer choices in the public as well
28 private sector.

Of the 10 students added each
year, seven must work in agences,
with three selected to work atStride
Rite.

Each semester. theStride Ritestu-
dents rotate to vanous departments
togan experiencein all facetsof tha
busi In fact. no stedent is obli-

(Continued on pege 39)
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Conmmunity Service (Contmued from pegr 31y

vated to remain at one job for any
particular length of time, but mny
change roles within thep

dents to meel weekly w:lh the co:n-
pany’s

sector to increase its financial com-
h to .

di their prog nndwvmu

suit developing needs.

Agency studen!s tutor, counsel,
and coach your.ger people in set.
tinge such as Boys’ and Girls* Clubs,
and Upward Bound. They work
within housing projects, prisons,
school systems, and camps.

Several pamupanu assist in

ies and onthe floorsofhos-

an evaluation of their work exp»
riences each semester. In additon,
supervisors at the nzenciu and
Stride Rite write p eva.

A by
escalating college costs and dimun-
ishing federal aid. At stake is the
future of thousands of highly
mouvnud young peoplewho may be

Tuations on the students.

Harvard Univessity worksclosely
with the Boston/Cambridge high
school guidance 1 to

d of the cJality education
they seek to the detriment of them.
selves and their commumties.

With Stride Rite currently helping

it not

plla!s znd clinics, while explonng
possible healtcare careers. Some
werk with the Cambridge Consu-
mers Council and theLawyersCom-
mittee for Cival Rights Under the
Law to assist victims of consumer
fraud and discrimmation.

The company requires all the stu.

the
onlyto seniors but wxmdmu inthe
Tower grades as well. The slogan
used is, “Work hard Dont giveup
« We can help you!”

With aid to higher education suf-
fering from the reallocation of prior-
ities by the administration.
responsibulity vests wath the pvate

to support 40 college students. we
are actively encouraging other busi-
nesses to consider sponsoring sim-
ilar programs to aid in the future of
our childien’s education.
For more information, contact
Corporate  Communications. The
tride Rite Corporation. 5
mbridge Center. Cambndge. MA
02142, Tele. (617) 4918500. (3

10y
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Loe An:eks high-echool students belp an elderly patient In & project
-$cTVice p of the C:

sponsored by the youth

Rights Foundstion. The group trains mlunt«n a8 20 city high schools.

Growing Numbers of Students Offering
A Helping Hand for Academic Credit

By Willlam Saider

Offening scademue aredit for partiapa.
ton i community-service projects 1s
“strong and surging” trend {n Amencan
high achools, with some even tequinag
such service for graduation, a report sched-

| *Stadent S2rvica: The New Carnegia

Unit*=50 peroent of these programs are
volustery But almost half allow students
(0 acoumulste scademic credit for tharr
comzmuruty-servics work,

“Abave all, cur study seems Lo retnforce
the view that & well| lmphmnltd nchool

uled for release this week conclud;

Inasurveyof mor? than |,100 publicand
private high schools he Camens Pounds-
tion for the Advancement o Teschung found
that 70 percent had s program in which stu-
dents worked on servios prosects either in
xchoo? of In ther communties.

According t the foundation’s reprte—

scheoling is frvelevant,” Emest L. Boyer,
mdenldmk\u\dsmwﬁtuhmb-
treduction Lo the report.

Thenew Camegie gasessment comesata
time when educators, civic leaders, and po-
Litical Sgures are examirung youth service

that stuent service be an Inlegral
part of Use education process.

Mandsted Volunteering

** Because of the potential that ser.

vice projecta hold for contributing to
charscter educston, Mr Boyer in-
cluded 8 recommendation fn his
1983 book Iigh School that every
student complets & service require-
et

Such programe, Mr Boyer 9aid,
“can challenge Lhe widel= held ss-
sumption thet teen sgershave Little
Weon'nbute and naone wantawhat

they bave.”
But white Uhe new Camnegie re-
portchows that an g num-

contidering the desirability of instl-

tuting such & requirement inLhe les

Angeles Unified School District.
“Ws believe that school Is & pood

place Lo Leach students the respona-

bility they have tobe productiveciti-
zera,® s2id Barbara Whitaker, sn
sasistant superintendent of achoots
in Atisnts who, with superinten-
dent Alonzo A. Crim, designed that

~nty’s program.

Peginning wilh the clase of 1588
all high-school students In Atlsnts
wll be required Lo perform 75 beurs
of unpaid, volunteer service befors
grsdusting. After they complete Lhe
work, Lhe students must submit el
ther 8 500-word 5 1

ber of dustricts are instituting com-
munity-secvice programs, most
remain yoluntary; they are not te
auired 85 » prerenuinte Lo gradus.

101

the'r ﬂpemm.wh;dﬂ:u»mnnl-
usted by faculty members In the
lsnguage-arts department,

from several stats education offi-
culs, Jeading, insome cases, Lolegis-
Lative or state-boerd action to en-
courage districts to adopt auch
programs.

One of Uhe movernent’s st agest
proponentsisDand Hornbeck, olats
supenntendent of schools In Mary-
land and president of the Counal of
Chie{Stats School Officers. In 1984,
e proposed that communnity scrvics
be included 83 an integral port of
Maryland's effort Lo upgrade its
gradustion requirements.

‘The state board did not agree that
community servics should be re.
quired, but it acted in 1985 Lomake
Maryland the first—and thus far
theonly—atate Lotequire that each
achool district offer students Lhe op~
portunity Lo estn elective course

Betrn P e atmn § Mewwos of Reverd (51 09 Viohumes Y1, Number 23« Prbrvary 2%, 1967 @ ST § o Porirers 3n L st —
20 EDUCATION WEEK - FEBFUARY 25,1937 ST
L] L]
_More Schools Push Community Service
Contaued from Pege 1
88 maana of promoting charactar de- | tion oc s an exscntitl part ol par- |~ Many of the #tudents contl aredits for peuing in service
velopment and making formal edu- | tcular course of study. working as volunteers after they M'-L'I
cation more relevant te studeats” [ A'recent report by the National | have fotfilled the minimom reqaire- | °1 think that Uhe issue of values
lives. Asvoclation mmtm ment, Ms. Whitakersaid. “We think | cutht to be accorded higher status
. S,cv.tnl &qa;‘ehc?uonc::vm ’Conunmny Service Programs In 1t probabirona of the best changes | 1n our schools” Mr. Ilmb«.kdduid
ade (o the curricul, Last
‘ sion of the Ctetes and the Notional | ¢ Indicate that private schools are :nr,:.n, minre: mm::&:m:nmmhhn#
A Auodnll:nh.d Sexcnds l'!u&lwol more Sikely than L\dr publcooun- |~ The course description of the At | tant rele o play in achieving that
PﬁﬂdP‘h. "ml ufl"" MDMOMW. hnummlulhnl'wdmu gos) *All ol us learn best by doi ug.
m: M"masm".. o "‘Go;'_’f"’“{," P pinﬂndundumm_ h'u:“d- “not by, readung or. .".‘
Taces, quchas Gary Hast, the forraer wd.:gulkummy 277 | thatheit actins count’ W ,;
N g “They how problems arise, eought lobeteaching atudents
scnator from Cotorado, and Cherles | cadthey had sucia programs. Andof ,,M,w': ::mmuuuyh tsken | Ut pving 1 therr communily Is
Robb.lhcfawmdellxi& M;'lt}zorlllvl:ml.uld:vv toward solution, and Uheir rols §n | belter than taking from Uherr com-
required students b participel these -y munity,” Mr lormbeck said,
Tbe Campus Comp-d. :oﬂm Atlania snd Detroit are the two wiving peckiema’  sayn Only 11 states Iack Provisicns ]
etwork ep d by the e.ca s | largest public school wystems that Stats Actions that perrit districta to offer aea-
gt gt o] Baiag Crapsisv v miler ol Lot o e
J stiv 12 Institutions form of puts. - service nuly service into the public school lcmdm to & surve cen.ucud'
(o develop 2 “national expectaticn” | ating. and 8 teak force Is currently curnculum has also gained support Hmlyby‘lthwneilo?Chkauk

School Officersandthe Naticnal As-
socistion of State Boards of Educa-
bon,

Buttke study, “School Sanctioned
Community Service—=The State
Perspective,” found that only 10
states had developed policics, regu-
1atiora, or guidelines Koverning the
provison of comemunily scrvice pro-
£rama s part of the school curricus
Tur. An ndditixnal 7 states were do-

veloping or considenng such plane
ot Lhe time the study was releascd,
in Jsnuary 1986.

New ldcas
Severalatates, however, haveini-
tinted new programs in the ares of
youth rervice.
Vermont recently completed ¢ o
port evaluating the firt yearof its
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2 model statewide imbiative for en-
couraging high schools to offer stu-

denta soportunities e community-
aervice pau elpation. Awariely of resources creoveds | ty Service—=The Stale Perspecs
Qperating with the support of able o educators considering or | Ure.” Copies are no knger avail:
Gov. Madeleine M Kunmin—but planving @ community service | able. Information contained in
without state funding—SerVer. program for therr students, They | the report ean be obtained by
mont’s coordsnator, Cynthis Par inclede the fllowng: writing The Stste Education Re-
sons, has 20 percent of search Center. Counarl of Chief
the rate's 66 hagh achools to adopt "Siuodent ServicemThe New | State Sehool Officers, Suite 379,
community-service programs dun Comnepe Unit.® Copies are avail- | 400 N. Capitol St, NW., Wash-
ing the first year. able % $6.50 each from Lhe Prin. | ington, D Q. 20001,
Aler solicsting $31,500 from vars celon Umvtnﬂy Press. 3115
ious foundations, she olfered “mini- Prisceton Pake. L {nfe del |
grants® of up to $200 each to cover N.J. 08648. phone: (609) 896- | andon solvung logistical problems
the costs incurred in student rvn 1344 13 acaable from:
projects siding bocal hbranes, senjor “Youth Service=A Guidebook
aitizens, and wmnnd ulk:. ﬁtthbptnglndOp«:hngﬂ ‘The Center for Youth Develop-
Mo Py id *Copies mllbe | ment and Research, or the Na-

-

98

Youth-Service Resources

t ull SerVermoot a ‘womm. It
in, she 2aid, s dream ... 8 pump-
peiming effort to help community
ncrvice becorse an integral part of
thcfabtkdpublkldﬁoollnﬂn%t-
mont.”

InMinnesots v Rudy Perpich
19 supporting 8 bl tobe introduced
within the next month that would
sllocate $5 million for the establish-
ment of a two-year program called
the Mianesota Youth Servics.

Under the program, up to 800
youths between the sges of 18 and
22 would receive small stipends, 83
well a3 rooms and board, to work [n
crews on various community and en-
monmcnul projecta. Thase youths

S talunlal’ _L..Iml

-mhblul\«Mamhlwalzso
esch, prepaid, by wniung Inde.
pendent Secior. 1828 L St N.W-
Waskington. D C. 20036,
“Canmunity Service

t Schools,®
can be obtained for $1350 each
by wnting the National Associ-
stoaol I t Schools, 18
Tremeat St., Boston, Mass,
02108, or by calling (617) 723
€900, .

's«w.mv.-m First Year
9051.° Copies can be oblair™d
ﬁ”ls««h.mﬂ.bymunc
the Vermont Schoothouse Prens,
P.0 Box 516, Chester, V. 05143,
“School Sanctioned Communi-

tional Youth Leadership Council,
University of Minnesots. 386
McNeal Hall, 1985 Buford Are.,
St. Paul. Minn. §5108: phone:

Programs,
601 South Kingsley Dr., Los An-
geles, Calif; 90005; phone: (213)
487-85%

Youth Polxy Instatute. Catholic

Univernty. Cudmnl Station,

Washinglon, D C. 20064; phone:
(202) 635-6087.

Youth Service Americs. Surte
705, 810 18th St., N.W., Washung.
ton, D C. 20006, phone: (202) 783-
8853

diploms would be able to attend
claxses beading Lo 8 Geners] Educa-
tional Development certificate, &=
cording o Christina Sorden, the
project’s director.

“A Sense of Bek

Ang’

"'w»ﬁ?‘m‘i prwoo;d' making
service s grad

Independent Scetor, s coalition of

quirement, Mr. Hombeek MW.

poook outside nueduadmill:
L 81

But in an interview in the new
Camegie report, Mr, Hombeck o(
Maryland urges ihat such progra
he mandatory. He srgues. nmcng
other thinga, that perticipation in

ruch programs promotes 3
Iulity snd good work habits, while
huilding sell-estcem and 8 “fecling
of helonging.” .

But alw, he aay& e state has an

_lau-lrd\umundedlobeopwed.

Lastweek, b Laincd that edu-

profit grougs, has recently com.
pleted 8 comprehennire guidebook
dexcnibing model youth-service pro-
grazme st the high-achool level and
how they can be implemented. The
ton will be lable Dext

cators” elfections usually (3l into
three tategories: the scheduling con-
Aicts sach programe can cause, the
growing infringement of academic

"sutfecta by extracurricular
andthefact that, sshe putit, “todo

it nght costs money.”

moath. (See box on this pay:)

obligation to *make clear we belerve
helpsngto mect the necdsof othersis
a fandamental component of being

an effeetive adult”
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF L. WiLLIAM YOLTON, ExECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL
INTERRELIGIOUS SERVICE BOARD FOR CONSCIENTIOUS OBJECTORS

The National Interreligious Service Board for Conscientious
Objectors has since 1940 maintained a strong interest in the
vocations of service. As the associationr of most major religious
traditions in America, together with many of the smaller groups
which have coamitment to service as an alternative to participa-
tion in war, NISBCO is a unique repository of experience and
reflection about the meaning of service. On behalf of Protes-
tants, Catholics and Jews, together with those highly committed
"historic peece churzhes," NISBCO both understands and critiques
the notions of "national youth service®” which are now beconing
widely discussed again.

NISBCO, ac the National Service Board for Religious Objectors,
coordinated the extensive programs of conscientious objectors in
the Civilian Public Service camps during World War II. I{
provided a job finding service for COs during subsequent periods
of the draft. These individuals were among the most highly
notivated for service by religious belief, and yet there were
nany who found the service opportunities provided to be unsatis-
factory, and the terms of service too constricting to cortinue to
participate willingly.

On behalf of NISBCO, and reflecting many of the views present in
the Consultative Council where over thirty religious bodies and
organizations share in direction and policy formation of the
organization, I present issues for the consideration of legisla-
tors and all those others of good will who wish to consider or
even promote the idea of national service employment for youth.

A central issue to the religious conmunity is the notion "ser-
vice." Isaiah presents the religious call to Israel to be
the suffering servant, Jesus urges that those who would be great
should be the servant of all, and Mahayana Buddhism presents the
Bodhisattva as the compassicnate servant. Religion commends
service.

Anong the reasons for imstituting programs of national youth
service is the idea of promoting service, of teaching service,
inculcating a service ethic. Most thoughtful people would agree
about the desirab.lity of such a goal. And there ends the
agreement. For the nature, purpose, and scope of service and the
sources of motivation are the very stuff of religious and
political philosophy. Talk about "service" and you get almost
immediate interest, keep talking and many will disagree.

Whether service camn be forced upon another is questionable.

1
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Caspar Weinberger, the Secretary of Defense, would prefer to have
people in the Armed Services performing their duties willingly,
not under compulsion. That service cannot be exacted from others
apart from the power of Congress to raise and army is
constitutionally clear to some authorities. Unwilling service
may not be serviceable. S

Another central issue to the religious community is the notion of
"employment.” Popular religion understands that idleness is the
Devil‘s workshop. Meaningful work is a participation in the
creative activity of God. Though work is sometimes seen as a
curse or punishment for human disobedience to God, another strain
of religious tradition sees it as a calling from God, a vocation.
what you do to earn a liviny is of "no idle moment" to religious
people. Employment is a serious moral and religious issue. It
is another of those matters in whicn we all have an interest, but
many disagree.

The religious community’s interest is fully aroused when programs
of service and of employment are being prescribed for youth. No
other part of the population is so much the subject of religious
concern. Schools and service programs are central to the
pedagogical interest of those in the religious community. Some
religious schools require the completion of service activities as
a condition for graduation, still others were founded for the
sake of developing the sexrvi ¢ motivation of students, and the
specialized schools and religious communities often focus on the
meaning, skills, and purposes of service as a life-long principal
activity. Ministry (service) is itself understood as what life
is about for the believer, in an increasing range of religious
teachings. Service is not limited to those in the leadership of
the religious community, but it is for everybody as part of their
baptism or initiation into active religious life. On this we
agree, but our differences about how this commitment is
communicated to the young are the diversity of the American
religious scene.

when the government begins to talk about national service, the
religious communities want to be part of that discussion. Their
ver y exiztence is at stake.

Several questions need to be answered before the religious
communities can support policies and programs for national youth
sexvice:

Will national service inculcate a "civil religion® which is a
rival to true belief? Will the program divert young people from
the beliefs and vocations for service in the religious community?
Wi1ll the program constitute an educational context that will
secularize young men and women at a crucial point in their
development when they most need to be in sympathetic touch

2
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with the family and church or synagogue and the values they
represent? Will the service that is taught be a truncated
version of what the depth of religious belief would seek?

Will the employment opportunities give real benefits to youth and
to society? Will these opportunities actually compete witk those
of other workers? Will the employment be less meaningful and
productive than would have been achieved by providing full
enploynent in the economy? Are these young people being taxed by
lesser earnings while other parts of the economy benefit from
their depressed wages?

Will a pluralism of program, sponsorship, and age of participa-
tion be essential to the policy, or will a uniformitarianism and
authoritarias control be instituted. What provisions will be
nade for those who choose not to participate; will they be
punished by limiting their access to privileges such as education
and employment? What provisions will be pade for those who
suffer disabilities, those who luck mental qualifications, those
who have been disadvantaged by the failure of the educational and
econonic system, and those who have behavioral problems?

0f wmajor concern to the religious community is the vclue context
of proposals for national service. Will the programs vromote
nilitarism? Will the programs create environments whers drugs,
alcoholism, and sexual promiscuity will have greater encourage-
neat than they already have? Will the programs constitute an
invasion of traditional roles for women in those comnunities
where these patterns are essential to the continuation of the
tradition? What provision will there be for conscientious
ohbjection to any or all programs?

A significant link to programs for the draft or to encourage
nilitery service alarms religious believers to the import of the
proposals. Even those who have no problems with the provision
for 2 military still have concerns about training that is
connected with military readiness, either as an inducement to
furthar enlistments, or as a direct para-military aspect of the
defense establishment. The elements of authoritarian control and
inculcation of a readiness to %ill are of serious concern %o
religious educators. Of equal concern is the inculcation of
uncritical acceptance of naticnal interest and a false patriotism
of "ny country, right or wrong." No connection with military
service can be countenanced in programs of national service.

The timing of the present discussion of national service for
youth is subject to suspicion. Why at a time when the cohort of
young people is approaching its smallest in two decades diminish-
ing the threat of widespread youth unenployment, and when
the fears for military recruiting adequacy are being expressed is
natlional youth service bheing promoted? Some of +*he advocates
have been candid about recognizing that their benign proposals

3
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are all that the political climate will allow, but they go on to
say they really prefer a compulsory program linked to =xilitary
service.

Yes, our society does need service. The religious communities
are dedicated to it. But it should not be restricted to the
young. Indeed, it must have all ages engaged.

Since service is partly caught not taught, iz requires the
example of others for emulation. The saints are part of how one
podels one's own life. The leadership of others in service is
essential to propagating service as a social value and skill. We
need incentives for everyone in the society to give good servicej
it may be accomplished through limited programs at the local
level that subsidize all groups who are providing service
opportunities. Individuals at the peak of their powers and
skills should be encouraged to serve as volunteers through tax
incentives such as income averaging.

The need for individual mentors for persons engaged in service is
a plain fact of the experience of those who have been administer=-
ing or evaluating the present programs of service. The growth of
state and local government sponsored service and conservation
corps has required an enormous pool of persons engaged in
nentoring and supervision activity. Any growth in service
programs nust keep up with the need for training supervisors in a
difficult field where professional competency is now being
aspired after in the context of several professional associa-
tions devoted to fostering experiential learning, or '"service-
=learning™ as it is also called.

The churches and synagogues are already the most salient part of
the voluntary sector, engaging in full time service far nmore
individuals than the government supports. Though groups such as
the Mennonites with their disaster relief programs are well
known, nearly all the religious groups have been developing
strong commitwonts to service opportunities. The huge apparatus
of Roman Catholic health and human services is staffed by
volunteers and subsistence workers. A strongly funded government
progran that competes with these programs wouid make the society
less strong. The independent sector must be supported so that a
Pluralism of service opportunities free of government interfer-
ence is encouraged.

Service, while particularly appropriate in the pedagogy of the
younz, must be part of value system of the whole society.

Service is not a duty thai is to be discharged by the young, who
ray then zo on to "ma¥ing it" in & selfish world. The example of
public cfficials who are not on the take is a key element in
encouraging public service, for instance. Short term and
part-time programs of service are often sufficient, so that high
school and college based service programs are ideul for many

4
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young peoplo. Where those prograns are correlated with the
sorvice of thol. elders the long-tern learning effect is on-
hanced.

Finally, sorvice noeds are not primarily for .oorly skilled or
unskilled labor. The noilon that needs for child-care or
goriatric sorvices can be satisfiod by rloods of young people on
short-tern assignmont is folly. The long-term needs in our
socioty are for persons with high-tech abilities. That high-tech
akill ip tot just computer literacy, but it will be in the area
of inter-personal skills. We already seoc a shortaze of nurses,
but there is a growing shortage of h'ghly skilled social service
professionals. Every incontive to increase our pool of gqualified
helpers to othors should be doveloped, and it would bo a mistake
to divert to Jow quality sorvices by the young, when they night
botter be turned to intensive use of thoir potential talents in
prograns of profossional education.

In previous testimony to the Subcozmittes on Human Rosources,
Comnittee on Post Offico and Civil Sorvice we urged these
considorations:

Whatover public policy to oncourage service should:

1) guarantee pluralisr of initiative,

2) be freo from coercion, including ties o the right to educa-
tional opportunity,

3) avoid age spocificity while encouraging the young,

4) engage participation of those who are served in defining the
content of service,

5) avoid connection with nilitary manpower needs,

6) subsidizo all programs equuily or nol. at all,

7) involve both men and women while respecting the special
concorns of somo roeligious communities for the spocial
protection of wonmen, and

8) give significant work and education.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DONALD J. EBERLY, ExECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NATIONAL SERVICE
SECRETARIAT, COALITION FOR NATIONAL SERVIGE

My nacc is Donald J. Eberly, executive darcctor of the National Service
Secretariat snd of the Coalition for National Service. Both are located at
5140 Sherier Fi., Ww, Wasiungtoen, IC 20016. N

Mr. Chairman, you last convened a sational service hearing nn September

27, 1985. 1In advance of the hearing, you asked mc to reply to questions con-

cerning the nced for national Service, its *istory, design and cost. At that

tize, th® anly national scrvice legislation under consideration were biils by

Mr. Pancttsn (H.R.888) and Mr. T.rriceil: (H.R.1326). Both arc very Similar to )
bills vhich the two gentlemen have intruduced for consideration by the 100ch

Congress. Mr. Panctra's current bill is H.R.460 and Mr. Torricelli’s is H.R.

1468. I have reviewed the observations I made in reply to “our request in

19685 and stand by my stateament.

In the intervening two years, chere have been signifi .nt changes on the
, nationsl service front. There are presently more national secuvice bills than
ever before the Congress; the Coalition for National Service was formes 2n 1986;
and the latest Youth Scrvice Survey shows that the fozrward momenturm of state
and local youth service initiatives, whicn vas apparent twe years ago, nov
appears to hove stalled.

I shall make several recommendations as the legislation after saying
something about the Cealition and the Surve,.

Mezbers of the Coalition cndorse “hs Statezent on National Youth Service
(psge 2), support statc snd locad youtl .ervice programs and foster disc.ssiuvn
of national service. Membera of the fosattion re.lect the muny dimensions of
national service, from Service nceds to cducation to employment to citizenship
to military service to youth policy.

For cxampie, amcng tne Organizatiens belonging to the Coalition sre the
Amecrican Correctional Asscciation, tuc Acerican Yeterans Commi- ¢cce, the Ameri-
can Youth Work Center, the Campus Outrcach Opportunity League (COOL), the Min-
nesota Conservation Corps, the National Alliance of Business, tne National
Association of Sccondary School Principals, the National Association of State
Boards of Education, the National Interreligious Service Board for Conscien-
tious bjectors and SerVermont.
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STATEMENT ON NATIONAL YOUTH SERVICE

The service needed by gociety == in such fields as education, care for the very
young and the very old, conservation and eunicipal services == is enormous. Many of
these nceds could be met by young people from all walks of 1ife. By helping to wmeet
these needs, young people wosld be able to test themselves through service to society
and would receive valuable experience for their careers. By having {nvested in their
country while young, they would become better citizens as they mature. By having
first-hand, constructive experience with major problems in society, they would bs
better cjuipped to deal with them I8 future years as parents, employers, leaders,
voters and voluntecers.

In order to meet many of our most pressing needs and to perait y.ang men and
wozmen to become engageu in the building of a better society, WE ENDORSE A PROGRAM OF
NATIONAL YOUTH SERVICE, which would have these basic features:

1. Service opportunities would be available to all young people. The main
crit

erion for admission would be willingness to serve., All young people
would be enccuraged -- not required -- to serve and would be rewarded with an
educational entitlement upon completion of service.

2. Each participant would both serve and learn. Learning would range from
development of specific ski11s to growth in self-knowledge, problem solving,
and working with people.

3. Service activities would be directed and financed at the local level to
Egs_cxtent peroitted by available resources, and would include projects
organized and directed by young people. 1hus, maxicum local initiative
would be encouraged.

4. Service activities would be undervritten by a public foundation at the
national level. Such a foundation, which should be removed from
political pressures but which would receive both Congressional approp=
riations and private contributions, would assure support for all necedy
projects. ‘

5. The basic raison d’etre for national youth service is the need societ:
hat for the service of youth.  Main areas are tutoring, llteracy training,
day care, eclder care, conservation, and various kinds of community service.
By serving in these fields, young people would be able to test themselves
through service to society and would receive valuable experience for their
careers.,

6. Young people who scem poorly qualified by conventional s_ andards could
serve effectively. High school dropouts are today serving .as titors, and
doing a good Job;  others are receiving specialized training for respon-
sible hospital positions. Each participant would receive the training and
supervision needed for the assigrment.

7. There would be a transition phase.  Growth of national youth service

would be constrained by identification of useful tasks, finding enough
trainers and supervisors, and obtaining sufficient fundinz. The
transition phase would permit experimentatinn with various techniques and
activities.

8. Participation would be by means of a contra ., voluntarily entered into
by all parties. The contract would spell out the responsibilities of the
participant, the sponsoring agency and the funding agency.

9. Duration of service would range from a minimum of six months to a
maxfwum of four years. The value of tr¢ educational entitlement would be
proportional to the time in service.

10, 2articipation in natfonal youth servicc would Ye viewed as fulfillment

of a person’s peacetime service obligation. 1If a peacetive military draft
is reinstituted, persons who are 1iable for the draft and who complete a
period in national youta service equal to the draft period would be placed
at the end of the draft queue, together with those who had cospleted
wilitary service.

-2-
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The same is true of the individual members of the Coalition. They include
a present member of Congress, Rep. Leon Panetta, and two former members, Mayor
Don Fraser and Paul N. McCloskey, Jr. Among other Coalition members are »rniver
sity leaders Derek Bok, Rev. Theodore M. He ourgh, Donald Xennedy, Davis Saxon
and Donna E. Shalala; former Cabinet pembers John W. Gardner, Ray Ma'shall and
Willard Wirtz; youth policy experts Diane Hedin, James Kielsmeier, oichael
Sherraden and Martin Trow; national service study leaders Amitai Etziomi, Morras

JJapowitz, William R, King. Charlea.C. Moskes, Jr., and Jecqueline Srennan Wexler;

and others such as Ernest L. Boyer, George Gallup, Jr., John E. Jai.ob, and Adem

" Yarmolinsky.

O

While many Coalition members have recognizable nemes and man-: years of ex-
perience, other: are the leaders of the future. S. Kim Grose is a iniversity stu-
dent who spent a year in commumity service and wrote a prize-«inni2g essay 1in which
she advocated national service. I asked her if she would enrorse _he Statement on
National Youth Service and join the Coalition. She joined st..igl:itaway and said
of the Statement: "It puts forth in direct, clear writing a thcory that I held
since I began public service fourteen months ago. I have no criticisms and hope
only thit such a national program can be instituted in the near future.”

The Coalition is of particular significance now because it rebuts the occas-
10nal editorial assertion that national service advicates can't seem to agree on
the essential features of national service. I am sure I speak for members of the
Coalition when I say that we would rather have a progran called XYZ that contains
the .0 points in our statement, than one called NATIONAL SERVICE which 1s not in
accord with the Statement.

The National Service Secretariat has just issued its report on the third
annual Youth Service Survey. The Survey, a full report of which is included in the
Appendix, measures 3 number of characterastics of federal, state, local and pri-
vate Youth service programs.

At your 1985 hearing, I was pleased to report that full-time, year-rouud
youth service enrollments had risen from 4,850 at the beginning of the year tc
7,100 at the end. It appeared that a period of growth in youth service enroll-
pents was underway. I must report today that such was not the case, with enroll-
pents rising slightly to 7,300 at the end of 1985 but dropping off to 5,800 at
the end of 1986.

R There are a few indicators that enrollments will rise a little in 1987 but,
except for the national service legislation being considered by Congress, there
are no signs that youth service enrollments will beccie commensurate with exist-
ing needs. -

In reviewing the national service legislation before Congress, I find a high
degree of harmony -- so much so, in fact, that *he authors of tlie legislation and
their co-sponsors mght establish a Congressionai Coalition for National Service.
What could well emerge from such a group is a legislative package that embraces
many of the features of the several bills.

If I were charged with writing such a package, and in making these recom-
mendations I speak only for myself, it would look like this.

e 150

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




]

.tribute a year or more of community service.

O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

107

Part ~ would be Mr. Udall's bill for an Azerican Conservation Corps.
It would e .ially restore the successful Young Adult Conservation Corps of
the late 197u s. I estimate that conservetion work would engage about 20% of
all national service participants.

~ ‘\ -

Part II would be Mr. Panetta's bill for a Voluntary Naticaal Youth Jer-
vice. It is a transition bill, enabling us to get from where we are today to a
larger national service a few years down the xoad. Wsith its SO.50 nstching
grants, most if not all of the full-time, year-round state and local youth ser-
vice programs would be able to double in size and numerous other states and
localities would probably initiate similar programs.

Part III would be Sen. Pell's bill for a Voluntary National Service and
Education Demonstration. It is a well-crafted bill that provides for a period
of national service followed by a GI Bill for Education. As I have already
indicated tc Sen. Pell, I would make just one change in the bill; namely, to
permit enrollment of non-high school graduates as well as high school graduates.

* Pert IV would be a modified versica of Mr. McCurdy's bill for a National
Service. I would institute his form of national service in three localities —
one urban, one rural, one suburban -- with controls for each. The essential
features of the first three parts of this package have Leen tested and proven
sound. Mr. McCurdy's approach deserves to be tested and evaluated before a
decision is made about its possible expansion.

Part V would be Sen. Bumpers' and Rep. Sikorski's bill that would en-
courage people to serve after college. Their bill would enable a number of
college graduates, who might not have done so without their proposal, to con-

Part VI would be Rep. Torricelli's bill for a Commission on National
Service Opportunities. However, instead of vepeating the studies already made
by Messrs. Etzioni, Janowitz, King, Moskos, Mrs. Wexler, myself and others, I
would focus their attention on what is happening as a result of the passage
of Parts I, IT, III, IV, V and VIII of this bill. On the basis of their obser-
vations, the Cozmission would make recommendetions for the future of national
service.

Part VII would be the provis_ons for an Agency for National Service and
for local placement centers from Mr. Torricelli's bill for Universal National
Service. The aforementioned bills call for programs rua by several different
agencies. At the federal level, the Agency for National Service would lead
an interagency group on national service and would promote each of the pro-
grams in a coherent fashion under the heading of national service. Also, the
Agency could provide the staff for the study under Part VI of this package.
At the local level, local placement centers would offer a single po.nt of in-
formation and application for young people interested in national service.

Part VIII would provide for a test of universal voluntary, rather than
universal mandatory national service as recommended by Mr. Torricelli. I
recormended such a test project in 1971 (see Teachers College Record, Vol. 73,
No. 1, September 1971) to determine how many young people would come forward,
what their demographic prcfile would be, and what thcy would accomplish. The

by
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APPENDIX

NATIONAL SERVICE SECRETARIAT

$190 SHERIER PLACEN. W
WASHINGTON. D.C. 2006
(202) 243.5328
Docatd 3. Eberly, Execurive Drrector ) June 8, 1987

THE 1986 YOUTH SERVICE SURVEY

The third annual Youth Sexvice Survey was conducted in early 1987 by
the National Service Secretariat. Tiue Survey covered the year 1586 and, as
with the previous Youth Sérvice Surveys, asked a nuzber of questions about
18-24 year olds in service programs with the following characteristics:

- Emphasis on mzeeting human, social or environzental needs;

~ No discrimination by race, sex, religion or income level;

~ Year-round activities;

- Enrollzent periods of six months or longer;

- Full-tipe service during the enrollzent period; and

- No displacement of employees nor impairment of existir3y service
contracts.

The Survey was limited to those programs likely to qualify for a pro-
gran of national service. The Survey does not include the large nunber of
young people in such service capacities as paid ezployment, unpaid volunteer
work, the armed forces, and federally subsidized service in part-time or short-
term programs such as college work-study and sucmer youth enmployment. The
17 elig.ble programs that completed survey forms are listed below with the
year in which they were founded.

California Conservation Corps 1376
East Bay Conservation Corps (CA) 1983
International Christian Youth Exchange 1949
Michigan Civilian Conzervation Corps 1984
Mcntgomery County Conservation Corps (MD) 1984
New York City Voluntecr Corps 1984
Ohio Civilian Conservation Corps 1977
Peace Corps 1961
Pennsylvania Conservation Corps 1984
Sacrazento Local Cons-rvation Corps 1985
San Francisco Conservution Corps 1983
TVA Conservation Work Corps 1976
VISTA(Volunteers in Service to America) 1965
Voluntary Service Program, United Church Board for
Homelan¢ Ministries 1955

washington Conservation Corps 1983

. washington Sérvice Corps 1983
Wisconsin Consr=vation Corps 1983

Thus, the spou.ors of eligible programs inclule the federal government;
state, county and city governments; religious institutions; and private corp-
orations (East Bay Conservation Corps and New York Citv Volunteer Corps). Of
the eligible progrsms that did not respond to the survey, it is estimated that
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their enrollment figures would add approximately 3 percent to . he total fagures.

The year-by-year enrollment levels since the beginning of the Survey

are as follows:
Date

1/1/84
12/31/84
12/31/85
12/31/86

Totel Earcllment

4,850
7,100
7,300
5,800

The fall in the total enrollment stems primarily from the reduced num-
ber of 18-24 year olds in the Peace Corps and the Pennsylvan.a Conservation
Corps. Also, the TVA Conservation Work Corps was discontinued in 1986. The
figure for 12/31/85 that had been reported earlier has been revised to 7,300

on the basis of dats received in the 1986 Survey.

The 17 service programs answering the survey reported that a total oi
5,982 work-years of service were accomplished during 1986. Most programs pe’-
formed specialized services for the genersl populetion. A few gave a range
of services to a specialized population. The numbers of service-years (work-

years of service) by emphasis area are as follows:

Conservation

Recreation

Education

Environment

Public Works

Health

Agriculture

Emergency relief

Economic development

Infants and children

Senior citizens

Energy

Disabled persons

Arts and museums

Food and nutrition

Literacy

Employment

Housing

Native Americans

Young people

Community protection

Refugees .

Adults

Migrants

Companionship

Other and not reported
Total
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Males outnumber females almost two to one, largely because of the high
proportion of males in conservation programs. The fact that minorities are
somewhat over-represented is not surprising since several programs exist in
part to alleviate unemployment and minorities are consistently over-represented
in unemployment rates. Ninety-two percent of the college graduates are Peace
Corps Volunteers. Demographic data follows:

Male 66.3%
Female 33.7%
Black 20.5%
Hispanic 11.0%
White 62.0%
Other 6.4%
Not completed haigh school 30.6%
High school graduates only 38.6%
Some college 6.7%
College graduates 24.1%

A variety of elucational linkages were reported by the 17 programs.
Eleven of them require participants to attend school or courses or seminars;
seven of them require participants to write about their service experiences;
the majority of programs which accept illiterate persons or school dropouts
require them to attend literacy classes or to study for the G.E.D. Four pro-
grams help to arrange academic credit for learning acquired from servite
experiences, and seven programs provide or facilitate financial assistance
for further study.

The 17 programs reported a total budget of $84.07 million in 1986; the
Peace Corps and other programs accepting persons outside the 18-24 range pro-
rated their budgets accordingly. Still, it 1s clear that not all programs
use the same accounting methods. Probably the best guide to program costs
is the median cost per service year; for 1986, that was $10,600.

State and federal governments were the major supporters of youth service
programs in 1986, con.ributing 83% of total budgets. The scurces and amounts
are given below:

Source Anount (million)
States $36.0
Federal government 33.7
Cities and counties 9.0
Private sector boo
Not reported 0.3

Total 484.1

Twelve of the 17 programs reported that 100 of their budgets came
from a single source, such as the state or federal government. In the Wash-
ington Service Corps and the East Bay Conservation Corps, the organizations
where young people serve are required to make financial contributions to the
progran.
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The nmaterial benefits received by youth service participants are packaged
in a wide variety of ways. However, when the stipend allowance, value of
roon and board, bonus and educational entitlement (all as applicable) are added
together, the total for almost all participants is in the range of $6,000 to

$10,000.

The method for calculating the value of services rendered by participants . ...
varied cotisiderably amofig the seven programs that made such an assessmpent.
Combined with varia*ions in cost accounting methods, a wide range of benefit-
cost ratios is to be expected. The highest ratio reported was 7.36 by the
] Washington Service Corps and the lowest was 0.78 by the New York City Volunteer
Corps. The median benefit-cost ratic, 1.36, is within the range of 1.0 to 2.0
that is typical of youth service programs.
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essence of the test is to guarantee service opportunities to all young people

in a given geographic area and make provisions for their placement and support.

A major contention of those who favor mandatory service is that 1t is the only
. way to reach many who would benefit most from a service period. I believe they

can be reached through thLe universal voluntary approach but the only way to

find out is thruugh actual testing, No amount of theoretical study will give
"us the definitive answer.

In summary, Mr. Chairman, I see the next five years as a time of testing,
growti, and evaluation for national Service. It 1s a good time to test various
models of national service because there 1s no military draft and the youth
population is smaller than 1t has been or will be for many years. In five years
time, several hundred thousand young people will have served, the studies will
be complete, and decisions can be made about the next steps for national service.
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